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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2018 is a challenging year as the financial markets in Hong Kong
and the PRC are volatile. Due to the slowdown of the economic
growth in the PRC and the intensification of the Sino-US trade
disputes, the financial markets are affected by various uncertainty
and the overall business of the Group especially the loan
financing and asset management segments have be adversely
affected.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strength the
operations of each segments including but not limited to the
supply-chain financing services and asset management. In
addition, we will explore opportunity to further develop the
operation of the Group as a whole to improve the returns to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder”).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our management team and employees for their
commitment and contribution to the Group. | would also like to
thank our Shareholders, business partners, professional parties
and customers for their continued support.

Liu Kequan
Chairman
Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESmE DT

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial
property development, general trading of consumable goods,
securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management
and loan financing operation includes loan financing, financial
guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year of 2018

E 1% B BRI R =

AEEXIENEREER TXROERER
HEmBN—RES JHEEL RReERL &
EERLERREXE (BREXRE ®E

ERRTS  EREN MFEARE) o

AEER T \FORARDIFREHR

are stated in the table below: T
For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Revenue from: KEATEEZRA :
Industrial property development TERAMEERE 13,342 6,518
General trading —RE5H 60,043 64,182
Securities brokerage B 710 3,436
Insurance brokerage IRBR A4 8,007 14,072
Asset management EEEE 471 1,323
Loan financing ERmE 70,022 41,121
152,595 130,652
Segment (loss) profit from: RENATEEZDE (EE)
i A
Industrial property development THAMEER (6,925) (11,905)
General trading —KRE5 4,255 1,605
Securities brokerage BHLELL (2,287) (545)
Insurance brokerage R4 (435) (6)
Asset management EEER (5,405) (704)
Loan financing EXmE 54,605 27,755
43,808 16,200
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Industrial Property Development

The revenue from industrial property development segment
mainly represented the warehouse storage income generated
from the warehouse operation. The warehouse of the Group is
located in Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. It is divided into 6
units and the total areas is approximately 48,600 square meters.

Revenue from the warehouse operation recorded an increase
of HK$6,824,000 to HK$13,342,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: HK$6,518,000) and a segment loss of
HK$6,925,000 has resulted (2017: HK$11,905,000). The repair
and maintenance works of 2 warehouse units were completed in
July 2018. Most of the warehouse units has been fully occupied
early in 2018 for storage of raw materials mainly. Although the
trade war between China and United States brought negative
effect on the general trading and exporting business during the
year, as the customers of our warehousing operation mainly
focus on local trading business, there is no material effect on the
Group’s income generated from the warehouse operation.

General Trading

Our co-operation with a major distribution agent of Moutai
(i.e. a reputable distilled Chinese liquor) to sell Moutai and
other popular Chinese liquors continued in 2018. The revenue
generated from the liquors trading amounted to HK$60,043,000
(2017: HK$64,182,000), resulting in segment profit of
HK$4,255,000 (2017: HK$1,605,000).

Due to the popularity of Moutai and other popular Chinese wines
in the PRC and the limited number of authorized distribution
agents, the key to carry out trading is to secure the supply, as
the demand of Chinese wine products in the PRC far exceeds its
supply. It is the normal commercial practice that no credit term is
granted from the supplier and to the wholesalers and/or re-sellers
and the liquors will only be delivered upon full payment of the
liquors ordered. Since the commencement of such co-operation
in late 2016, our management has established a strong mutual
trust with the supplier which is a reputable wine distributor and
is able to obtain stable supply from the wine producers, which is
crucial to the long term stable development of our wine trading
operation.

TERNEERR

T¥RVMERRSBIWAETEREEER
EEZEEGFBIRA - LKEIZEEQEGEP
TEAARM Ko AEE L AEELNA
48,600°F 75 K »

HE_Z—)\F+-_A=+—BLtFE"
BEEEKWALSE FF6,824,0008 T2
13,342,000 T (—ZZF — 4 :6,518,000/8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2018, the strong demand for Moutai continued and the
price of Moutai increased radically during the year, and such
increase in price is expected to be continued in the Chinese
liquors market in general. The increase in price contributed to
the increase in profit margin of the segment. However, turnover
is reduced compared to last year as there is insufficient supply of
Moutai and other popular Chinese liquors allocated to us by our
suppliers.

To secure a stable supply of these popular Chinese liquors, we
strive to actively negotiate with our business parties to secure a
stable supply in 2019. Due to the stable and continued growth in
the demand of Chinese liquors, especially Moutai, the Group will
continue the operations of this segment and further develop the
sales network to increase its volume and profitability gradually.

Securities Brokerage

The securities brokerage operation continues to provide a variety
of securities related services including securities brokerage,
securities trading, margin financing and placements in Hong
Kong. Revenue from the segment was HK$710,000 (2017:
HK$3,436,000) and segment loss of HK$2,287,000 (2017:
HK$545,000) has resulted.

Revenue from this segment has dropped significantly, mainly
caused by the securities brokerage operation undergoing a
business restructuring process and operation streamlining during
the year. In order to face keen competition in the securities
brokerage operation, we established a new sales and operation
team to expand our business presence in the securities brokerage
sector. At the same time, we are looking into new products
including but not limited to funds trading in order to broaden
our client base.

Insurance Brokerage

During the year, we continued to provide tailor-made financial
solutions to its clients and independent advisory services in
connection with insurance products and operate long term
(including linked long term) and general insurance business plus
MPF.

BEEEN WK DT

RZE-N\F FENBTREFERY MFEA
X amERKE L AHTEAET SRR
RIEEERR LRBE - BRIBTTEZ D HBE
MEEF- AW ARHRERREMDBEHNS
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oW HE - TEREERE  UNE PRI HH
ENABFIREN -

BHREEREERBEZEFZSEBERS
BREEEBETESFLCL BHEE RE
TR E RERE -2 FU A AE710,0008 7T (=
T —+1F:3,436,00008 0) * MEL£ 2D 2BE
18 /42,287,0008 7t ( =& — 4 : 545,000/
JL) °
ZABBRARBTEREEARFARNEZEHFLL
EBETEREANREEE - BEHESFL
LEBNBRES BMcERFTNHEERE
BEK UIERNEBEFCLITENEREGE-
AR ZMESKAER BEETERES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Revenue from insurance brokerage was approximately
HK$8,007,000 with net loss HK$435,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 compared to 2017 with revenue of
HK$14,072,000 and net loss of HK$6,000. The performance of
insurance brokerage is still facing challenge of keen marketing
competition. According to the Insurance Authority of Hong Kong,
the number of authorized insurance brokers in Hong Kong was
increased from 771 as at 31 March 2017 to 778 as at 31 March
2018. Thus, the Group will continue to strengthen the existing
sales team and to develop various channels in different client
segments and foster close relationship with insurance companies
and offer diversified products to our customers to achieve a
steady growth of the business.

Asset Management

The fund managed by our asset management segment is “Spruce
Light Absolute Return Fund” which is a hedge fund. Its net value
of assets under our management is approximately US$10 million.
Revenue of HK$471,000 and segment loss of HK$5,405,000
were recorded for the year ended 31 December 2018 compared
to 2017 with the revenue HK$1,323,000 and segment loss of
HK$704,000.

In 2018, China’s economy growth had slowed down, following
the implementation of “deleveraging” policy and the influence
of Sino-US trade disputes. In particular, fixed asset investments
increased by 5.9% year-on-year, representing a drop of 1.3% in
growth as compared with the last year. The growth for total retail
sales of consumer goods eased to 9% year-on-year, representing
a drop of 1.2% in growth as compared with the last year. In
securities markets, due to the economic growth slow down, the
“deleveraging” policy in China and the influence of Sino-US
trade disputes, large declines occurred in major Chinese stock
indexes at home and abroad. CSI-300 Index slipped 25.3% for
the year. At the same time, Hang Seng Index and Hang Seng
China Enterprise Index also fell 13.6% and 13.5%, respectively.
Nonetheless, the general performance of the fund under
management for the year was better than the major market
indexes.

BHE_Z—)/\F+-_A=+—BLFE KRR

a2 WA £8,007,0008 T M 1B 55 A
435,000 70  MBE T —tF A5 5l Bl
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fpaad RIDMEBERBZIM S5 FHkE - 1R
BEREERBEEERNER EEERERR
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M771EEE=—_ T - NF=A=+—HH778
e Bt AEBSHEE MRIBAHE BRI
BERZBETRAZFPHSHRE  RFERREA A

BEBYBERLIRTPIRHSENER KM
BERXBORISEE-
EEEE

AEMOEEERIHBFIEENES A [Spruce
Light @RI EL | ZEE A —BHHEHHE
& EEEEFELA10,000,000EF T HE
—E-NFF+A=+—HULEFE - BWAE
471 ooo,%rz&/hﬁgﬂa;% 405,000/ 7t *

—+F U A A1,323,0005% 7T & 9 2B E 18
2%704,ooo,aru°

HEIEZERIBRENRATEPEESHF
MEY — T \FHPRHBERNEELRE T
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59% EIRE FFOEIZ% - HEHERS
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FERRNIINFBEREREHDLIR TRAEE
T Bk o JBR3001E8E 2 F T #K25.3%  HE
T#13.6% EAEFPBHPFEIEH TE13.5% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Looking ahead in 2019, China's economic policies will be
strengthened to improve the domestic economic environment
while the uncertainties of Sino-US trade disputes will continue
to cause stock market fluctuations. In the long run, Chinese
companies with excellent management and good competitive
landscape could still achieve outstanding performance growth,
thus improving stock price. On the other hand, companies
without performance improvements could lose its support in
face of continuing challenges from downside risks. The asset
management business segment will continue to seek growth in
both scale and performance.

Loan Financing

Loan financing segment includes the provision of financing
guarantee services, loan financing, financing consultancy and
loan referral services in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

The segment revenue generated from loan financing for year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$70,022,000 with segment
profit of HK$54,605,000, compared to the segment revenue of
HK$41,121,000 and segment profit of HK$27,755,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in segment revenue
and profit was mainly contributed by the newly acquire PRC
financing guarantee and financing consultancy services business.

The State Council published the Measures for the Supervision
and Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies ( (gt &
ERAREEEIEMED) )on 2 August 2017 which clarifies the
development direction for financing guarantee business in form
of administrative regulation. The financing guarantee business
will maintain sustainable, stable and healthy development under
the support of the new national regulation. With the synergy
between loan referral services and financing guarantee services
in PRC, it will bring further business opportunity in relation to
supply chain financing services to parallel import car business, as
well as factoring business in PRC.

For risk management purposes, our loan financing team in PRC
established corresponding credit policy and operation procedures.
Due diligence and credit reviews are routinely performed for
existing and potential customers. For financing guarantee
services, our financing team will require sufficient pledge of
assets.

BERBNWmR DN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

In the government report of the Second Session of the 13th
National People’s Congress stated that the main focus of the
central government in 2019 shall be exerting reform efforts and
improving the money and credit supply mechanism, guiding
financial institutions to extend credit quota and reducing the cost
of loans by utilizing quantitative and pricing monetary policy,
such as reserve requirement ratio and interest rates, and releasing
funds to support the development of private enterprises, and
small and micro enterprises. The management believe that
these policies will have a positive impact on the financing and
credit market, and will benefit the Group’s supply chain finance
business and financial advisory services business in Mainland
China.

The loan financing operations in Hong Kong primarily involved in
mortgage loan operation. To remain competitive while mitigating
the overall credit risk, we adopted a stringent credit approval
policy and before the loan was approved, we worked closely
with reputable professionals for property valuation in valuing the
property provided by customers for the mortgage loan application
to ensure the loan to value ratio of the relevant properties are
maintained at a reasonable level. Credit assessment including
full review of credit history and personal TU credit report of the
potential customers is performed. In addition, we installed tools
to monitor the trend in the property market which will provide
alert to our credit team in case of significant fluctuation or
irregularity is noted in the mortgage under supervision.

The Group will continue to implement a prudent strategy
and maintain its focus on high net worth customers through
building closer partnership with our business partners which act
as loan referral agents and has established stringent internal
loan management system, including credit assessment and risk
management as mentioned above. In addition, we cooperate
tightly with external professionals for property valuation, credit
check and legal counsel.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of the loans and interest
receivables was approximately HK$113,952,000 (2017:
HK$189,891,000). Interest rate of the loans ranged from 6%
to 30% (2017: 6.6% to 18%) per annum. As at 31 December
2018, the total guarantee issued by our financing guarantee
operation was approximately RMB492 million (as at 31 December
2017: RMB349 million).

E+ZEE2BEARZREZBRMFREP R
2019F R RBFH F E TERB RN ET
EEREERMEY ERERTFRERR
R MEEHEMERFTER SIS REER
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BRI RIS R
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B RTHEREERBEERRNARKERRF
N HAAIRA-EBREONEEFRLEE  ME
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EREFEREKF -RATSETEERF
fh BREEEEMNEEEPMNEECHELEA
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Fontsh RPEMEMEE FEFELER
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F6% E30% (ZE—+F:66% £18% ) °
RZEBE-NE+-_A=1+—HB BEEFRE
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T(R-ZZE—+F+_A=+—0: AR
349,000,0007T,) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Non-fulfillment of profit guarantee of Sino Wealth Group
and Access China Group

According to the agreements in relation to the acquisition of Sino
Wealth Investment Co., Limited (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Sino Wealth Group”) and Access China Group Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Access China Group”), the
vendors of each acquisition had guaranteed that the audited
net profit after tax of It & Rt 17 B & &R A R 2 5] (Beijing
An Jia Shi Hang Financing Guarantee Company Limited) and
It R {E5 M E E B 2 AR 2 Al (Beijing Xin Nuo Wei Assets
Management Limited) would be not less than RMB20 million
and RMB30 million respectively for the year ended 31 December
2018. If the guaranteed profits were not met, a compensation
being 1.2 times of the shortfall between the difference of
the profit guarantee and the actual audited net profit after
tax (the “Shortfall”) would be deducted from the partial cash
consideration payable to the respective vendors.

Due to the adverse situation in the financial sector in the PRC
which resulted in a tighten of funding source, the operation of
provision of financing guarantee services of Sino Wealth Group
and financing consultancy and loan referral services which were
the principal activities of Access China Group had encountered
severe challenge in identifying various source of funding to the
clients and generating relevant income. As a result, both Sino
Wealth Group and Access China Group failed to meet the profit
guarantees and the Shortfalls were deducted from the partial
cash considerations to be paid.

For Sino Wealth Group, the audited net profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2018 subject to consideration of
profit guarantee was approximately RMB15.5 million and the
Shortfall of approximately HK$6.3 million (being 1.2 times of the
difference between the audited net profit after tax and the profit
guarantee of RMB20 million) was deducted from the next part
payment of the consideration in the sum of HK$11 million paid
by the Group to the vendor.

For Access China Group, the audited net profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2018 subject to consideration of profit
guarantee was approximately RMB28 million and the Shortfall of
approximately HK$2.8 million (being 1.2 times of the difference
between the audited net profit after tax and the profit guarantee
of RMB30 million) was deducted from the next part payment of
the consideration in the sum of HK$10 million paid by the Group
to the vendor.

BEEEN WK DT

Sino Wealth 5B % Access China £ B R BT
v A 4R 3%

1R % & B8 UL B8 Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited (32 R H [ /8 2 7] - £t 78 [ Sino Wealth
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EERBEUWBCEAERBIERLRKEITE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Litigation B
PRC & B

12

() The Company has appointed PRC legal advisers and the

applications for arbitration to enforce the variable interest
entity contracts (the "VIE Contracts”) have been filed
and accepted by i/ # % & & (Shanghai Arbitration
Commission, “SAC”) in August 2016 (the “Arbitration”).
Details of the applications are set out in the announcement
dated 18 August 2016. On 22 February 2017, the PRC legal
advisers of the Company received three decisions issued by
the SAC to suspend the Arbitration as (i) /&% a% & AR
2 7] (Shanghai Xinsheng Pawnshop Limited, “Xinsheng”), &
HIRERE (£E)BR 2 7] (Shanghai Kuailu Investment
Group Company Limited, “Shanghai Kuailu”) and _£/&# R
# & AR A A (Shanghai Zhongyuan Pawnshop Company
Limited, “Zhongyuan”) are involved in a criminal investigation
conducted by the public security authority of Shanghai City,
PRC; and (ii) the shares of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were
frozen by PRC public security authority. As such, it was
stated that such circumstances would create obstacles for
submitting evidence to SAC, and SAC agreed to suspend
the Arbitration with effect from 21 February 2017. As we
are not a party of the criminal investigation in relation to
Shanghai Kuailu conducted by the public security authority
of Shanghai City, PRC, we have no access to the latest status
nor the outstanding matters and the expected time of the
completion of such investigation. Up to the date of this
report, the Arbitration was still suspended and the PRC legal
advisers of the Company has not received any oral or written
updates from SAC on when the Arbitration will be resumed
nor the status of the criminal investigation. Since the effective
control of the Group over the two subsidiaries was governed
by the VIE Contracts, the feasible way to re-gain control of
the subsidiaries was to enforce such VIE Contracts through
the Arbitration and the PRC legal advisers of the Company
will closely monitor the latest development of the cases and
would proceed to resume the Arbitration once the criminal
investigation is completed. The financial impacts of the
de-consolidation resulting from the incident has been fully
reflected in the financial year of 2016 and the suspension of
the Arbitration claim is not expected to create any adverse
impact on the Group as whole.

()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(I The financing guarantee subsidiary of the Group has
commenced a litigation as the plaintiff against a P2P platform
in Beijing, PRC. The matter is related to the guarantee deposit
paid to and withheld by a P2P platform in the course of our
financial guarantee business. The hearing commenced in
March 2019 and no judicial decision has been promulgated
up to the date of this report. The Board believe that there is
no significant financial impact on the Group.

The Directors continue to follow up the progress of the incident
addressed in section “Litigation”.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly consist
of the operating expenses of each of industrial property
development, general trading, loan financing, securities
brokerage and insurance brokerage as well as the overall
administrative expenses including but not limited to the office
utilities and administration, legal and professional fee, operating
lease payments, employee benefit expenses, depreciation and
amortization, etc. Administrative and other operating expenses
amounted to approximately HK$115,836,000 during the year
under review, which is increased by HK$16,039,000 as compared
to last year. The increase mainly resulted from the increase in
staff salary and overall expenses as a consequence of the growth
in different operations of the Group. The management will
continue to act on its stringent measures on costs control to
contain the administrative and other expenses at a reasonable
level.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group has recognised a provision for net impairment on the
financial assets of approximately HK$7,523,000 in accordance
to the new requirement of HKFRS 9 during the year, the amount
mainly in relation to the loan receivable, account receivables and
interest receivable of certain customers in HK and PRC.

Finance Costs

Finance costs have decreased from approximately HK$16,340,000
in 2017 to approximately HK$11,560,000 in 2018. The decrease
in the finance costs was caused by repayment of bank and
other loans during the year and decrease in imputed interest on
deferred consideration.

BEEEN WK DT

) "EBHBMEERHEBERATNENRE S
HEFBEILRE —KP2PF AR TR
ZFRERRPERERERERP AT
FZPPFAMERREL -FRER_Z
—NEF=ZARESE BEEARELL
WMAELEMEEHR EEERAEARN
EETAREXREATEZE-

EEHETRE [Fe ] —EMRESEMER -

B 75 ol R
TRRAEEAX

THEEMNEERST T ERRE I XRAYESR
B-—RES ERME BHLELRRERL
HEEBFEECEERMIUAREBEBITBAY
BREBTAERBAEKEBRERE LAEME
¥ER - KE2HENR BRERMNAZ IE
NE#EHEE ROBEFR TR EEMEERS
#9/44115,836,00078 7T * 88 A F 12 5116,039,000
BT - FAXENEFEARASETRERE R
BHRETHe MNEBRIIENMAS - BEER
B IR B BRSO AR BE IR R i LARBIRTT B
HES T aIE/KFE-

TREEZRERRZEHE

AEBCRFARBEETBHREENF9
B CTHEREMEE ZRBEFERED
7,523,000 ZeBEESRBEERFH
ETEFHEKRER BUWERZ L ERKFIE -

§t 35 AN

MR AE —ZF — -+ FH#%16,340,0007 7T
A E T — NFEHAI11,560,00078 7T © BF 75
AR DT AR FEREERTREME R
NIEEREHERN B -

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts the policy of prudence in managing its working
capital. The operation of the Group was primarily financed by
internally generated cash flow and external financing. As at
31 December 2018, the shareholders’ fund and net current assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$664,625,000
(31 December 2017: HK$714,829,000) and HK$401,468,000
(31 December 2017: HK$464,442,000) respectively. On the
same date, the Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to
HK$269,578,000 (31 December 2017: HK$410,117,000) which
were principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
and the current ratio was 3.49 (31 December 2017: 3.03).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi at the fixed rate of 6.37%
amounted to approximately HK$88,226,000 (31 December
2017: HK$159,093,000) of which approximately HK$8,538,000
is repayable within 1 year, approximately HK$11,384,000 is
repayable between 1 to 2 years, approximately HK$36,998,000
is repayable between 2 to 5 years and approximately
HK$31,306,000 is repayable over 5 years. The gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings over net assets, was
13% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 22%).

There was no capital commitment in respect of the acquisition
and construction of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and expenses are
mainly in Hong Kong dollars & Renminbi. Therefore the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
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Actual use of proceeds of 2017 Open Offer

In June 2017, the Company completed an open offer on the
basis of one offer share for every two existing shares of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per offer shares
(the “2017 Open Offer”) and a net amount of approximately
HK$222 million was raised. The intended and actual use of the
net proceeds from the 2017 Open Offer is stated as below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A —
N
]\7

BEEEN WK DT

—E-tHEAHRERGRENERAR

T—tF XA ARRERUREBESR
BERMOIOBLESFEAAFMRKRIES
PR rEE —REERD CEEETHAR
BE([Z2—1F 2 HARE|) REGSFEY
222,000,000 T —E—+FE R NFBREMRE
REFENBTLAERRAERHIOT

Amount
(HK$ million) Intended use Actual use
T8
(BB8#ET) BERR BRAR
25 For expansion of money lending Fully utilised as intended
business
BAMEER BEIRBEREER
20 For development of factoring business ~ The amount has not been utilised and
in the PRC is expected to be used as intended
within 12 months
A AR B B e AR I SR 7S ZR AR AN A R TR 1218 A R
REERERES
5 For expansion of insurance brokerage Fully utilised as intended
business
BEARE K4 X BEIRBTERERER
22 For general working capital Fully utilised as general working capital
including but not limited to office
and administrative expenses, rent,
salary, etc.
—REEES BHAE-—REEES BRETR
RRRERITEREX e HEZF
150 For future investment The amount has been utilised as
partial payment to the vendors for
the acquisition of Sino Wealth
Investment Co. Limited.
RRILE Z R A C B EL YA Sino Wealth
Investment Co. Limited 1% 7 1EH #Y
EIZNRE
Total 222

#at
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Assets impairment loss

The impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$7,143,000
(the “Impairment”) recorded for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$14,650,000) was mainly related to the
impairment loss on goodwill of the Type 1 & 9 licensed
operations (the “Impaired Operations”). The Impaired Operations
were acquired by the Group in 2016 with the objective to
expand the operations to the potential clients in the PRC as
there was increasingly demand for those clients to invest in the
securities in the local market. However, despite the efforts spent
by the management and the operation team on developing the
business, it has failed to meet the growth rate forecast in 2018
as expected and thus the valuation conducted by our external
valuer in 2018 has to be adjusted accordingly, resulting in the
impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Fund Investments

Our investment portfolio is classified according to HKFRS 9. The
carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss during the year were approximately
HK$15,872,000 and HK$77,695,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017: available-for-sale
investments: HK$25,521,000 and HK$22,410,000). The
investment portfolio includes unlisted investment funds, investing
primarily in equity of companies listed in PRC and Hong Kong,
and investment in property development project in PRC.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no significant contingent liabilities noted as at
31 December 2018.

Capital Structure

In May and June 2018, upon the exercise of the share options
at an exercise prices of HK$0.187 and HK$0.188 per share,
13,170,000 new shares were issued. In late December 2018, the
Company received 9,000,000 share options exercise request at
an exercise prices of HK$0.187 and those shares were issued in
January 2019.

Grant of Share Options

On 20 March 2018, the Company granted 457,580,000 share
options to certain eligible persons. Share-based payment
expenses of approximately HK$40,313,000 was recognised. Such
one-off non-cash expenses result in a material negative impact to
the financial performance of the Group in 2018.

BEEREBR

BHE_ZT— \F+-_A=+—BILtFEHRSE
Y a2 R (B B 18 497,143,0008 70 (—Z —+
% 114,650,000 7T) ([EE]) FEZHE1K9
MEEER([EREEE]EEREESE
BB -BEREEFBEIHAAEER-Z—FK
B BEBEREAMTSEFNREEE KA
X RPERBREBERPEK RN &
EEEERKEEFRNNERER BREE
BRI T — N\ FRE R RGN At M3
HEMR - N\FETNHERAELARE
HE ERNBE_ZE-\E+-_A=+—8
IEFESRERERSE-

BEERE

FR - BRMNKEEEGRBEE BT RS E
BIEOSRETT DI - B AFEFAEMEZEUK
EHEMEEREATFESAEENEME
EfER_E—\F+_A=+—HZKEMA
{E#) 415,872,000/ 7T % 77,695,000/ 7T ( 1A
—E—+F+-_A=+—H:aHEERE:
25,521,000/ JT }%22,410,00058 7T ) & &4
EERRBERENRIELEMREES FEEKES L
MARMRE UREFEEHEERIER N
&

HREE

AEBR T N\F+_A=+—HILES

EXRRE

RZFE—NFHAEKNA RIEER0.187%
TLKRON8SHE LM ITHEITEBARERET
13,170,000 T 1H - M —FE—N\F+=_AF
) KA &) # #9,000,00010 BB AR AE B 1TIE B
K ITEERCISTEL BRI _Z—N
F—RE#EITo

KRB R E

RZZE—N\F=ZA=-+H ARaEETEE
% AN+ 1H457,580,00017 BE A% #E o B #E R LA
B 15 & 1~ #0038 B X £940,313,00078 7 ° 5% — X
MIEREAITYHAEBR T N\FHTHER
RELEEAEHETZE-

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 14 June 2018, the Company received conversion notice from
a noteholder in respect of the exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$7,644,106 at
the conversion price of HK$0.24 per share. As a result of the
conversion, on 15 June 2018, the Company allotted and issued
31,850,442 shares in aggregate to the noteholders. Details of
the change in share capital of the Group are set out in note 37
to this report.

Charges on Assets

Our warehouse located in Taicang with the following carrying
amounts have been pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

BEEEN WK DT

RZZE-—NENATEHB ARRZEZE
BEANEBRBN AAEBIZFR0.24%5 T
MERETE A EER7,644,1068TT2 =
TN FERIBREEE S —AFAHRE
BRI A - AN ETZER R T
—N\FERNATER  ARAREZEFHE AL
N EE17 6 $£31,850,442/% M 1 o 7K 52 B A9 L X
S F BN AR EN 3T -

BEREE

AR AREHNREEC A AEEERZ —K
RTBEMELEM EEREEWAT:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Property, plant and equipment ERN Y&y
(RMB81,181,000) ( AEK®81,181,0007T) 92,416 102,527

Prepaid lease payments A HEE IR

(RMB20,223,000) ( AR #20,223,0005T) 23,021 25,040
115,437 127,567

Save for the above, the Group had not charged other assets to
secure its borrowings.

Foreign currency exposure

As confirmed by the Directors, the Group's present operations
are mainly carried out in PRC and HK, and all of the Group's
receipts and payments in relation to the operations are basically
denominated in Renminbi & HK dollars. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risks. The management will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange exposure and take appropriate measures if needed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Future Plans for material investments or capital assets

Up to the report date, there was no specific plan for material
investments and acquisition of capital assets. However, the Group
will continue to seek new business development opportunities
especially in developing financial services related business.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 138 employees in
Hong Kong and PRC (2017: 138 employees). Remuneration is
determined by reference to their respective qualifications and
experiences and according to the prevailing industry practice.
Besides salary payments, our staff benefits include contribution of
mandatory provident fund, a discretionary bonus program and a
share option scheme. As required by PRC regulations, the Group
makes contributions to mandatory social security funds for the
benefit of the Group’s PRC employees that provide for pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, personal
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds. The
total staff costs was approximately HK$50,626,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$32,951,000).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2019 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 6 June 2019.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 3 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 31 May 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director, chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ")
and the chairman of the Board on 30 June 2016. Mr. Liu
ceased to act as the CEO on 8 June 2018. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu was previously
the chief executive officer of ZE FL & B K7D B R A F)
(Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate specialising in
investment, real estate development, tourism development and
bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry and has extensive
management experience. He graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a major in Applied Chemistry in July 1994. Mr. Liu
also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Tsinghua University in July 2005.

Mr. Yang Dayong, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
director and CEO on 8 June 2018. He is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Yang is the founder of it &
TR 1TEEE &R A BR A 7 (Beijing Anjia Shihang Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd.). He has more than 20 years of experience in
the field of fintech investment, risk management and merger and
acquisition. Mr. Yang graduated from Peking University with a
degree in Economics. He received a Master’s degree in Economics
from Tsinghua University and a Doctoral degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated as
an executive Director on 5 July 2016. Mr. Zhang is currently the
managing director of Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited
which was previously owned by a Hong Kong listed company.
He has over 20 years of experience in investment, corporate
management and international trade industry. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Jilin University of Technology (now known as Jilin
University) with a major in Metallic Materials Engineering.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He was the company
secretary of C&D International Investment Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1908), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), from July 2015 to May
2016. Mr. Kwan holds a Master's degree in Accounting from
Curtin University of Technology (now known as Curtin University).

Dr. Lyu Ziang (formerly known as Lu Ziang), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 July
2016. He is currently the vice president of fk #B & B 28 (= £ &
AR A "] (Chengdu Shulianyixin Technology Company Limited).
Dr. Lyu was the director of D/BB S EZHEER T2
Bl B 5 7R 0 (Shanghai Trade Data Mining and Application
Engineering Technology Research Center) from 2011 to 2016. He
has years of experience in identification and control of trade and
financial risks. Dr. Lyu graduated from Tsinghua University with a
degree in Thermo-Dynamic Engineering and Control in July 1994
and also received a Master’s degree in Computer Software and
Theory as well as a Doctoral degree in Computer Technology
Application from Beijing Jiaotong University in May 2003 and July
2012 respectively.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of RIIBAL K EZME FHBR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He

graduated from PR7EE F 55 FIE BT (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.

BMIFAITES

REZERE A+ R_FT—RAFHAMN
FEZERBIUNNTEZ KRBT EGRT
firgmE8 BEERCES T HESR
BIOCFABRYBERNEZR EH A KR
CE-RFEAE_ZE-RFhANMEEGS
EEMAERXSMAERAR ([BRAr]) EHa
AREERRESEARAR (ROAR:
1908) 2 R AIME B ERAMERZAE
(GRERHERS) @t BR LB

BFBELt W+Am R-_E—A~"FtAA
AERTABIIENITE F o 1K IR &P S
EEREERAFFER BELIR T ——
FE_T-NFHHESETLEESEES
PRELFE A TR MR O BRI &
THESREHERFABEEZFL R 218
TR —NANENFEAEXERNFERBLES
HEEF H TIREZFIEMN WD RR_TET=
FREAR-_TE——F+HtAEBSIERTBKRE
Mt E MBS RERBE T EN M EKER
SRR Snt=LIVAS

ARFRE - W+Om R-F—RNFEXA
—THEZERBIUIIRTES - BERITRY
BAREMEFARAA (—HEFREE
F17% 2 ODM R#% M BB H BB EERE 2
NRAEZFERE-ALERNKRE CEER
REMITED EHEAB20F K5 - REENRK
P& INE B EEINEHGE -

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, except for the following deviations:

— Code Provision A.5 stipulates that a nomination committee
should be established to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Director.

The Company established the nomination committee on
28 August 2018. Prior to the nomination committee was
established, the Board was responsible for the appointment
of its own members. The chairman of the Board is responsible
for identifying appropriate candidate and proposing qualified
candidate to the Board for consideration. The Board will
review profiles of the candidate recommended by the
chairman and make recommendation of the appointment
and re-election of the Directors. Candidates are appointed to
the Board on the basis of their skill, competence, diversity of
perspectives and experience that they can contribute to the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes that an increasing diversity at the Board
level is inductive to the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and the Company’s sustainable development. All
Directors share their competence to bring sustainable growth
to the Company. Recognizing diversity is a wider issue than
just gender diversity, the Board aims to achieve diversity on the
Board in other respects including age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicities, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. In identifying suitable candidates for
appointments to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
take into consideration the Company’s business models and
specific needs. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria and perspectives. The Nomination Committee
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the Board and the diversity representation of the
Board, how the Board works together as a unit, and other factors
relevant to its effectiveness.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, being
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman), Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Zhang Peidong, and three independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.
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R-IE-N\FR BET4REFSSEN—

14 board meetings and 1 general meetings were held during the
year of 2018. The individual attendance record is as follows:

IRBER K& © ERIRC B #) H F sk T

Board General

Meetings Meetings

Attended/ Attended/

Eligible to Eligible to

Directors attend attend

EHE BHE

FERHE /EREE

Exg IR

= 2RXE RERE

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr. Liu Kequan R RAEAE 14/14 1/1

Mr. Yang Dayong (Note 1) BRBEE (HaE1) 8/8 0/0

Mr. Zhang Peidong SOMR L& 14/14 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIIHTEE:

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor FAEE XL 14/14 171

Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHELT 14/14 1/1

Dr. Rui Mingjie (Note 2) REARE T (H5E2) 4/4 0/1

Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 14/14 0/1

Notes:

1. Mr. Yang Dayong was appointed as Director on 8 June 2018.

2. Dr. Rui Mingjie retired as Director on 6 June 2018.

Due to other business engagement, some of the Directors were
unable to attend the general meetings held during the year.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management
is delegated to the three executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan,
Mr. Yang Dayong and Mr. Zhang Peidong.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors are given timely access to relevant information prior
to each board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings. At the
same time, Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials to allow them to make informed decisions
on matters arising from board meetings.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.
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Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber with academic and professional qualifications in
accounting, financial, management and various business fields
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with the prevailing Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Director is encouraged to
attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director or further enhancement of professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online
aids or reading relevant materials. The company secretary
of the Company continuously updates all Directors on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. During the year under
review, the current Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan, Mr. Yang
Dayong, Mr. Zhang Peidong, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training courses
or by reading materials.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and monitor the financial reporting and
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman),
Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management and the auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
the auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2018.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the related results announcement and auditor’s report, and made
recommendation to the Board that the same be approved.

TEERRE

ERVERZES ([ERLEE]) -

R 1 E T Al A <7 RIER SO E & T A
BERZBENRERBERNRERARAN
Bt 765 B S % JRL B 2R LA J% PR T B 4 %UF EZ
%EE%’EQEB MBI FRMITEFTHELELE
( BT SBEMEARFREMAK-

REBFR BZLZECCBREEABR MM
SHhH AR 5 AR R B PR A R & 5T R B S B B
W& T Z o BB IR - R ER B I A% R AR
EH BRENAKRERE_T—tF T A
ST HLEFENEERRMBRERLARHE
BHE-_ZT-N\FRA=THIEREABHRE
e

N EREREECENBE T \F 1+
A=+t —BLFENGAMBHRREABD
FENMANZBE RS YAEESELRE
AFE R E AR -

Three Audit Committee meetings were convened during the year. FR ZHAMA-AEZZEe2Z -ERIKE
The individual attendance records are as follows: W ER T
Number of

Directors attendance
= R B
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) AERLE (FE) 3/3
Dr. Lyu Ziang afaEL 3/3
Dr. Rui Mingjie (Note 1) WA (M) 11
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 3/3
Note: B3
1. Dr. Rui Mingjie ceased to serve as the member of Audit Committee 1. RARELTRZZ-NFESANBTHEELESE

on 6 June 2018. mEEE@KE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to advise
and recommend the Board on the remuneration policy and
framework of the Company’s Directors and senior management,
as well as review and determine the remuneration of individual
executive Directors and senior management with reference to
the Company’s objectives from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) and Mr. Kwan Kei
Chor and one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Peidong.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy and framework of
the Company’s Directors and senior management, assessed
the performance of executive Directors and determined the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the Company’s objectives.

Two Remuneration Committee meeting was convened during the
year. The individual attendance records are as follows:
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Il

REBEFA FHEZESERMARAEZER
BREEENFMBR MR AR TES
MRE W2 ERARFNBEREEBAINTE
ENSRERENTHGE-

R RARMAHHNEERGHE - BRKE
AR T

Number of
Directors attendance
= R &
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) afRiEL (EE) 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor RAEE L E 2/2
Dr. Rui Mingjie (Note 1) REARIE L (FFE1) 0/0
Mr. Zhang Peidong SROMR A& 2/2

Note:

1. Dr. Rui Mingjie ceased to serve as the member of Remuneration
Committee on 6 June 2018.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties
of the Nomination Committee are (a) to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, with due regard to the diversity of the Board;
(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) to assess the independence of INEDs and to review the
INEDs" annual confirmation on their independence; (d) to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and (e) before appointments are made by the Board,
to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation to prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the
Nomination Committee to review the size, structure, composition
as well as diversity of the Board, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
re-election of the Directors. The Nomination Committee has also
reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered that the Group has achieved the objectives of the
board diversity policy during the year under review.

The Nomination Committee follows its established nomination
policy in the selection of candidates for director appointments.
The Bye-Laws of the Company set out the process for the
appointment of Board members. In the event that the vacancy
to be filled is a casual vacancy, or an additional Director is to be
appointed, the Board will make the appointment of the Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws. In the event that the vacancy
has arisen as a result of normal retirement or rotation, the Board
shall present the candidates to the shareholders for election in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The Board shall avail sufficient
information to enable the shareholders to make an informed
choice. When a vacancy arises on the Board (through resignation,
rotation etc) or in the event that an additional Director is to
be appointed, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
Board’s needs in terms of skills, competencies and other diversity
considerations with due regard to any on-going major projects
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and develop a profile of the required candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall invite Board members to submit to it profiles of
interested potential Board members. The Nomination Committee
shall consider the profiles received and select candidates
whom it shall interview to assess suitability for the position. In
selecting the potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
shall consider, in addition to the requirements in the Bye-Laws
of the Company, the mandatory regulatory requirements. The
candidate is required to expressly disclose the nature and extent
of other activities or appointments which may give rise to conflict
of interests, and hence his/her independence. The Nomination
Committee shall make its recommendation on the candidate to
the Board, and ultimately to the shareholders if required.

The Company values, promotes, and observes the Board diversity
policy in the composition of its Board of Directors. The Company
implements the policy as a part of the recruitment and selection
process in appointment of a member of the Board. The Company
is initiating the use of a matrix to facilitate a review of the skills,
competencies, experience and other attributes of the Board
members to establishe a baseline. Selection of a candidate is
generally made based on a range of diversity objectives against
the baseline in the Board diversity policy. Particular regard will
be paid to the benefits of balance of skills, knowledge and
experience, and perspective differentiations introduced to
the Board from the candidates, including varied educational
background, and extensive expertise, knowledge and experience
in technology, investment, trade and financial risks identification
and control, international trade, corporate management to
professional qualification in accounting and other professional
fields.
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Number of
Directors attendance
= R E
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) Bl REHE(XFE) 171
Dr. Lyu Ziang aFHEL 1/1
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole performs the corporate governance duties
which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practice on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditors, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,100,000 and HK$800,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary of the Company is
Ms. Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Our published documents
together with the latest corporate information and news are also
made available on the website of the Company. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from Shareholders at its
annual general meeting.

Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote in
Shareholder’s meetings. According to Bye-law 57 of the bye-laws
of the Company, any 2 or more Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of a written requisition in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board. Such requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at Company’s head office.

Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the bye-laws of the Company, no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
by some Shareholders (not being the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had not
been any changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
The Company's bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and the
Company’s assets and reviewing their effectiveness. Review of
the Group's internal controls include major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to ensure their effectiveness include
providing a clear policies and procedure, as well as a reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across
business operations.

The Group’s risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e I|dentification of significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

e Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.
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Risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives are
identified, evaluated and prioritized by department managers.
Management will assess the nature and impact of those risks, risk
register are then established. The Audit Committee is responsible
to manage the risk management process. Risks which cannot be
accepted by the Group are transferred, eliminated or controlled
through risk mitigation measures. Each risk mitigation measure
has a risk owner who is a department manager or designated
person who will be assigned to ensure accountability. Risks
owners are also responsible for monitoring the status of the risk
mitigation measures for risks under their areas of responsibility.

Due to the size of the Group and cost effectiveness consideration,
the Group does not have an internal audit function. Instead, the
Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of
internal control systems of the Group, assessing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and in
performing the internal audit functions for the Group. The review
covers major activities of the Group in rotation basis and also the
risk management functions. Deficiencies (if any) are identified
and improvement recommendations as well as remedial actions
are proposed.

Audit Committee and the Board receives the risk management
report and internal control report by the independent professional
advisor annually. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considers them to the effective and adequate.

Regarding the procedure and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group is aware of
its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The handling
and dissemination of inside information are regulated to ensure
the information is kept strictly confidential before disclosure is
appropriately approved. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of inside information. The Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public if it believes that the
confidentiality may have been breached.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board does not have a policy to pay any fixed dividend or
a pre-determined future dividend distribution policy. The Board
has absolute discretion to recommend any dividend declaration.
Dividend will depend on our financial conditions, results of
operations, cash availability, statutory and regulatory restrictions
in relation thereto, future prospects, and any other factors that
the directors may consider relevant. In any event, the Company
will not be in a position to pay or declare dividends until such
time as it has profits available for that purpose as determined in
accordance with the applicable law.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 64.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 247 and
248 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in notes 49 and 50 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2017: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company'’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
11.75% and 38.54% of the Group's total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 100% and 100% of the Group's total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 8 June 2018)

Mr. Zhang Peidong
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Lyu Ziang
Dr. Rui Mingjie
(retired on 6 June 2018)
Mr. Zhou Liangyu

Pursuant to Bye-laws 91 and 99(B) of the bye-laws of
the Company, Mr. Yang Dayong (“Mr. Yang"”), Mr. Zhang
Peidong (“Mr. Zhang") and Mr. Zhou Liangyu (“Mr. Zhou")
will retire from office as Directors at the 2019 AGM and
Mr. Yang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhou, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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MK A ) Bk (b) REER AR IR FE 5 & HR & {7
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Total number Approximate

Number of Number of of shares and percentage
issued shares underlying underlying of the issued
Director Nature of Interests held shares held shares voting shares
EE®T
CEES
FisE 81T P e R R AR ROBL
B BEME ROHE RO#E ROEH B
Liu Kequan ("Mr. Liu") Corporate interests 1,447,750,000 - 1,447,750,000 20.94%
(Note 1)
nm (T81%E]) EERER (BzET)
Yang Dayong (“Mr. Yang”) Corporate and 614,826,000 - 614,826,000 8.89%
family interests (Note 2)
BRE(HEE]) EERRGER (PEE2)
Notes: {ix=3
1. The interests are held by Eastern Spring Global Limited. Mr. Liu 1. ZERDARERFIEBRAAEE 2%

is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of

Eastern Spring Global Limited.

2. The interests include (i) 612,810,000 shares held by Eternally
Sunny Limited and (ii) 2,016,000 shares held by Mrs. Yang,
being the spouse of Mr. Yang. Mr. Yang is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Eternally Sunny Limited.
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company’s associated corporations

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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REQXRMEBEEROREBRRO ZHR

Approximate

percentage
Number of to issued
shares/amount  voting shares/
of registered registered
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest  Class capital capital
HERT
BREERD
RA®E/ ERELRZ
EE BB EEEE BEtE %5 dAMEXTE BOBSH
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 55 shares 55%
Service Limited (Note 3)
B4 ERERESBRBERAF EERR (HF3) LRk 550%
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 3 shares 100%
(Note 3)
EERR (HF3) LRk 3
SEENREDA (LE)BERRA Corporate interests  Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Dingtai Runhe Investment (Note 3)
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)  ZE#z (M:3) HMEX AR
31,000,0007T
Note: B =T -
3. 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited (“Long 3. EEERARA([EBE]EBEITRAN

Tu") is owned by Mr. Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial
owner of 55 shares of Intraday Financial Information Service
Limited (“Intraday”), which is 55% of its issued share capital,
whilst the remaining 45 shares, which represents 45% of the
issued share capital of Intraday, is owned by the Company.
Intraday is the legal and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD
Enterprise Limited (“aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share
capital. aBCD is the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered
capital of Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which is its entire equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate
percentage to

No. of issued

Name Nature of interest shares held voting share

EE BT

EREERG

a| A EHEME RO E A8 BMAOBE DL

Eastern Spring Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,447,750,000 20.94%
RRBREARAQA EREAA

Eternally Sunny Limited Beneficial owner 612,810,000 8.86%
EFFHRAA ERnfERA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so farasis B EXFIHEEEIN R _Z—N\F+ A

known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 November
2014 (the "Oriental SPA") in relation to the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Oriental Credit Holdings Limited
("Oriental Credit”), the consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company by way of issue of convertible notes. The holder of
the convertible notes is entitled to convert it into new ordinary
shares at any time between the 30th business day after the issue
of 2015 convertible notes and ending on the 21st business day
before the maturity date (i.e. the 5th anniversary of the date of
issue of the respective convertible notes). If the convertible notes
have not been converted, it will be redeemed on maturity date
at the entire principal amount. The convertible notes bear no
interest.

On 3 June 2015, the Company issued the 2014 convertible notes
with principal amount of HK$85,401,768.19 with conversion
price of HK$1.2 per conversion share.

Following the completion of share subdivision of the Company
on 28 December 2015, the conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.24 per conversion share and pursuant to the second
supplemental agreement to the Oriental SPA dated 8 January
2016, the conversion period of the convertible notes was
amended to a period from the 5th business day after the issue
of the audited accounts of the Oriental Credit for the respective
financial years and ending on the 21st business day before the
maturity date.

On 8 March 2016, the Company issued the 2015 convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$42,000,000 with conversion
price of HK$0.24 per conversion share.
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During the year of 2016, convertible notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$119,757,662.10 were converted and
498,990,258 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued by
the Company accordingly.

On 21 March 2017, the company announced that according
to the audited financial statements of Oriental Credit and
its subsidiaries (“Oriental Credit Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016 issued by HLM CPA Limited on 20 March,
2017, Oriental Credit Group was making a loss for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Based on the adjustment
formula, the adjusted principal amount of the 2016 convertible
note was a negative amount. As such, the Company was not
required to issue the 2016 convertible note according to the
Oriental SPA.

No convertible note was converted during the year of 2017 and
no new ordinary share was allotted and issued by the Company
accordingly.

During the period under review, convertible notes with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$7,644,106.09 were converted
and 31,850,442 new ordinary shares were alloted and issued by
the Company accordingly. The shareholding of the substantial
shareholders of the Company, namely Eastern Spring Global
Limited and Eternally Sunny Limited was decreased.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movement of the convertible notes during the year
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ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: HXKT}‘E’E}]%}% FEIBS
Amount of convertible notes
TRREESE

Number of share Balance as at
Balance as at Granted Exercised allotted and issued 31 December
Holder 1January 2018 during the period  during the period Conversion price upon conversion 2018
RZEB-N\F
R=ZZ-N\%F REBRERER +=A=+-8
BEA —R—B#&# REAREL RERTE BRE BITNROHUE &eh
Vendors of the SPA HK$7,644,106.09 - HK$7,644,106.09 HK$0.24 31,850,442 -
EERENES 7,644,106.097 7T - 7,644,106.097% T 0.247% 7T 31,850,442 -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on
20 June 2011.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The participants of the Scheme are as follow:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any invested entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute, by way of joint venture,
business alliance, other business arrangement or otherwise,
to the development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 1,135,271,917 which comprises
448,080,000 shares to be issued under the outstanding options
unexercised and 687,191,917 shares to be issued under the
options not yet being granted, representing approximately
16.40% of the issued share capital (i.e. 6,924,077,621 shares).
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the option and subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
holding of the share options before it can be exercised, unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
of the grant of share options to a grantee. An option may be
accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option by payment from the participant and
receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or on the last date
of the said 28 day period.

The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme will expire on 19 June 2021.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Details of movements in the share options granted under the &HZEZE-T—N\F+-_A=Z+—HBILFERE

Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018 were as T EIE L7 BRENZSHFHBEWT -
follows:
Number of share options held
FsBRERA
Closing
Price of
share
immediately
Balance as Balance before
at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat Exercise  the date of Weighted
1 January during during during 31 December Price grant of average
Category Date of grant 2018 the period the period the period 2018  Exercise Period of Share Options HKS  share options  closing price
S # REREE
“E-N\F ZE-0\F BRERL
-A-8 tZR=t-8 EE REAIN nETH
£5 RiLAH &8 BRzd BRiE Eiapss &h BRENGER BT WmE W
Employees and 20 Nov 2015 37,294,520 - - (37,294,520 - 3tranches from (i) the expiry date of the put option 0.74 0.70 -
consultants period as stated in the sale and purchase agreement dated
20 November 2014 (as amended by the first supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2015 and the second supplemental
agreement dated 8 January 2016); (i) 20 November 2016;
and (i) 20 May 2017 to 19 May 2018
EERERH —I-n% PEZH BOBEAZS-NET-A-TENEERE
T-A=1H (BRBA-Z-RE AZRNE-HARHER
AEA NE-ANBMEZLRRREET)
AR HEREER AR () 28— ~F
T-AZTAE RG) ZF-tERAZTARE
“E-\ERAtAR
28 Dec 2016 147,497,342 - (20,670,000 (126,827,342) - Any time within 28/12/2016 t0 27/12/2018 0.187 0.194 0.206
It S “E-RETZAZTNAE
TZAZtNE “E-\EtZAZTLRERARE
20 March 2018 - 457,580,000 (1,500,000) (5,000,000) 451,080,000  Any time within 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 0.206
“E-\EZAZTH —E-\EZACtAE-E--EZAHARHEAKE
Total 184,791,862 457,580,000 (22,170,000 (169,121,862) 451,080,000
@t

*  This includes an aggregate of 9,000,000 share options which were * ERRERZZE-NF+ABRTENaH®
exercised in December 2018 but such shares were alloted in January 9,000,00017 & J i - MEZF RN =T —N4EF
2019. — AR E -

# 3,000,000 share options lapsed during the period from January to tRZE—NF—AZ= AHH " 3,000,00017 8
March 2019. PR A SR 3
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Board and is based on their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. Directors’
liability insurance policies containing permitted indemnity
provisions have been taken out and maintained in force during
the financial year and as at the date of approval of this report to
provide appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the relevant liabilities and
costs associated with legal proceedings against them.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.
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Risk Mitigation
B 1EC L By

Acquisition risk

Ui Rl

The Group from time to time may acquire
new line of business. If the acquisition
is not done properly, it could seriously
impact the Group. Some of the mergers
and acquisitions issues are:

2N 5= [ F] BE BT W BB R S S AR - iR EE R
BREET ASHAEEENREY
Zo—LHfEMERE:
1. Overpaying for deals (over value)

1. BEXNRS (HBESBS)

2. Insufficient operational diligence
2. EEEBRAESIRE

3. Maintaining strategic clarity and
focus on new business

3. REFEEIBW R B ENHES

4. Culture assimilation challenges

4. bR PkE

5. Employee anxiety, morale, and/or
engagement issues

5. BIEE TR/ RMEEMAE

6. Underestimation of time and
resources required to come up to
speed

6. KA TELEEMBNREMER

7. Insufficient financial and operational
due diligence performed.

7. RETRDNMHE N EEZHRBE

8. Acquired Group fails to perform
8. FTEEBEREEEL

o

Underestimation of integration work

9. EETERAEIIE

10. IT infrastructure capability, transition
costs

10. E BRI ERRIGRE S - BIRK AR

11. Target Group management team
operating capability and loss of key
personnel etc.

N BEREEEREKEESR ) AR
ABRKF-

Before investment in a new project

or acquisition of new business, the

Board should perform full management
assessment and due diligence on the
project/new business, its business

models, financial performance, market
trend, growth opportunities, business
valuations etc. The new business need

to be consistent with the Group's overall
business objectives and the long term
growth.
AEREMBAIREFEL 2o EFE
HIHE T ES HEBEX UBEE
mHBY EREE XHEEFETE
ENEREENEMERAS - MEBT
EREARENEBEBEGERRESE
& o

External consultants/experts/valuators/
advisors/professionals that are expert

in the business to be commissioned to
support technical evaluations or provide
independent assessment.
ZAAREBEBHINDLER, ER
BRD FEAN BEALZFREMTESR
RHB T -

The management should continue to
monitor the progress of the acquisition

to ensure it is on time and within the
expected financial performance. Any
material discrepancy will need to inform
the Board immediately.
ERERBERBEEE UBRRIEE
R E TR BRI R ERERN
BMABHMESEE -

The management should independently
assess the adequacy of all the critical
internal control points and risk areas of the
newly acquired business to ensure all the
controls and risk mitigations are inplaced.
EREREBE L AMBBEBHNME A
0 BR 1 o B K R P R R TR 1 DATE
R3& B AT A 122 I K JE B Rl 85 45 e o
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438

Information Technology Some of the businesses rely much on

R B B B
risk
= BRI &L

IT technologies to keep track of
customer information, transaction
records, personal and financial data

of customers etc. All of those records
are highly confidential. Any leakage

of those information will have serious
consequence to the Group and the
customers. IT issues, cyber-attack, system
failure or interruption of business-critical
IT systems or digital infrastructure could
compromise the Group’s business
operations, reputation and financial
position.

B EB T 0 KREERRMRRREFE
B us BEFNEARMBEER
Z-MAXRECHBEIRERT - %EE
M EMRES S HARER NEFENX
BERR - EERMHERE BENE X
TR 3 B4R S R 1B BRI RSB
FERXEPEAESEERAEENE
BEE BB MM -

— The Group should continue to monitor and
upgrade its softwares and systems to the
latest cyber-attack prevention version.

- AEEEFEEEEZETED S
i%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬂ%%%mﬂ%%w

— Systems vulnerability and penetration
testing should be carried out regularly
to ensure that data are protected from
unauthorized access or uses.

- EHMITRSURRMZE RS AR
BXIRE 2EXREEENSHIE
=18

— Use of up-to-date anti-virus software and
increased patching of key software.

- FRAKFOEESEH S NEREEH
o

— IT risks are also managed through the
application of internal policies and change
management procedures, and contractual
service level agreements with third party
suppliers.

— {5 BBl [ B 7158 38 FE AR A #B BUR AN
EEBREFUAREE=HERFETS
KRB HREITEIR

— The Group should develop a company-
wide cyber risk policy and emergency
procedures in case of security breach.

- REEE G E R A E A R b BR
MZ 2 RAESRF -

— Technical team should receive updates and
training relating to cyber risk and business
continuity.

— BT R B W R R AR AR L Fe A 236
BB MR e B R A

— All the critical data should be back up on
a regular basis and all backup should be
stored in secure and safe places.

- MEEZEEHETHED  MPABHNIE
REERAISEZ 2R -
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Strategy Risk Risk Description Risk Mitigation

R W B B | Bk 4 e 1 [ B
Credit settlement and  For the provision of financial guarantees, — The Group should continue to monitor

counterparty risks
BEHBERRSEHTR

LA
O

loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services, the money will be

the performance of the lending platforms.
Any sign of issue will need to inform

i repaid by clients directly to the lending

platforms, if the lending platform
channels transferred the repayment
money to some unauthorized accounts,
the Group may be liable to repay the
loan as a guarantor.
HRHEREER EXRE EFRENTK
BHRBME  ARARESHT P ERE
MEETaER HEETaRETR
TR AR L RERENRP  NEE A
RREREERERABERER

For the securities brokerage business,
clients of the Group are required to settle
their securities transactions within T+2. If
a client fails to do so, the Group will be
required to settle the amount on behalf
of its client with HKSCC with its own
funds, which could have an impact on
the cash flow position of the Group.

RBESRLEGEME  AEETFPLEARE
T+2N T EF X S EEH ° B P AR EE
BRSEE AEERAREFREELS
BUEBRECHBERBNIR Erlke
TEREENHEREMRA -
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management or the Board for appropriate
actions.
AEEEFEEREEYANRE WA
EARE EARBNEEEREZS U
BRAEETH -

Ongoing monitor and regular review of the
Group financial and operation exposure

to the lending platforms and find ways to
mitigate or lessen the impacts.
NFERNEHEEREHBEEETS
FEBB R EERR S ESORE
By 488 N

BN L

For the brokerage business, the Group
should perform regular review on payment
pattern of the client. If there is signs of
issue, the management should be informed
for action.

MELEBMNE AEBEREHESER
BT RAR S - i B R Rl R -8 - 8 BN 38 A0
EEENEERRITH -
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Risk Description
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Risk Mitigation
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Loan guarantee risk

ERERAR

Litigation risk
EIEAER

One of the Group's businesses is provision

of credit-based financing guarantee

and related loan arrangement and
consultancy services. The credit-based
financing guarantee depends on the
Group's internal credit risk management
strategy and stringent credit checking
policy. If the internal credit risk
management strategy and client credit
checking process are not executed
properly, it could lead to default by
clients. Further, if the P2P platform
becomes insolvent, the Group might
have to repay the lender and the deposit
paid cannot be recovered.

AEEER-BEBRREEREENR

BHERA KA E L P M RS
ENEENREEREFERBEANSERN
A BRME & Bk B IR KBS R B MR B
BEHR--HABRENTAREERR
EERBLEEFPEERERRF A8
HEFEWN WIN HP2PFRENE
8 AEEAETETAERAEBERER
8 B A RE S K ERER

The Group currently involves in a number

of litigations in Hong Kong and PRC.
Lawsuits can have an adverse impact
on the Group. The impact may lead to
significant monetary settlements that
materially impact the Group and the
Group’s reputation would be lost.

ASBERESBERPENE TR

A EEEHARBELENNEE
MEFHAEEEEAZENEREE
mE YT AEEBREXIE
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To strengthen the key aspects of the
lending policy and procedures to ensure a
thorough and comprehensive credit checks
should be performed before granting the
guarantee.

o8 ERBUR KR Fr RIS 7 | R
RHEERIETE2EAMENEERZSE -

To perform regular monitoring of the
financial position of the borrowers as well
as the lending platforms.

EHERERAREEFEMBARR -

Detect leading indicators of problems
early. Any sign of material issue should be
reported to the management immediately
for actions.

MEPEREAENEITER NBEEMNERX
MR8 ERNR R A B R E A E R TH -

To develop a standardized follow up and
recovery procedures for bad loans.

HERBHTREIRM MERIIEFF

An early assessment of the impact and
implementation of changes in the law.

BREHMOEAREROZEMRAITER

Early engagement with legal advisors.

BREREAEEM-

To engage with lawyers that are specialized
in this kind of court cases.
HEEWZEFRDRMGOERER -

To consider other resolution, such as
out-of-court settlement with the counter
parties.
ZREMBIAT R  WER FE 5 EIN
i o

Ongoing monitor the progress of the court
cases and inform management and the
Board.
FEERFLARGNERTBANEEE
rREEG-
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Regulation updates and The frequent updates on disclosure

compliance risks

EEEHM LA RAR

Government policies

R IR R

requirements, other supervision
regulations in listing rules, accounting
standards, financial reporting and
others, the Group may have omissions
or noncompliance risks. Further, change
in regulation could make the unit’s
current business models unprofitable

or unsustainable. This is evidenced

by the PRC authorities tighten up the
regulations in P2P lending platforms.
Compliance failures could lead to
criminal and civil prosecution, fines, loss
of rights, reputational damage etc.

MR EmARA - S5 ER - M HRE LA
T EARKER R HEEHREN
HEBH NEEARFEERKTE
RERR - N BE R LA e E
£ B TR R E N EER M A A 5
BoENPEBEINIINEP2PEE T
SNEEMAINBL - EBRITAAEE
BUNEMERERSF S BrRK -2

BXEE

The Group's business in securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance
brokerage, loan guarantee and loan
consultation services are greatly
influenced by the government policies
(including macro policies, monetary
policies and financial policies), this
increase the uncontrollable risk of the
Group’s business and operation.

REBOESL L BEEE RELL
EREREERB ARG EBERARE
ELEXBRBR (BRZEBE 8%
BERELRERER)ZE MATAEE
G e BB ) 1 AT o L B e

The Group should set up independent
team (external accountants, lawyers, and
other specialists) to review new disclosure
requirements and other regulations in

the listing rules, accounting rules etc.

Any material changes that could impact
the Group will need to report to senior
management or the Board for actions.
REB RN BB (HNBEEHED - 2
A R Bt 5K ) B0 AR A &5t R
MHHBBEER L HEMEERE - B E
Al L BN EERERNE L BB F3R
BREEEXNEEGUNERRITH -

The Group should regularly assess the
financial exposure on those business
lines that could be affected by regulatory
changes.
REBETHNGAEXEEELEE
SRS S o0 aE

The Group should continue to monitor
national and local government policies to
see the new changes.
REEERFESERER KT BB
AT BRETEV ML -

To engage external consultants such as
lawyer, accountants, specialist to give
advice to the Group.

ZHEZRD - TR R BERFINELEE R A AR
EEEH‘RER -

The Group should regularly assess the
financial exposure on those business lines
that could be affected by the change of
government policies.

ZNES B FE E BART L Pl BB X BUR R 4 1b
TENZERBRNMERR -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float under the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by HLM CPA
Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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181 & 3+ 67 47 H TR 4 3]
HLM CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

38 3 B BT R

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

U 5L e KO 7 2- 1298 W 4 e 2L b0 305 F
Tel FE#f: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {8 EL: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail & #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RPESRERERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 64 to 246, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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GRIEEE|)NERAVBRE  WEEHE
BERBEER-_ZE—\F+_A=1+—BH&K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

P Er = 1A

FARESFEERERMANERHE oY
A EMBRERNBENZREENTIH E
LEREAERMBAERBEEMHRE
AERRETREN RATSHELERE
HEBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEESER

BANFTNAHBAREN S HETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

78 Y Rl (B RT A

Referring to notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Company had performed an impairment review in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
in relation to the Group's goodwill belonging to the
groups of cash-generating units (“CGU") comprising
insurance brokerage CGU, security brokerage CGU,
asset management CGU, financing referral CGU and
financial guarantee CGU. The Group had recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$7,143,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$14,650,000)
as a result of the impairment review.
2R T BMEWMTI8K20- ERAREEEDR
BERBEMENFER [EEREIY SEENR
EAEMN ([ReEELEM]AER BERRELR
TELABN BHALLUEEASENV EEERERS
ELEBMN RMEBNBRCELBULARERRRTE
EBMOBHEETRERS REBERERS B&
EEREBE—T—N\F+_A=1+—HLEEERHE
2R E R 187,143,000/8 7T (= F — £ 4 : 14,650,000
BIT) e

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs required involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions by management concerning the
estimated future cash flows and other key inputs and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AR eEABUMNAINE AT REEREMMGR
RIR & 8 S E fh B B2 8 A BUR VB B A HIET R RE%
Wi KmE e st et -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the goodwill as a key audit
matter.

At - PG E IR E SR B R ENE BN R R

RETFH

Our key procedures to address the matter included:
BRRERZEEMRKDNEERF BT

e discussing with and, where applicable, sought
corroborative supporting information from the
management of the Company and the independent
valuer engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”)
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies adopted and the key inputs used,;

e H FRAETEENL BEAREEMB(LER
(TEERD]) & 5w AR R (B 75 & R PR A B 8
ABENEEER (MER) S RBEHER:

e discussing with the management of the Company
and the Valuer about the key assumptions used in
forming the CGU'’s value-in-use calculation including
the cash flow projections and discount rates used
and evaluating the relevance and reasonableness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

e H BERREEREXMGEMIRTEKRCEELE
fEAEEFEMRANERRR BRESR
ERANAMAREE WREBRMEEKRITE
BT R R AR RN A IEE K

e assessing the competency and experience of the
Valuer.

o FHEMERMMBEIENRELR-
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BANFTNAHBEREASHETEE

Provision of guarantee losses

BRERRE

Referring to notes 4 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had provision for guarantee
losses amounting to HK$49,156,000 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$51,229,000).
2HGFEMBRERMTAR32 K- N\EF+A
=t+—H ' EBES5BEMNEREREBER49,156,000/8
7t (ZZF—+ 451,229,000/ 7T) °

Assessing provisions of guarantee losses is a subjective
area due to the level of judgement exercised by the
management in determining the amount of provisions
required.
HREEEEET A IREFCHNERERFTREEAR
ZH e F T R EREEREERY T HOHE-

From the Group's perspective, the portfolios which
give rise to the greatest uncertainty were those where
provisions were derived from collective assessment,
where the financial guarantees issued were unsecured
or where the financial guarantees issued were subject
to potential collateral shortfalls.

®t EXENBEE AAKARTHELENESEH
HBERAEATIHETET CELRMEERIFEMK
EEHMERRAEFEERRTENER -

The determination of collective impairment allowances
for provisions of guarantee losses is heavily dependent
on the external macro environment and the Group’s
internal credit risk management strategy. The Group’s
collective provisions of guarantee losses are derived
from estimates including the Group’s historical losses for
financial guarantees issued, the loss emergence period
(i.e. the time lapse between the occurrence of the event
causing eventual default to the actual recording of a
loss) and other adjustment factors.
EREBEREEPUAS AT REEBRAIREE £
KRERINBREBIREN BEEERNIMHEAREREE
K BEERESHTAHENEREBEEEISE
RNZEMLEF B EXEEEHHRERRNELRE
K BERITMEH (AIRERERBOETHNELIE
BRERG BB RERER) REMBARREE-

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEZERMRRNNEIERFBHE:

e assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval, to recording and
monitoring of financial guarantees issued, the
credit assessment process, the identification and
timeliness of identifying impairment indicators,
continuous re-assessment of the appropriateness
of assumptions used in the collective assessment
model and the management’s specific provisions for
individual guarantee losses;

e MHMDELRMELRUEFHLIARLKEEZIRED
BA S AL B Bk AT MOEMEARL - E AT IRAR R E
PFROBAHRERY ARTHEAAARRKS
BN FEENT M REREESENEREB
R B

e comparing the total balances of the guarantee list,
which contain information used by management
to assess provisions for guarantee losses, with the
general ledger and comparing individual loans and
guarantee information, on a sample basis, with
the underlying loan and guarantee agreements
and other related documentation to assess the
presentation of the information in the due diligence
report, risk control report and the guarantee list;

e HREEERNAMERBERENERSER
RRAATEE ARG SR — B WERA MBS EL
BB R & KA (R S R B B SR R R R e A
HME@AX s —3n Ut ERATREM
R & MER S BRAERBIIRER
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BANFTNAHBEREASHETEE

Provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

BERERRE (&)

Individual provisions of guarantee losses are estimated
by management once objective evidence of impairment
becomes apparent. Management exercises judgement
in determining the quantum of loss based on a
range of factors. These include available remedies
for recovery, the financial situation of the debtors,
collateral valuation, the seniority of the claim and the
existence and cooperativeness of other creditors. The
enforceability, timing and means of realisation of certain
property and other illiquid collaterals may also affect
the ultimate collectability and thereby the amount of
provisions of guarantee losses as at the reporting date.

EEEHERKRPARLETRER ERERSRAE
EHEN A RREBERE G - EETBRTER -
EREQERHE EREZERKX-ELRAZBHEA
PR B0 W 1B SRIR Al R 07 0% e SR A B B SRR~ S S
MiEE REXEIRF REFEHMERARER
BER-MENEMIERDERMEROAIMTIT -
REMIALETERKN A IRE SRR T ER
THHNERBERENSRE-

We have identified provisions of guarantee losses as a
key audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty in
management’s exercise of judgement in determining
the amount of provisions and because of its significance
to the financial results and financial position of the
Group.
BPISEREERERN A —TRBAREAFE - EH
eEREEErEBeN RN ERMBFTERRH
TEEE BEY EEENMBXERMBRLE
BATE-

e evaluating assumptions adopted in management’s
calculation of provisions for guarantee losses by
critically assessing input parameters involving
subjective judgement, seeking collaborative evidence
from external sources and comparing historical
losses against the Group's other internal records and
prior year records. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the life-cycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit events to downgrading the
accounts to non-performing loans and receivables
and guarantees. Having considered the above, we
performed re-calculations to assess the amount of
provisions for guarantee losses;

e HEEEEMAEERBEREGRMANRR A
ARHBAR TR ETBHG R AZE ZKI
MHREBR WHELERE EEEEMAIL
Bk F—FENRSETEL - SN BBRRMEE
HERFREGEAEHELINFERRRTRER
NEWHIBEMEROZBR  RFEITEH - E
B LiIE&  RIBET T EFRRNE LT HER
BREEEN TR
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BANFTNAHBEREASHETEE

Provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

BERERRE (&)

assessing the financial position of the samples of
financial guarantees selected by inspecting historical
payment patterns, written decisions from law
courts about the disposal of collaterals and other
underlying information used in the risk control
report, challenging the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans, evaluating the timing and means
of realisation of collaterals and considering other
sources of repayment asserted by management.
We also assessed the consistency of management'’s
application of key assumptions, evaluated any
change in the bases and key assumptions and
compared the data to our own data sources;
BBARERLXMN AR AR EEERmE D
WEEHARLRZEREMANEMBEEER &
FE B & BREANPBARRNETHE S &
SEWKGETE B RTINS R AT R
mAREETAARZREBEFRNDEMER
HOR o BT IRET (L B IR B E A B R R AR ) — B
A EERBERBROTMAMEET HZFEHER
B8 &8 BIBR R EITEL R

evaluating the Group’s internal policy for the
valuation of collaterals and assessing the valuation
of collaterals for the samples of financial guarantees
selected by comparison with relevant available
market information; and

A EEEHE TEMRETHRENAEMGE
BR WiRBEBEAFMISERELE - s
ENRERRENERRNMEE: &

assessing the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding financial guarantees by inspecting

contracts, on a sample basis.
RAMEKRESL FERIPREEZRNTE

1 e FERENE o
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BANFTNAHBEREASHETEE

Impairment assessment of loans and interests
receivables and trade and other receivables

1B W B R % R B DA R FE W RR AR I L At FE W SR TR B R
E58E]

Referring to notes 4, 25, 26 and 53 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2018, the
Group had loans and interests receivables and trade
and other receivables amounting to HK$113,952,000
and HK$59,674,000 respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group had recognised
impairment losses of HK$5,273,000 and HK$2,021,000
on loans and interests receivables and trade an other
receivables respectively.

2GR AWM BHRERMFS 25426 - K53 - RZZE—N
F+ZA=1T—H' EBSEBEEKEREF
B DA R e Ui BR R R HL ) W FRTE113,952,0000% 7T K&
59,674,000 T - REEZ-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—H
EFE ESEIREREREFE N KEK
B R No EL At & i 5k T T 5R Rl 18 JE5 485,273,00078 T &
2,021,000 7T °

The balances of impairment loss allowance for the
receivables represent the management’s best estimates
at the reporting date of expected credit losses (“ECL")
under the expected credit loss models as stipulated in
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instruments.

EUWBR SR EBE BB BERIEEEERBET MR
FEAFESF - eI ANGAZEREEERRE (&
HEERRE D EAHEHEEBRANRE ARz &E
flate

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage model to calculate
their ECL.

EEEGTERKEFRNEERRE B RERAKRES
BEREZEM YRA=ZEEREAAEREFZEHEE

B8 -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BFREEZFAMRNNEERF B

e Understanding and testing the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls relating to the
measurement of ECL;

e THMEmAEHAEEHEEFRBAREENR
At NGB VERCR

e reviewing ageing analysis of the receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable on a sample
basis;

o HMKEN ERREEERENEWERNREK
oW BERARIERENRIKIEES A KE :

e examining the management’s estimation on
the ECL of individual balances on sample basis
and the expected loss rate of each category
groups and evaluating the basis and factors
used in the estimation to the appropriateness of
the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit impaired
receivables;

s REEEEBBMEMNTNIZEREeRZTEH
EEEBENMAARE S BEER N TAEEEIA
Mt ARt ERESEN EERR EHRE
ERERKERBEENMESEENKEREE:
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BANFTNAHBEREASHETEE

Impairment assessment of loans and interests
receivables and trade and other receivables
(Continued)

B U B R B R S A T P UK R R e L At R WA R TR B O
B E ()

The measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgements and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
AERHEEFREARGEAMBARER 26
I

— Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

- BEEFEERRELBIEEN XELHLEEOK
BB B 1R R IR 2E

- Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurement, and application economic scenarios
and weightings.

- BARAEMFENEEER URERAKEBR
KN o

We have identified management’s assessments of the
ECL of loans receivables as a key audit matter because
the amounts of the receivables are significant and
the assessments required significant management
judgement and assumption.

BB ERBHRBWE RGN A - HERETS
B IEARRERUFENEREAN BFEFEEEE
YEH B R A R R& -

e recalculating the provision for ECL made by the
management to assess the accuracy;

e EXNFEEREBELNBEHREEEREBUFNG
AR

e verifying the balance of the receivables by
requesting and receiving confirmation on a sample
basis; and

o FBRMKRERNLERERZHEURTER: &

e checking subsequent settlements of trade and other
receivables on a sample basis.

o MERERUERLEMEEFEEREEB N -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

38 3 B BT R
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

s HEERARKERKLSHERMNBEEE
H#Em - RIEMEDRNETRE BER
B ERESHENBENEENEATEEE
KmAEEHY SEEENFELEED
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o FEFAMBMERNERI®IN BB
MAR BREREBEE UANGEETBHRRE
BHRAERBRBABRIZMEIR-

e B EREERNERBIEXBLEDNVBKER
ERMRR BENETERE NWEKEAH
BHREERERL-RMEE EHEEFEG
FJT A EE B MBTT - M A ERT B R
EREEE-

BREMEIRN R ERB T ENE
AEE RREZHE EARAERS BN
{PIEEZR FT A a8l H P BB 42 Bl 1) (T (AT B KR P o

BPEMAEERRER HRUMETEH
BB MR ERERER TR FEE
BrREAEMRRAETERMBELIENPT
EREMEAMER  UNEBERNERT 4
B B 7y 8045 B

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that are of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

YIP YUEN NGA

Practising Certificate Number: P05908
Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkAtEEBGEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\NFE —ET—+tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000
B 5 THT FAET
Revenue WA 5 152,595 130,652
Cost of sales HEMAR (56,703) (62,969)
Gross profit ER 95,892 67,683
Other income, gains and losses Ha WA~ s REE 7 30,923 93,063
Administrative and other operating TR R A & 2
expenses (115,836) (99,797)
Finance costs BA B R N 8 (11,560) (16,340)
Share based payments AR D S5 5008 (40,313) (989)
Provision for financial guarantees BB EREE (1,302) -
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEEE - MERED 9 (7,523) (2,971)
Impairment loss on goodwill HMEZREBE (7,143) (14,650)
(Loss) profit before taxation Fﬂrﬂ A1 (E18) m (56,862) 25,999
Income tax (expense) credit B (FAX)ER 10 (1,741) 43
(Loss) profit for the year Fr (EE) =R 11 (58,603) 26,042
Other comprehensive (expense) Hh2mH (BX) W&
income, net of tax HBRH 1|
Item that will not be reclassified HETSENEE
subsequently to profit or loss: fE m A HE A
Change in fair value of financial FREMEMEEEA
assets at fair value through $TE7§|J ReemEE
other comprehensive income NF{EE (17,108) -
Item that may be reclassified HEZAEEN 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss: EBazmhyEE -
Exchange differences on translation ~ R EBINERMELR
of foreign operations fEH =% (23,220) 14,091
Release of translation reserve upon M B A B)1& B BR
disposal of subsidiaries ME W (H@ — 2
Change in fair value of —Hﬁ(iﬂj% MEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets NEEES = (16,761)
Other comprehensive expense FRAHMEZEMAX
for the year (40,328) (2,668)
Total comprehensive (expense) FALEH(AX)WaBEHE
income for the year (98,931) 23,374
(Loss) profit for the year LTATEEER
attributable to: (18) A :
Owners of the Company KRABER A (58,603) 26,020
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR M A - 22
(58,603) 26,042
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEnRkHEtEEK®ER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZZT—+tF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THERT FHET
Total comprehensive (expense) UMATERERZEH (FAX)
income for the year T E-C
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NESIE SN (98,931) 23,352
Non-controlling interests FEVE R - 22
(98,931) 23,374
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (5E)ER 15
Basic YN (0.85) 0.43
Diluted 'y (0.85) 0.43
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2018 R-_Z—NE+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERY Y&y 16 99,266 111,448
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERIE 17 22,302 24,281
Goodwill i 18 143,979 151,122
Intangible assets ﬁﬂ?ﬁ? 19 9,249 10,906
Interests in associates NN ok 3w 21 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets —H?i\ HESMEE = 25,521
Financial assets at fair value through iﬁLﬁﬁﬂiﬁ”ﬂZ
other comprehensive income BATEIENEREE 22 15,872 -
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEH ABZER
profit or loss TREE 23 37,552 22,410
Contingent consideration receivables — fEU sk SR B 24 4,927 9,879
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 36 11,368 12,689
Deposits e 27 3,505 3,325
348,020 371,581
Current assets REBEE
Loans and interests receivables JEWE R R A E 25 113,952 189,891
Trade and other receivables J—EHKEE/T)\&/HJ’@JTEW%IE 26 59,674 34,877
Prepaid lease payments BN HEENRIEA 17 719 759
Prepayments and deposits T /TAIE&HZi 27 65,485 46,888
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{E:t A8z H
profit or loss TREE 23 40,143 -
Contingent consideration receivables — f&U sk SR (B 24 8,759 -
Tax receivables JE W18 927 -
Cash held on behalf of clients REFFENR: 28 1,263 2,066
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIIRITF R 29 2,136 9,064
Bank balances and cash MITHEBR KRS 30 269,578 410,117
562,636 693,662
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables and ~ FE{JBR X~ Hth JE 1 3/ 1E &
accruals EETER 31 81,659 60,095
Contract liabilities BHEE 96 -
Liabilities from financial guarantees ~ FEEERBEE 32 49,870 51,753
Deferred consideration EERE 33 20,450 48,807
Borrowings BE 34 8,538 66,039
Tax payables JE 1~ 75t 18 555 2,526
161,168 229,220
Net current assets REBEEFE 401,468 464,442
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERRBERE 749,488 836,023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E B R R

At 31 December 2018 R-_Z—NE+_-_A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+F
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
M=t FET FA&T
Non-current liabilities FRnBERE
Deferred consideration EERE 33 5,175 22,486
Convertible notes Al AR B 35 - 5,654
Borrowings =P 34 79,688 93,054
84,863 121,194
Net assets EEFE 664,625 714,829
Capital and reserve EXR#E
Share capital AR A 37 6,915 6,870
Reserves @1 657,710 707,959
Equity attributable to owners of VIN/NETE ¥ =W g - ey
the Company 664,625 714,829
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 - -
Total equity A 664,625 714,829

HNFCAAR246B 2 AU BHRERTIKEES
N _E—HNE=RA -+ A EREER
TYHRERKRESE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 246 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong

BRREE BABXE
Director Director
EZE EZE

BERIP XA S e Mg mk 2 —#n -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAER
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share option  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TERE
e RABE  BRERE BEERE ERGE Efifit EERE iR Mt FERER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEL TEL AL TEL TEL TAL T FEL TEL TAL AL
(Note 50(a)) (Note 50(b)) (Note 50(c) (Note 50(d)) (Note 50(e)) (Note 50(f))
(Wrsso@)  (Oaisol)  (MES0W)  (MHaEso@)  (Matsole)  (BR&Esol)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-F-H 4380 1,659,410 44,704 9,775 (29,253) (110,583) 4821 (1,162,033) 21,227 776 422,003
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - 26,020 26,020 2 26,042
Other comprehensive (expense) ~ Eft 27 (B &
income
- Change in fair value of -AfHESREREY
available-forale financial assets TEES - - - - - (16,761) - - (16,761) - (16,761)
- Exchange differences on translation ~EAE RN EBMEEH
of foreign operations EAZER - - - - 14,088 - - - 14,088 3 14,091
- Release of translation reserve -REEHBAANRE
upon disposal of subsidiaries EREE - - - - 5 - - - 5 B 2
Total comprehensive income ENZENRES
for the year - - - - 14,093 (16,761) - 26,020 23,352 22 23,374
Disposal of non-controling interest ~ E2FTiH EMBAFFE
relating to subsidiaries disposal of A& 3E R IS - - - - - - - - - (798) (798)
Issue of shares upon exercise R RIES
of share options ki 202 67,672 (21313 - - - - - 46,561 - 46,561
Issue of shares upon open offer  RAREERTTRH 2,288 226,507 - - - - - - 228,795 - 228,795
Transaction coss attributable RAZEEERSHA
to open offer - (6,095) - - - - - - (6,095) - (6,095)
Recognition of equity-settled share ~ B2 LA IRIEE E R (7
based payments ITMFHE - - 989 - - - - - 989 - 989
Share options lapsed during the year £ E %M B R E - - (435) - - - - 435 - - -
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+E+ZA=1-B
1 January 2018 k=F-\§-A-A 6,870 1,947,494 23,945 9,775 (15,160) (127,344) 4821 (1,135,578) 714,829 - 714,829
Loss for the year FABE - - - - - - - (58,603) (58,603) - (58,603)
Other comprehensive expense Ef2ERY
- Change in fair value of finandial ~ ~EBE 2 ERER
assets at fair value through ATES f
other comprehensive income EELTEES - - - - - (17,108) - - (17,108) - (17,108)
- Exchange differences on translation ~EAE AN EBMEEH
of foreign operations EizS - - - - (23,20) - - - (23,20) - (23,200)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYER
for the year - - - - (23,220) (17,108) - (58,603) (98,931) - (98,931)
Issue of shares upon exercise of T B RIEREIRG
share options 13 3,581 (1,130) - - - - - 2464 - 2,464
Conversion of convertible notes BT AR Z 1 R 15,693 - ©,775) - - - - 5,950 - 5950
Recognition of equity-settled share BRI IELEE R
based payments S{TRFHE - - 40313 - - - - - 40313 - 40313
Share options lapsed during the year R E % B 12 - - (22,619 - - - - 22,619 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELATHE - - - - - - 3759 (3759 - - -
At 31 December 2018 W=E-NF+-A=t+-H 6,915 1,966,768 40,509 - (38,380) (144,452) 8,586 (1175,321) 664,625 - 664,625
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

z;jt'_A

BEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
2018 2017
=E-N\F —T—+tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHEIT
Operating activities ReEED
(Loss) profit before taxation BrBEAT (E1R ) & 7 (56,862) 25,999
Adjustments for: STYIIEBEL 2
Amortisation and depreciation B RITE 13,273 12,676
Finance costs B T R AR 8 11,560 16,340
Fair value change on contingent JEW S A REBZ
consideration receivables NEEE 7 (3.807) 10,988
De-recognition of deferred consideration BURBERIELE R (E 7 - (67,901)
Fair value change on financial assets at TE’&WTE*‘U\TE it Y
fair value through profit or loss PREEZLATEESY 7 (1,389) (2,409
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR 2 F RS 7,39 - (945)
Interest income M 2 A 7 (17.221) (10,154)
Loss on written off of property, plant and  Hfi$5¥1 % - BiE &
equipment =i BB 7 26 5
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) M W &8 (Hﬂl 5 )R8 7 22 (582)
Share-based payment expenses VAR 7 2 (9 ;R IE A 2 40,313 989
Investment income FEWA (1,841) -
Impairment loss on amounts due from JE Y Bse & R R IB
associates HTEFSTE 7 9 11
Impairment loss on trade and JRE s B TR e L At JE L
other receivables IB 2R EEE 2,021 2,971
Impairment loss on loans and W EREMEZ
interests receivables BB E 1B 5,273 -
Impairment loss on deposits Be 2 BEREIE 229 -
Impairment loss on goodwill B ZREEBE 7,143 14,650
Other receivables written off 85 EL th, & Ui 5k I8 1,888 -
Other payables written back R EL th & A< TR I8 (1,486) -
Provision for financial guarantees RHBEER 1,302 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEEEHW
in working capital KRERERE 453 2,638
(Increase) decrease in trade and other g 5 & H b fE W FKIB
receivables (3Z0) Rk A (30,643) 14,808
Decrease (increase) in loans and interests JE WL E 3Rk K M) BORL
receivables (1 h0) 64,029 (48,958)
Increase in prepayments and deposits TE BRIE R IR 2 1 0 (57,901) (26,075)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables, }Eﬁﬁﬁm /\ﬁﬂJ'Eﬁ I8
other payables and accruals N FERTE A ( ﬁ@ >) 27,533 (46,761)
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients HREF#HA 2R S H D 803 13,680
Decrease in contract liabilities BREERD (3,031) -
Increase in amounts due from associates JE Y B & X B R IE SR AN 9 (1)
(Decrease) increase in liabilities from MEEREEXZEE
financial guarantees (k2> ) 3& AN (465) 371
Decrease in restricted bank deposits 2R B RITIRE R 6,733 -
Cash generated from (used in) operations &2 /EE B (BH)
2R 7,502 (90,308)
Interest paid ERFE (9,491) (7.272)
Income tax paid EATFTISH (3,935) (2,552)
Income tax refund FRIGTLRT - 1,938
Net cash used in operating activities RETHHAZHREFHE (5,924) (98,194)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHETT
Investing activities REED
Interest received 2 ALE 15,486 9,889
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits M EHEFRITER - 28,833
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE %% HE ML & 16 (4,387) (120)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value EEABAMEE
through other comprehensive income Wik A F1ES R
ZeREE (7,574) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale H& At H & &
financial assets é{Fﬁﬁﬁ%’? - 17,001
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ﬁ%ﬁ %N FAEE AE %
through profit or loss TRMEE (20,000) (20,001)
Proceeds from sales and redemption of HE BRI EMEHIE
investments 1,841 -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEEMTEB R Alay
subsidiaries WEmHFE 38 - (50,464)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBAER
subsidiaries WEMAFEE 39 - 279
Settlement of deferred consideration EREERE (50,000) (30,000)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMARSFEHE (64,634) (44,583)
Financing activities BEEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEFI1SIA - 144,163
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE (65,280) (108,122)
Proceeds from exercise of share options fﬂ% ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬂ%?ﬂ 2,464 46,561
Proceeds from open offer NABERERIE - 222,700
Net cash (used in) generated from MEEE (FTA)ELE
financing activities ZEEFHE (62,816) 305,302
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash RERBELZEY
equivalents R ) B hnFE 5 (133,374) 162,525
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBZBEEEK
BEZEEY 410,117 240,969
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZ# F & (7,165) 6,623
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—H#HEE
at 31 December, represented REEZEEW
by bank balances and cash BRITESRRES 269,578 410,117
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents: R
Bank balances and cash MITHEBR KRS 269,578 410,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Suites 3001-11, Tower Two, Times
Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods, securities brokerage, insurance
brokerage, asset management and loan financing operation
including loan financing, financial guarantee services, loan
referral and consultancy services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.

1.

— AR

ARFRBREIMKZIABEREERA
A HERODEBREBERXZFIBRAA L
e RN A Ky it 3 = &R #b ik & Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda' EBF A FELEME BB B
8 70 B A 5% B K E 35 Z EE3001-11

=
=
zF°

AEBEIBRFERELER TXRANER
ROBERN KRB BHFEL RBRE
o BERE URERBREXD (BREE
REE BMEERRS EREN LEH
R#) -

RAEMBREANKTRARNINEEE BT
(BTl 25 toh BETREBIAING
BERENEBERNINEERINEEE
BREMETEEEMENERIIE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year
the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the
Related Amendments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Impairment losses on financial assets were reclassified from
"other income, gains and losses” in 2017 to conform to
current year’s presentation as a result of consequential
changes made to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. Impairment losses on financial assets that were
previously classified as other losses are now presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018

RG] REERT BB

Bl ([HABMHHRE

A8 ])

RS £ 3 4 M BT RAS IS AT B8 ot
B

RAFE AEEEXEATIEEESR
g ([RESMAS])BHEOIAT
MBETRBM B HmE LR -

BEMBHRE TRITA
% I £ 95

BV HRE XEEFAKZ
RN 5B 155% WA K ERERT

w5 (RSB VXS RIENRE
HERES
Eg) —2E

5225
EBYBRE LARR 15 5 EHiE A
R 5257 HY SRSz HHE
BRI A MEtE
BB BRE RKAEBHE®RE
AR AR AE B FEASR IR R
BRI B HEE —GHE A
BEAMERE
EBFERE R T A
B g ER BB S @RS 2R
F285RHY —E—NFERE
BRI —T—RNEFRH
FENEISD
g ER EEIGEYE
F40% 1)
BET A

R EE ST ERNEIR [T HFHXHN
ZHELEHEEES R_T—LF2H
BEEMMEBES [EMBRA Ka ki
BIEHOBUANAEMFENZITH
RO BEAEMERNEREENRER
B REEBRINGREe R kEMER
Y R P o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effects of initially applying this
Standard recognised at the date of initial application,
i.e. 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated
loss and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

2. RAFG] RBEFTNRBHM

B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

RAFEBRFHERNHTREEITEEH
B|EER (8)

R IR E SN KA R R E AT M A&
{ERT 2 78 B 7% R 15 22 Rl 8 3 AN SR B R R
FEMBEFEIBERE SR R, R %
ERAMBBRRMARBEEXNERNTE -

2.1 BB EREEREISHEKEEFE
412 WA

AEBRAFEERERELVHR
FEAEISR -FEMBREERSE
155 BB G5t ERIE 185 Mz
BR G EFEI1REELS A A K

AEECDEWREREL Y% HREZER
F155 - MBERERZENNRER
ZERBEREAER (I -ZF—N\F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

— Warehouse storage income from operation of
warehouse;

— Trading income from trading of consumable goods;

— Income from provision of financial guarantees, loan
referral and consultancy services;

— Interest income from money lending business;

— Commission income from securities brokerage,
underwriting and placement;

— Interest income from margin financing;
— Commission income from asset management; and

— Commission income from provision of insurance
brokerage and agency services.

Information about the Group's performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact
on the Group’s accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

2.

JER A MBI E B
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

RAFEBRFHERNHTREEITEEH
BHEER (F)

2.1 BB BHREBREISHKAEFE
A (E)

BERE BB HRE R F 155
EEXCEEHRE

FERE BB HmEERE1SRYL EY
REER-ZF-N\F—-—A—-HZZA5
BEREKREAFZE RN _F—/\F
—A—HREEMBARARERNE
BELUTHABR - AXEREHTE
BIEE TEEEA -

Adjustment
Amounts resulted
before from

adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
KIER ERAEE
EBU% MB®|E
WEER  EAIE155%
155 ig-33
T8 2 Fr 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TBTT

Current liabilities REEE

Other payables and accruals Hth f& < RRIB KR JEFT & A 55,839 (3,175) 52,664
Contract liabilities BHEE - 3,175 3,175
Balance at beginning of the year F ¥4 &4 55,839 - 55,839

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

75



76

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The following table summaries the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not affected

JER A MBI E B
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)
R EERS RN T RESBTE SN
e ()
2.1 BRI IR R E 15 GBS A
WA (4E)
kR R B IS RS BB 1 5T
EE>UBEE (F)
T3 Lk A B B TS R R
U AEE-—T—NET-A=+
By GARBRAESSYEREE Y
B ATEURHYENEE T

1

by the changes have not been included. BEA-
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HIEREUBRARNTE
position
Adjustment
Amounts resulted
before from
adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
KIEF ERESB
EBME M ®E
HREER FEAIFE155%
FE155% FRE%®
% Z AR 238
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H AN SRIB R FEET B A 79,953 (96) 79,857
Contract liabilities EREE - 96 96
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 79,953 - 79,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

2. ERFE] RAEERT B AR
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

R EERS RN T RESBTE ST

e ()

2.1 BB IR R E 15 GBS A
WA (4E)

HEARERERNTE

Adjustment
Amounts resulted
before from

adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
KIEA EREE
ERU% MB®E
HREER EAIE155%
SE155% FREXE
ZE ZHE T 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT FHT
Operating activities REED
Increase in trade payables, JE ST BR R - Bt JE 1~ R IE
other payables and accruals Mgt & RIG M 24,502 3,031 27,533
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD - (3,031) (3,031)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

2.2 BB BEREERFEIH T AR
1BRFIEET

RAFE ANEECEAEEMB R
FRAFR M EMBAYBEREE
Az BERMERIER - BREMBHREE
AIFERSIABRMEREERS®
BEZOBEFE QeRMEEZT
HEEER ([EHREEBE])REG)
—MRE PR ZHARTE
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TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

2. ERFE] RAEERT B AR
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

R EERS RN T RESBTE SN
MR s =R ()

22 BB B WG ERFEIR @ T AR

(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between the carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments.: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value, including unquoted equity investments
measured at cost less impairment under HKAS 39 except
for the impact of ECL.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS") investments

From AFS equity investments to fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(a)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments (Continued)

The Group elected to present in OCI for the fair
value changes of all its equity investments previously
classified as available-for-sale. These investments are
not held for trading and not expected to be sold in
the foreseeable future.

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no longer
applied designation as measured at FVTPL for the
portfolio of financial assets which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, as
these financial assets are required to be measured at
FVTPL under HKFRS 9.

The Group has reassessed its investments in equity
securities classified as held for trading under HKAS
39 as if the Group had purchased these investments
at the date of initial application.

There was no significant impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the
application of HKFRS 9.

2. RG] MEEIEFTNE B
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

RAFEBRFHERNHTREEITEEH
B|EER (8)

2.2 BB B IRE ERFEIR @ T AR
1EEF1EAT (BB)

B ER AN HRE R EIRT
ELANTERE (B)

(@) AIEHE (TAIMEHENDRE (8)

AEERBE LR E KNP
948 1 5 1 5 7 £t ) BT B
ARANATEEY ZERAT
HEEE YEHETHELDH KR
TEME-

(o) BRAFEAABRZEREER
SHEE /RN EFARR

REXERBH BRREFEY
BREERFS AR FEELE
EELFHEERRENEREEMA
BRRAFEFABGTE AR
ETrERZELeMEERTERR
NP EFABGTE-

RIBBB ST ERIFEIR AEE
EEHFFEEIER/FIFERE L
BRABHRE HNAEERER
EREHERERSRE -

EREBMBREERIFHRIL T

SHRFEECHAZCEEEL
BERFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(c) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
and other receivables, loans and interests receivables
and deposits. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash, are
assessed on 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") basis as
there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing
financial assets for impairment using reasonable
and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. No impairment allowance
was recognised at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying notes below
explain the original measurement categories under HKAS
39 and the new measurement categories under HKFRS
9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets as at
1 January 2018.

2. RG] MEEIEFTNE B
B R ([BAMH RS
A8 ]) (@)

RAFEBRFHERNHTREEITEEH
B|EER (8)

2.2 BB B IRE ERFEIR @ T AR
1EEF1EAT (BB)

B ER AN HRE R EIRT
ELANTERE (B)

TR T SCBE B o B B AR R E R
“E-N\FE-A-HNZRTREE
MERBEFEGHEAEIR ZRA
AFEDBURREE S M &S 2R
FORZFAEN -

Original carrying New
Original classification New classification amount under  carrying amount
Notes under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
REEBLT  REEBHE
REBBLHEL REZENBRE ERIE3E  WEERFENR
W R RENE ERESR 2T E LREREE L HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Equity securities (@  Available-for-sale FVTOCI - equity
instrument 25,521 25,521
RAER ATt BATE AL
*EMGE-BRATA
Unlisted investment fund (b)  Designated as at FVTPL Mandatorily at FVTPL 22,410 22,410
FImEERS BERRATENABRRE RBHERATEFARR
Contingent consideration receivables FVTPL FVTPL 9,879 9,879
FERARE BOTEFARR BATEFARR
Loans and interest receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 189,891 189,891
R E R R F & EXRERFE B AR
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 34,877 34,877
FE B 37 e E B M IR EXRERFE B
Deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 49,027 49,027
e EFRERFE B AR
Cash held on behalf of clients Loans and receivables Amortised cost 2,066 2,066
REPRENEE BERRERFE B
Restricted bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 9,064 9,064
ERHRITER R REREE B
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables Amortised cost 410,117 410,117
RITERRAS R R EWEE B
Total financial assets 752,852 752,852

TREEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and related amendments
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes

(a)

These equity securities represent investments that the
Group intends to hold for long term strategic purposes.
As permitted by HKFRS 9, the Group has designated these
investments at the date of initial application as measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
Unlike HKAS 39, the accumulated fair value reserve related
to these investments will never be reclassified to profit or
loss.

Under HKAS 39, these equity securities were designated as
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") because they
were managed on a fair value basis and their performance
was monitored on this basis. These assets have been
classified as mandatorily measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9.

2. RAFG] RBEFTNRBHM

55

SHEA ([BEMBRSE

A8 ]) (@)
R EERS RN T RESBTE SN

BHRE

R (&)

22 BB B BRFEIR @ T AR
1ERF1EAT (BB)

B ER AN HRE R EIRT

ELNTERE (&)

B E

(a)

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018

% F R 8 75 1 AN 5 B B R P B RS
RaEmiANRE - RBEBMBRE
HAFSFAB AERECRERE
RBEHEEZERER A FEFAR
b2 EW s ([RAFEFAEMEE
a2z A E-BEBGTER
FIR AR BZFRERBHO R
AT ERBETEENDREESE-

REBB S ERIEIR  ZFRA
ERIDEERAFES AR ([KRA
FEFABRZDFE REARNETS
BATEELEEBREHERR DIRILE
B - RIBF BB RE LR F 57 -
ZFEEC D BERBEHIRAFERTA

B2 5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EFIHTR] M AEFT oY & B B
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BE A ([HABMHRE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) AR ()
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet CEMERARERNIT REERTE B
effective F& 3R &5 2 A
RAWE QB A TH T RGBT 255
B 745 3R 25 98 B 19 o A K o AN R I Of A 4R 2
ERZEHTRGET > EENERE %

At the date of this report, the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs are not yet effective. The Group has
not early applied these new and amendments to HKFRSs.

Bl o
HKFRS 16 Leases' ERMBRE HE
R E 1658
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BAEMERE RER A #)3

BB 175

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 55 (BBRHBHRE EHEEZ
Treatments' 2EZE9) THETE M
—REE23W
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business® BAVBRELER EBRIER
F3ITMAER] A
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BRI @S 48 AFEMEZ
Negative Compensation’ FIFAEFT AR AR
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets BB BEmEER REEHEEBE QA
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and FBI0RREE dAEEPEEN
its Associate or Joint Venture* 2 ERIFE285 BEHE S TE
BB R]
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material? EECHENFIH EAMHTE?
and HKAS 8 REEGTTER
F8TMMIEF] K
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BAERTER CHE %!
HKAS 19 Settlement’ F19RMIBET A FTEl
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates BB ER REE R r EE D
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures' F28HHEET AR ERMRHER
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BAEUMBRE BREMBHRELER
2015-2017 Cycle’ R B R] R —ET-hFZE
—E -t FEY
ZFE
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January O RZE-NF A B BRENEE
2019. AR Ao
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RN -E-EE-F P BRABNEE
2020. A A 2o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R E-—F—A—HEAZERAGBNFE
2021, HAI AR
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ¢ REFEBHSZERAENFEBRER
determined.
5 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for S OpMWEBHBAR-ZE-_ZF—A—Hz%<

BFEROEESERREMARIZ RN
EBAREERBEN -

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors
of the Group anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements
of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant
asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents operating lease payments as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$29,037,000. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Statement of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

3. BERNEETHER (#)

AR

T XERN S A BERAHA RERE
HIR R & M MR T IRIBIE 2 B £ 2
mE-METERIADRATVERE:

FE S A —RRIRIE RS RIBE R R FT4R
RENQAFEMEE -

NP EREMSSEE ZEETEAET
MEFXSHHE - RHEEMBREER
—HBEEMXANER BERZERSE
EERINERETRAEMGEERMNE
HE st -EHEERBEN A FEEL
EEths AEBZEETHHE2EEENE
ARZEEXABETEERHEEEN
AL UL SR A I RER P E R
HEBEO RN FEDEER T ARE -
MR B B 5 5 2 RSB 257 80 [ A ) AR
MXMNNRS FEgsT LR FE17REE
MNEER S WEREQAFEELEL I
REENE (fln BEGFHERE25R

RV A IR R ERE LG ERIE36ET
B REE) BRbe

RIRAFEESRNS R TAREKRA A #
KR AR ERENR A TFENMGEER
i = - A ESMN S KB E G ERM
BRENRHE-

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

87



88

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Statement of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and

entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it still has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders;

potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

« rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amounts of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Company's Board of Directors as
its chief operating decision maker.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of
cash-generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transactions
in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transactions
in note 2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. Contractual liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Warehouse storage income

Warehouse storage income is recognised when the storage
services are rendered.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have been passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; and

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Securities brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income from securities and
futures dealings, on a trade-date basis.

Insurance brokerage income

Insurance brokerage income and agency fee received or
receivable is recognised as revenue when the underlying
transaction has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Handling and settlement fee income

Handling charge and late charge revenues are recognised
when services are provided.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Consultancy service income

Consultancy service income is recognised when the service is
provided.

Guarantee fee income

Income from financial guarantee is recognised over the
contract period on a time apportionment basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvement, buildings, warehouse held for provision of
storage services, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal
group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets
held for sale”.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EARERTECR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITHE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

« the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). Interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITHE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

SREENDBIMAKEE REBMHT2
M B R R BB RE R FIRIEK)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued) (%)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) HERIFEFAEMEERE 2K
i =

At the date of initial application/initial recognition,
the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments
in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Revaluation Reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Other income,
gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

112 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018

RERER/VLHERBH KEE
AT (8 Bl T A E B A AT R el a2
B-EERATAZRE/EBAFE
AAAEHM I EER -

BRAFESAEMEERE BAT
HEREB NN RAFENRZHERAG
BE-HE WRATARERQFER
E-HRFEEFELNRENER
REME2mKEBERRNEGFHEA
Rt BBERER G - Rat a8
AR TERSBEELERAREZA
m WRERERERRN -

B AREEC UK BB A - BRIE
EEEMBRREERERA oK
BRA ZERATARENRKRER
B AR - BRI AR A [H ik
AWKk EE] EAF -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following
items:

financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
loans and interest receivables, deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables); and

financial guarantee contracts issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, other receivables and loans and interests
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively with
internal credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

114 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018

SRIA(8)
THEE (8)

SR EERE (REME20BEERAE
AU BHEERFRR) (&)

FHEBEEBBREN BRI ANEF
HAMEARRNEHELNTBRREER
BeER 2EAEHREERE ([12EA
BHEEER]EEANRE A HKRI12
AR EELENENEHELENE D F
HEMEEER -FAEDRBEARERE
EEBELR IREBABRERR  —
i A AR IUIA S B R R B H12 B iR
R AR HGR S TR B 5T 45 VRS2 o

ANEE — B USRS E Ath B UK IA &
ERERLNEEAFHEREERHE-
ZEEEMNREHEEBEBEDMABERNER
E‘JLﬁ“ALTﬂIE' AT fh &,/ s Bk R A A
SERAGETTEENG

MTEEMTAMS  NEBEFEHER
BERNREARREERR KIFEER
R\ B WA FE R AR AR E L7t RIS E
HAFHAHEEER BT RERAFHA
HEEBEERIIRE B 76 R A K S
A E KR AT BE M Sk EL R 7R %i%ﬁﬁpﬂﬁ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B RAR A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITHE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

SR EERE (REME20BEERAE
AU BHREERFRR) (&)

(i) BHNEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(ii) Definition of default (Continued)

(iii)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iii)

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

N LB R & ¢ m & E 8 5
HBEIOKE AEBRAR A BEE
4 BIIEAEEBELRERLA SEERNE
FAERAE ERMNENZE-

EERENEREE

ERZHEERMEEMTRKER
TREEETMEENEOSHELE
B Ze®REERMTREERE

FRcREELREERENEZEER
EBRNAT=HENABREEE:

a) BITAIERALBRERYBA
K

by TETERKXBPIZTEFELNIT

o EBERANERARBREERAY
BRENKERAORE & TE
RAE—RBEATIEZRENE
BihE:

d) ERARGEMES G EEAR:
£l

o) REREEMNEEMSEMEH
Bl i H K o

117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B RAR A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables and loans and interests receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are mainly classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent consideration that may be
received by an acquirer as part of a business combination.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEETHUER ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIA(HE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial ERMEENDBEMNERHE (R=_F—N
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) F-—A—BERBENBHRELERFEIR
(Continued) ) (#8)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued) () BATFEFAERZeREE (B)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for TREE (BHEEEZERMEERNK

trading (or contingent consideration that may be received BHWBREREBEMHZ — B D23

by an acquirer as part of a business combination) may be ANREBRINAIR TIER TR ZE
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: BRI ERRAFETARR:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a o ZETEHBRIKNERLDAIGEEH
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would I 5T 2 sl iR 7 E A — B
otherwise arise; or %
the financial asset forms part of a group of financial e ZEREEBN —MHEeRmEEL
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is TRIEEXEREENRERAE
managed and its performance is evaluated on a Hez—8n MRBERNEESIE
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's HEREBIIRERE ZEEE
documented risk management or investment strategy, TAATFEREMRETERE KT
and information about the grouping is provided HMER - BB HE 2 ER TR
internally on that basis; or EERN IR M 3k
it forms part of a contract containing one or more e HEBNBEE —HEXZEBRAITAE
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the TEMEGEH s —2r MEBGE
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be HEAFEIGRAAHEBEHEAEG SR
designated as at FVTPL. (BEXABEERKRAFERT

Ao

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any BERATEFABEZEREEZRAYF

gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in B MEMTEEE 2 EMKRE

profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit BB TEEEANRER - RNIBEER
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the R EEFEITEBEEMEEMN

financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and BEE R S FIE - WEt A [ H A

losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner W LEBIBE RN - R FETIRM T

described in note 54. SAFf it 75 FEETE ©
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii) AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period except for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
debt instruments relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, and changes in
foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in
profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loans receivables, trade
and other receivables, deposits, cash held on behalf of
clients, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BERNEETHER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading
process that considers collateral type, past due status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to
the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets
by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude). The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EARERTECR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITHE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

128

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, deferred
consideration, trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification
is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under
HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are amortised
over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise the
difference between the revised carrying amount and the
expected cash flows over the life of the modified instrument.

Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the contracted fee
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within liabilities from guarantees. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The guarantee issued and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is initially recognised at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to guarantees
issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Guarantees issued (Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (upon
application of HKFRS 9)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “liabilities from financial guarantees”
in respect of the guarantees.

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described
in note 2 apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Provisions are recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy on “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets” if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in deferred income in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILtFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i) Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
other providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve be transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

3. EX®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(vija person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personal services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, of the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

140

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible assets
with finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight line method. The estimated useful life reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
intangible assets with finite useful life. The residual values
reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group would
currently obtain from disposal of the assets, after deducting
the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of
the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful
life.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on interests in associates

The directors of the Company regularly review the
recoverable amount of the associates (including its goodwill).
Determining whether impairment is required involves the
estimation of the value in use less costs of disposal of the
associates to which exceed the carrying amount of the
associates. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of associates net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$267,410,000, amounted
to Nil.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Property, plant and equipment mainly represented the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the fair value of
the property, plant and equipment less costs to sell or the
value-in-use calculations. An impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The recoverable amount of warehouse has been determined
based on a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, using the
depreciated replacement cost approach. Besides, the directors
of the Company also determined the recoverable amount of
warehouse with the estimation of future expected cash flows
from the warehouse and a suitable discount rate. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$99,266,000
(2017: HK$111,448,000). The carrying amount of warehouse
is HK$92,416,000 (2017: HK$102,527,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments (Continued)

Prepaid lease payments are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value of the prepaid lease payments less costs to sell or the
future expected cash flows. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The recoverable amount of prepaid lease payments have
been determined based on a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, using comparable market price of similar
prepaid lease payments on an open market value with the
assumptions that the prepaid lease payments are sold in the
market in its existing state. The carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments is HK$23,021,000 (2017: HK$25,040,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
impairment loss has been recognised for property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires significant
judgment and estimation, in particular, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and credit-impaired financial
assets as well as the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels
of allowances. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are set out in note 53.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$143,979,000 (2017:
HK$151,122,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$21,793,000 (2017: HK$14,650,000).

Fair values of identifiable intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of the
reporting period or recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In the
absence of an active market for the business combination/
acquisition transactions undertaken by the Group, in order
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates according to the valuation results produced by an
independent professional valuer.

Fair value of contingent consideration receivables

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables of
acquisition was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions, including the discount rates,
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries and the probability of meeting each profit target.
It is subsequently re-measured to fair value at the end of
each reporting periods. Changes in assumption used could
materially affect the fair value of the balances and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and results of
operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of contingent consideration receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of contingent consideration receivables
as at 31 December 2018 was HK$13,686,000 (2017:
HK$9,879,000).

Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2018 was HK$9,249,000 (2017: HK$10,906,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock price,
future interest rates and the timing with respect to exercise
of the options. The effects of a change in one or more of
these variables could result in a materially different fair value.

Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expenses required
to fulfil the relevant obligations of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses. Such
estimation is made based on the available information as at
the end of each reporting period and is determined by the
Group's practical experience, default history of the business,
taking into consideration of industry information and market
data. It is possible that the practical experience and default
history is not indicative of future loss on the guarantees
issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC Subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2018 related to the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries that are subject to
withholding taxes once distributed.
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5. REVENUE 5. YA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: AEERFANBASITAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZZET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Sales of goods HEEm 60,043 64,182
Warehouse storage income B EF B A 13,342 6,518
Income from loan financing business EXEEEB WA
— Loan referral and consultancy services fee — % B 74 8 RS & 56,731 37,900
— Interest income from loans receivables — W E R 2 FEWA 5,529 2,811
— Guarantee fee income from financial —RERERZERBRA
guarantees 7,762 410
Income from securities brokerage business 75 &5 4F 40 2 15 2 WA
— Interest income from margin financing —REZBEZFBWA 332 560
— Commission income from securities —ZHXHz2MERA
dealing 378 2,273
— Commission income from underwriting —BiEZAS A - 603
Commission income from insurance Rzl A
brokerage 8,007 14,072
Commission income from asset management & E & 2 2 & WA 471 1,323
152,595 130,652

146 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. The Group is organised into the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of warehouse in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in the PRC.

— Loan financing segment represents the provision of
financial guarantee, loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and the PRC.

— Securities brokerage segment represents the operation of
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placements in Hong Kong.

— Asset management segment engages in the provision of
asset management services in Hong Kong.

— Insurance brokerage segment represents the provision
of the insurance brokerage and agency services in Hong
Kong.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

6. DEFE R (&)
AEU AR & ()
BZE-EB—\E+-A=+-AiLEE

il

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Industrial
property General Securities Asset Insurance
development trading  Loan financing brokerage  management brokerage Total
IXA
NERR -REZ ENRE BHLRL EEEE RELE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FER THEx FET FET FET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2HRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-REER - 60,043 56,731 378 an 8,007 125,630
Recognised over time R 1338 - 13,291 332 - - 26,965
13,342 60,043 70,022 710 amn 8,007 152,595
SEGMENT RESULTS IBER (6,925) 4,255 54,605 (2,287) (5,405) (435) 43,808
Unallocated corporate income FABEEHA 187
Unallocated corporate FABRLERT
expenses (47,660)
Unallocated finance costs RABRBHA (4,628)
Fair value change on contingent EUSARELATELD
consideration receivables 3,807
Fair value change on financial assets BATEGABRNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZATEEE (4.858)
Impairment loss on amount due EUHEAAREZHERE
from associates (9)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHERR (7,143)
Share-based payment expenses URBZHFERE (40313)
Loss on written off of property, W% BERREZER
plant and equipment (8)
Other receivables written off MR ERRE (590)
Other payables written back BEEMENRE 345
Loss before tax REAEE (56,862)
Income tax expenses Jiig=ht B (1.741)
Loss for the year rEERR (58,603)

148 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

6. DEBE R ()
D EBURA T 2 4 ()

—E-NF+_A=+—HLHFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=1+T—HIFE
Industrial
property General Securities Asset Insurance
development trading  Loan financing brokerage management brokerage Total
I%A
B —%E85 EXpE FAEE BEER REBER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TETL TATL TET FHTL TET
SEGMENT REVENUE AEUA
Recognised at a point in time RE-BHER - 64,182 37,900 2,876 1323 14,072 120,353
Recognised over time RER R RERR 6,518 - 3,221 560 - - 10,299
6,518 64,182 41,121 3436 1,323 14,072 130,652
SEGMENT RESULTS AHRE (11,905) 1,605 27,755 (545) (704) 6) 16,200
Unallocated corporate income FAELERA 1,854
Unallocated corporate expenses RARCERX (48,070)
Unallocated finance costs RABEBRA (6,497)
Compensation received ElwE Ei% 20,297
De-recognition of deferred consideration iz £ 67,901
Fair value change on contingent JEW'X'*WEZ ATES
consideration receivables (10,988)
Fair value change on financial assets RATEFABENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRTEEY 2,409
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZFHRE 945
Share-based payment expenses AR A 2 R FRBR (989)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREER (14,650)
Impairment loss on other receivables B RERE (2,402)
Impairment loss on amounts due EUEERRFECAEER
from associates (11)
Profit before tax BRERATER 25,999
Income tax credit liigeairtisad 4
Profit for the year REEEH 26,042
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external EXFERNMAAED HWALKBINRE

customers
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEHEEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and NTRAKREEERBERAZHD 2
liabilities by reportable segments. D E)DHT o
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-N\H+-A=+—H
Industrial
property General Securities Asset Insurance
development trading  Loan financing brokerage ~ management brokerage Total
I%A
NEER -RE% LE FHER BEEE RREL @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TER FET TET TET FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 142,297 40,292 476,090 15,839 2,539 2,769 679,826
Unallocated bank balances and cash FABRTERRRS 11,090
Unallocated property, plant FARNE BERRE
and equipment 5271
Unallocated other receivables, FARAMERTE
prepayments and deposits BRFERES 4,754
Unallocated goodwill FARHE 143,979
Unallocated financial assets at fair value RABAHLESREE
through other comprehensive income 14,492
Unallocated financial assets at fair value kA BEBBHEATE
through profit or loss SIRNEREE 37,552
Unallocated contingent consideration KA BEMAANRE
receivables 13,686
Consolidated total assets GRREEAE 910,656
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHEE 90,419 2 124,501 1,418 40 443 216,843
Unallocated other payables FABEMERTE 3,563
Unallocated deferred consideration FRABBERE 25,625
Consolidated total liabilities GAREEAE 246,031
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2017

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

6. D EPER (1)
PHAEREME (&)

R-F—tF+-A=+—H

—E-NF+_A=+—HLHFE

Industrial
property General Securities Asset Insurance
development trading  Loan financing brokerage management brokerage
I%A
NEER —%E85 EXpE FAEE BEER RBELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FEL FiEn T TEn Tix
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 175,091 25,591 537,678 19,136 5,578 5,784 768,858
Unallocated bank balances and cash RABRBKOERRRS 78,012
Unallocated property, plant and equipment KA ENE  BE Rk
Unallocated other receivables, prepayments 5 £ & £ 1 FE U Z & -
and deposits BRRERES
Unallocated goodwill FOREE 151,122
Unallocated available-forsale financial assets  AAE A HESREE 20,579
Unallocated financial assets at fair value RALERERRATE
through profit or loss JIRMe AR 2,410
Unallocated contingent consideration FAREUSIARE
receivables
Consolidated total assets GREELE 1,065,243
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities PHEE 100,812 - 163,972 3915 15 426 269,140
Unallocated other payables FOBEENTE
Unallocated convertible notes *%@E—Wﬂxﬂf
Unallocated deferred consideration RAEELERE 71,293
Consolidated total liabilities GREEEE 350,414
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

152

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. DEFE R (#)
]

BE-Z-/\F+t-A=1+t—HLFE

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing ~ brokerage management  brokerage  Unallocated Total
IXA
NERR -REZ EXRE BHRE BEER RREE KR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FER FET THER FET THER TET
Information included in segment AR BEE
results/segment assets: PBEERMER:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 8,280 = 2,252 56 18 23 2,644 13,273
Bank interest income EGEIECN (18) (673) (716) (7) = (1) (51) (1,486)
Entrusted loan interest income ZHEFFSMA - - (850) - - - = (850)
Other loan interest income HpERHSBA = = (14,885) = = = = (14,885)
Investment income from National Debt Reverse REEEFEBERL
Repurchase products RERA - - (1,465) - - - - (1,465)
Investment income from financial assets BRATEGABGNH SR
at fair value through profit or loss AEZRARA - - (376) - - - - (376)
Finance costs BBRA 6,072 - 860 - - - 4,628 11,560
Fair value change on financial assets BRATEGABRN SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEZATEEY - - (6,247) - - - 4,858 (1,389)
Fair value change on contingent EUAAREBLATEED
consideration receivables - - - - - - (3,807) (3,807)
Loss on written off of property, HEmE BER
plant and equipment REZER - - 18 - - - 8 26
Impairment loss HEER = = 7512 i = = = 7,523
Other receivables written off i sEE A PR MR - - 1,298 - - - 590 1,888
Other payables written back RO EEAHE - - (941) - - - (545) (1,486)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-_ZT—+tF+-A=1T—RHILFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage  management brokerage  Unallocated Total
I%8
NELR —REH ENpE FHEL BEER RiggL FAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Tin Fitn Tin FEL TAL FEL TEL
Information included in segment results/ SARBES/
seqment assets: ABEEMER:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 8,510 - 1356 16 7 23 2,764 12,676
Finance costs BT 6,247 - 3,597 - - - 6,496 16,340
Loss on disposal and written off of property, HERMENE HER
plant and equipment RENEE - - 5 - - - - 5
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables FEYBR 3R R L o FE MR
HEEE - - 569 - - - 2,402 2,971
Bank interest income RTRSIA (548) (62) (243) (122) - (n (1,056) (2,032)
Other loan interest income EERFISMA - - (8,122) - - - - (8,122)
Impairment loss on amount due from associates EYEE DR FENRESE - - - - - - 11 il
Fair value change on contingent consideration ERIARBHATES
receivables - - - - - - 10,988 10,988
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value BRATEGABRN SR
through profit or loss BEIATEEY - - - - - - (2,409) (2,409)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DESE Rt ()
Geographical information & &R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the REERBTERPHALEER-
PRC.
The Group's revenue from external customers based on the NTRARERBEEERBINKRE P
locations of operations and information about its non-current WA RILZEEMEMREDHIERBE
assets other than deferred tax assets by geographical location ECEEMBEERIN < BER -

of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIREFHBA ERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“®-\F -T-tF CZB-\F -T—t&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET FET
Hong Kong % 12,130 21,642 210,452 222,705
PRC i 140,465 109,010 126,200 136,187
152,595 130,652 336,652 358,892
Information about major customers EREXEEFHNEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REBFEREBMHAEEBZKAI0% A
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are EHEPZWALT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZFT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Customer A BEPA 17,928 46,915
Customer B’ EFB N/A 38 A2 17,295
Customer C? BFC N/A T8 A2 13,918
' Revenue from general trading. TORE—REHHMA -
2 Revenue from financial consultancy service. 2 RESEBARBOKA -
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of P BB A EAEREBELAKA10% A o

total revenue of the Group.
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HABUWA - Wz K g5 18
2018 2017
—E-N\F T—tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHIT
Compensation received (Note a) EFEESEE (HTa) - 20,297
De-recognition of deferred consideration BUBRERIELERE (FMisEb)
(Note b) - 67,901
Fair value change on contingent EWHAREBZ A TFEZES
consideration receivables 3,807 (10,988)
Fair value change on financial assets BT EFAERED
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZRFEY 1,389 2,409
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z FE - 945
Handling fee income FEBWA 55 267
Impairment loss on amounts due from JE Wi & R R FRIB 2
associates BB B 1B 9) (11)
Bank interest income fﬁﬁﬂ S 1,486 2,032
Entrusted loan interest income TEFFBWA 850 -
Other loans interest income ﬁf’@f#ﬂ = Hﬁ(?\ 14,885 8,122
Investment income from financial asset BERFEGFAER
at fair value through profit or loss i%ﬁﬁ?Z&ﬁHﬂU\ 376 -
Investment income from National Debt REEEYFEBEMS
Reverse Repurchase products KEWA 1,465 -
Loss on written off of property, WM BB &
plant and equipment R EE (26) (5)
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain MEH (B8 k%58 (22) 582
Other receivables written off Hif 85 B th 8 Uk SR I8 (1,888) -
Other payables written back 18 [0] L {th & 1< 318 1,486 -
Service fee income AR 75 B A 2,192 -
Management service income B IR RIS 3,857 -
Sundry income IR A 1,020 1,512
30,923 93,063
Notes: B 5T
(a) Compensation received represented the compensation received (@ BRMESHEERERRHAZT —HFWM

from the vendor in respect of the acquisition of 45% of At+HBzEBEH#E 2GR BlEEX
issued capital of Intraday Financial Information Service Limited PREESBRBERAR([EXe®)Z

("Intraday”) according to the terms of Sales and Purchase
Agreement dated 15 April 2015 as Intraday was not able to
achieve the Performance Target as specified in the Sales and

Purchase Agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EA A - Was RE 1R ()

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)

(b) According to the audited consolidated financial statements of b) BRER-_ZE—CF=ZA-_FTBHEZEH
Oriental Credit Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (" Oriental EEERBRATREMBAR ([RAE
Credit Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 issued BEEEEBEE_Z—X"F+-A=1+—H
on 20 March 2017, the Oriental Credit Group made a loss for B RERFRAVBRE RAEE
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Based on the EERBEE-_T— /\¢+ A=+—H1
terms of the sales and purchase agreement for the acquisition, FHRFEEHGSERE- BREEENBEERE
the deferred consideration ceased to become payable and, WEGR BEBIXNETERE Eit-
accordingly, the Group derecognised the deferred consideration & B2 U R R (B 467,901,000
at the carrying amount of HK$67,901,000 and it was TZBRERBEREERFRERFTERS
recognised as other income in the profit or loss for the year. E A -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIT%A 7R
2018 2017
—E-NFE ZZET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET

Effective interest on convertible notes AMBRERERFE 296 584

Imputed interest on deferred consideration IEER (B & (HE R 8 4,332 5,912

Interest on bank loans IRITERFE 6,072 6,247

Interest on other loans HibERF B 860 3,597

11,560 16,340
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 9. BEEE  HIFREE [
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET

Impairment losses recognised on: 2R TﬁlJKIEZMTEJEETE 1

— Trade receivables and other receivables — JE YU BR R R EL A B U R 2,021 2,971

— Loans and interests receivables - EWEREFE 5,273 -

— Other deposits - HEfhize 229 -

7,523 2,971

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended HE_ZT-/\FTA=1T—HLFEZ

31 December 2018 are set out in note 53. BB (A B # AT FE53 o
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10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

156

108 R R >z (%)

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current tax: E AR IR -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR ERTED 858 3,732
Under (over) provision in prior years: BEFERETT (BERE)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REERTER 193 (3,775)
Deferred tax: AEERIA -
Current year BRIFE 690 -
1,741 (43)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
have no estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT") is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Company with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
“EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise Income
Tax Policies for Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and
Xinjiang Kashgar Autonomous Region ( (Bf BB B R #¢
BERERTERAERRTREASKECERERR G
XS MEFTBRKXMNBE) ) promulgated by the State
Council on 29 November 2011, if a corporate enterprise
is newly established within calendar years 2010 to 2020
in two specific regions with business fallen in the scope of
the Catalogue of Preferred Enterprise Income Tax for Key
Encouraged Industries in Poor Areas of Xinjiang ( <78 &
B EERSBEREECEMSHEFBE) ), the
corporate enterprise can enjoy a preferential treatment
(i.e., 5-year exemption) from the first year when the entity
begins to generate revenue. Two subsidiaries incorporated in
Khorgos are exempted from income tax upon an approval by
the State Taxation Bureau of the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region in 2017 and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued) 10.T1EMAES (%) @)
AEERAHREY RSO BEREBE

The income tax expense for th year can be reconciled to the

(loss) profit before tax in the consolidated statement of profit Wz R MR BR B A (B398 ) & A1 ¥ AR 10
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: T
2018 2017
=E2E-NFE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
(Loss) profit before taxation BrELAT (E1E) @ (56,862) 25,999
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of RENFERHE25%
25% (2017: 25%) —E—tF:25%)
HEELIE (14,216) 6,500
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BRSO E
tax purpose 19,711 9,282
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARGWANTFE
tax purpose (9,461) (15,836)
Under (over) provision in prior years BAFERETE (BEERB) 193 (3,775)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AERLTRZENTBTE
differences (16) (13)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEMREEE L
as deferred tax asset MIBEBN MG E 9,843 9,641
Tax effect of tax exemption granted REBBRENH B E (13,130) (3,119)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not HAATARERNTIEES
recognised (253) (1,830)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ R Efth 5l)E R & ER
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARTRBENTE 9,070 (893)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FRMEHAS (ER) 1,741 (43)
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11.(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

the following items:

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

MN.ERXN (EE) &
E7 (FB) wFD NG ToES -

2018 2017
=E2E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SCENRiEN-¢/S=1:0k 3! 750 729
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#HE
(included in administrative and (FFATTE X
other operating expense) HiEERS) 1,165 1,132
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRI B &
— audit services —ZE R 1,100 1,000
— other services — H {th AR 75 800 1,130
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses REAZNFEKA 56,702 62,939
Depreciation of property, plant and M RE REENITE
equipment 11,358 10,815
Legal and professional fees FERERBEEEA 3,048 4,631
Rent and rates B K= 15,096 12,641
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments E LA (BEZEEEHE) 50,626 32,951
12.DIVIDENDS 12.0x &
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders RZZ—N\FHERARA T BRFIRA
of the Company during 2018, nor has any dividend been FEBRRNRE BERSHRETEESR
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017: A R AR 2, (_ZC +FTET) °

HKS$Nil).
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13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEMTAER (BERA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &1 (5 622&)%3831'7& N
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEEFRER) R (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 6226%)&? 5 FmREIRTE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT H K FE )

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) ESRITHARME

RIZEA _EHR R REE QBRI
BRNESERTRAHFAMSOT

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZFE-\FS+ZA=+—-HL#HF

B
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes  emoluments
e 2 BAKER
ik REMER Mg A BE 3 Mo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TEL TET TERT TERT TEL
Executive directors HTES
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman AR REE (EF)
(Note a) (PzEa) - 3,600 300 18 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, Chief BREBEE (THESR)
Executive Officer (Note b) (MzED) = 676 = 4 680
Mr. ZHANG Peidong SRR £ A - 720 - 18 738
- 4,996 300 40 5,336
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BEREE 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE 360 - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang BfHaELT 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie (Note ¢) RAAEL (o) 156 - - - 156
1,236 - - - 1,236
Total emoluments emaE 1,236 4,996 300 40 6,572
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13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

BEZEM =

s Em (BERE
= (35622F ) 38315 A A
(BFEEENZER) RO (F
622GE ) NEE EMHBEAET
R EE) (&)

juj

() EERTHARME (18)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_T—tF+_A=+—HIHF
IS
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
He 2HR RIKEFIEE
ik H 18 BtETEAT 3k B¢ 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FET TETL TET TET
Executive directors HITEER
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chief Executive 272 5 % & (1THE8 L)
Officer (Note a) (PzEa) - 3,600 175 18 3,793
Mr. ZHANG Peidong SRR S A - 720 - 18 738
- 4,320 175 36 4,531
Independent non-executive B EHITES
directors
Mr. JIN Bingrong (Note d) SMERE (HFEd) 118 - - - 118
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BERLAE 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie RNAAEL 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu ARZFEE 360 - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang BfaRELT 360 - - - 360
1,558 - - - 1,558
Total emoluments MemeE 1,558 4,320 175 36 6,089
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13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEMTAER (BERA

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &1 (5 622&)%3831'7& N
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEEFRER) R (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622G a)&’é 5 FmREIRTE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT MHEEE) (#0)
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

() EERTHARME (18)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)
Notes: 3T
(@) Mr. LIU Kequan ceased to act as the chief executive officer (@) BmRZhEB _T—N\FANBRE

with effect on 8 June 2018. THEETBEH -

(b) Mr. YANG Dayong was appointed as an executive director by GREEEB_ZT-NFANBE
of the Company and the chief executive officer with effect BEZERADGBITES RITHAE
on 8 June 2018.

(c) Dr. RUI Mingjie retired as an independent non-executive (0 WARBLTEZZE—N\F A HE
director of the Company with effect on 6 June 2018. BERRBBILIERMITES -

(d) Mr. JIN Bingrong retired as an independent non-executive () eRxEEE_FT—tFHA-_TN
director of the Company with effect on 28 April 2017. HEEREARARIEILIEHNITES -

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended HE_ZT-N\FEZFT—tF+=H

31 December 2018 and 2017. No incentive payment for
joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE
13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BESFMNaER (BBAF
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION fkB (25622%F ) 538315 A A
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (WEBEEZFSER) RO (2
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE) BB EMAAHRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT I EE) (@)
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHATZMS (8)
(Continued)
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above EYERITEEMES I EERBEER
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company HE-_ZT-\FEZFT—tF+=H
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December T+ —BLEFEEEARARISHNE
2018 and 2017. NAIESHRG M -
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments FABIERITEETME I EERK
shown above were mainly for their services as directors ERBE_ZT-—N\FRZZT—LF
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended TZA=+t—BALEFEEEARRAIK
31 December 2018 and 2017. HIftB AR ESH RS e
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EZEMNRER
None of the directors received or will receive any FAR-MEES D YE S U EE A
retirement benefits during the year (2017: Nil). BREN(ZTE—tF &) -
(c) Directors’ termination benefits (c) EERILEREER
None of the directors received or will receive any FAR-BIEESE WA G W EER
termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil). BibEEEMN(ZE—tF &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

(e)

(f)

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2017: Nil).
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e M BRRME
ZE-NFE+ZA=+—HIEFE

13 EEF SRS (FEAT
fig il (5 62251)§E383mK NF]

Yaray
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GRGE)&E 5 FmREIRTE
R EE) (&)

(d) MEHESRBAFE=STRHENKE

BHE_ZT- \F+_-_A=+—HItF
B ARrERIELESRERMT
AFE="HRE(ZT—tF #) -
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

14.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2017: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2017: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

“hER=#HEER

FAXEEREERFREEERE R (=
T—tF —F)BES EMeHFBHR
FXWFEI3 - HBTUB(ZE—+F: [
BIWHEARRESERITHABHN TS
EERFANBESFBOT :

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ZT—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R RHAMER 8,100 5,898
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R K& Fl &t 2] 4 5% 72 63
Share-based payment expenses PARR 19 2 A ;R IB R 32 2,907 -
11,079 5,961

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

ATEHINLIFEARREEFNRSHEEA
N i FH) Fr M

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+tF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAR EE A

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

Z T2 1,000,0007 7T — -
1,000,001/8 7c & 1,500,0007% 7T - 2
1,500,0017% 7T £ 2,000,0007% JT 1
2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,000/% 7T 1
2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,000/%8 7T

N |

3,000,0017% 7T £3,500,0007% 7T 2 -
3,500,0017% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T - -
4,000,001/ 7T 24,500,000 7T - -

4 4
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following data:

(Loss) earnings

(Loss) earnings for the year attributable to

owners of the Company for the purpose

15.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

e R ME
15,30 (E518) &7

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

RRTREBABGEEREARREE (Ei8)
BN THEETE
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
(E51E) BF
HEBRER (BE)ZF
mENARRAHEE AR
of basic (loss) earnings per share HFRN (EE) &R (58,603) 26,020
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ##EF L@k 2 2
Interest on convertible notes (net of tax) AR EEAE (MRTIE) - -
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of diluted ~ FLEAREE (E18) BFME W
(loss) earnings per share (EB#E)&BA (58,603) 26,020
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
‘000 ‘000
TR T %
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HERER (BE)BFNMS &
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) TR NETHEAE
earnings per share 6,894,750 6,097,717
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ##EF L@k 2 T2
— Share options — B = 24,324
— Convertible notes — AR R IR - -
Weighted average number of MEREE (BE) &2 mS 8
ordinary shares for the purpose of LB INEFHEE
diluted (loss) earnings per share 6,894,750 6,122,041

RPESRMERERAT | —FT—\FFRHK
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLFE

15.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 15. 830 (EE) 8B @

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based
on the (loss) profit attributable to owners of the Company,
and the weighted average number of shares approximately
6,894,750,000 ordinary shares (2017: 6,097,717,000) in
issue.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
did not assume the exercise of the share options during the
year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. No
adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as conversion of
convertible notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is same as the basic
earnings per share.

The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares on
exercise of share options for the year ended 31 December
2017 and adjustment was made in calculating diluted
earnings per share. No adjustment was made in calculating
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 as conversion of convertible notes would result in an
increase in earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

ALl N A
16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 9% = M &t
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvement Warehouse equipment vehicles Total
BR-HER
HEMEEE BE =B "E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHET FHT FHET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—A—H 10,771 150,567 3,885 2,872 168,095
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 % K /& 2 7B U i - - 820 471 1,291
Additions NE - - 120 - 120
Derecognised on disposal of HENTE A AR LR
subsidiaries - - (208) - (208)
Written off ik 472) - (670) - (1,142)
Exchange realignment BE 5.7 2 - 11,326 77 96 11,499
At 31 December 2017 and A S e
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—8k
—T-NF—A—H 10,299 161,893 4,024 3,439 179,655
Additions NE 198 3,276 343 570 4,387
Written off T 8 - - (98) (350) (448)
Exchange realignment i 5§ R - (8,534) (84) (98) (8,716)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\&F
+=ZB=+—H 10,497 156,635 4,185 3,561 174,878
Depreciation and impairment FERRE
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t+t5—H—H 2,776 47,684 2,681 1,038 54,179
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 K} /& 2 7B U B - - 431 42 473
Provided for the year REF B 2,060 7,775 454 526 10,815
Eliminated on disposals of subsidiaries 11 & P & /A &) 85 i § - - (162) - (162)
Written off ki (472) - (665) - (1,137)
Exchange realignment BE N R - 3,907 56 76 4,039
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—Bk
—ZT-N\F—HA—H 4,364 59,366 2,795 1,682 68,207
Provided for the year REFEE 2,065 8,271 434 588 11,358
Written off ke - - (90) (332) (422)
Exchange realignment BE R - (3,418) (59) (54) (3,531)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\&F
+ZB=+—H 6,429 64,219 3,080 1,884 75,612
Carrying amounts EREE
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\&F
+=ZB=+—H 4,068 92,416 1,105 1,677 99,266
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+5F
+=—A=+—8 5,935 102,527 1,229 1,757 111,448
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B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILtFE
16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  16.1 3 * [ 55 N 5% 46 (#)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Tt -BERZEEBEEEA NIIFE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per REREEFENE:
annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of remaining MEMEEE R L FIERF B N 20%
unexpired terms of (ABEERBE)
the leases and 20%
Warehouse 5% BE 5%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33% R EEREE 10%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-33% ST 20%-33%
The warehouse are situated on land in the PRC held under a BEARPE T E REFPHERAL
medium-term to long-term land use right. AR -
17.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. 78 HH & 5E
The Group's prepaid lease payments are amortised and AEENENHERERESEENRHEE
charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement NELRE B &ﬁ@iﬁﬂﬁl s P B
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a N 8 & HBR

straight-line basis over the lease term.

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAETT
Cost 2%
Balance at beginning of the year FYEERR 34,145 31,756
Exchange realignment RIS (1,771) 2,389
Balance at end of the year FRAER 32,374 34,145
Accumulated amortisation E- g £
Balance at beginning of the year F SR 9,105 7,762
Amortisation for the year F N 5 750 729
Exchange realignment & X R (502) 614
Balance at end of the year FRER 9,353 9,105
Carrying amounts REE
Balance at end of the year FRER 23,021 25,040
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEMSIHMT:
Current assets MENEE 719 759
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,302 24,281
23,021 25,040
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

18.GOODWILL 18. 7 &
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Cost A
Balance at beginning of the year F YR 165,772 123,612
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries U BB B A Al i = A& - 42,160
Balance at end of the year FRER 165,772 165,772
Accumulated impairment losses It R EEE
Balance at beginning of the year FYER 14,650 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRAEHERREEE 7,143 14,650
Balance at end of the year FREERR 21,793 14,650
Carrying amounts AREE
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 143,979 151,122

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 20.

BREmERERSANFF BRI E208E -

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

169
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EE
Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
BEEER
R 5K =) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
Cost R R
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—H—H 500 10,800 11,300
Exchange realignment bE R —~ 812 812
At 31 December 2017 and RZZT—LF
1 January 2018 TZA=+—HBRK
—E-N\F—A—H 500 11,612 12,112
Exchange realignment bE W, A - (602) (602)
At 31 December 2018 R-TE-NF
+=HA=+—H 500 11,010 11,510
Amortisation and impairment R REE
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—+&—H—H - 26 26
Provided for the year FREE - 1,132 1,132
Exchange realignment PE 5 5 B - 48 48
At 31 December 2017 and N_ZTE—+F
1 January 2018 +=—A=+—8xk
—E-N\F¥—H—H - 1,206 1,206
Provided for the year FREE - 1,165 1,165
Exchange realignment bE W, SR - (110) (110)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZT-N\F
+=A=+—H - 2,261 2,261
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\#F
+=—HA=+—8 500 8,749 9,249
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—LF
+=-—A=+—H 500 10,406 10,906
The trading right are retained for stock trading and ROERBEREEBERRELLES-

170

stockbroking activities. The trading right have been
considered to have indefinite lives because they are
expected to contribute to the net cash flows of the Group
indefinitely, and are not amortised. Instead it will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication

that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing

are disclosed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &=

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and the
trading right with indefinite useful life set out in notes 18
and 19 have been allocated to five individual cash generating
units (CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the insurance
brokerage segment (“Insurance Brokerage CGU"), one
subsidiary in the security brokerage segment (“Security
Brokerage CGU"), two subsidiaries in the asset management
segment (“Asset Management CGU") and the subsidiaries in
the financing referral operation (”Financing Referral CGU")
and the subsidiaries in the financing guarantee operation
(“Financial Guarantee CGU"). The carrying amounts of
goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 allocated to these units are as
follows:

e B RRME

—E-NF+_A=+—HLHFE

19. 8] EE (&)

EEERFERHMBEGSEEEESR
B BREBEER BESE- I%ITFE
B AREBERESEZE-EREERKF
BHENIR BB AL E$}\1¢ﬁ'ﬁ}XEW$Z
HAE Lﬁéleiﬂz &R E10F 55T
A P HE T TS

20. 7 K LB EIR A A 5 5

E’] 7 ﬁ/ éF Erj /UME /,\'J nl\

sUBERI B S - 18RI E A E &
AERAEAFHIRSEC O EER]RA
EpReELEM (BReELEM]) B

R &R DA —HH B 2R (TR
< %Efﬁﬁjgi FAL]) SRR —
BB AR ((BEFELBSELEM]) -

ﬁ?’féﬁ”* HMEMNERR ([BESE
BRGEABEM]) BEBN D EMAM
Brrl((MEENREELEM]) Mk
BEREBOMBLAR (IMEERES
EEEMN]) RZTE-—N\FR_ZT—+F
T A=t —HIREZFEMNHHE (1
fr RETRERE) BREENT

Goodwill Trading right
BE RS

2018 2017 2018 2017

—ZE-N\f§ —T—+F —E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT TR THET TET

Insurance Brokerage CGU RegLReELEN 1,537 2,140 - -

Security Brokerage CGU BAREReEEEN - 6,522 500 500

Assets Management CGU EEEBRRGELEN 7,990 8,008 - -

Financing Referral CGU MEBNHEELEN 100,282 100,282 - -

Financial Guarantee CGU MEERREELEN 34,170 34,170 - -

Total “aat 143,979 151,122 500 500
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

172

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuer, the management of the Group has determined that
an impairment loss of HK$7,143,000 (2017: HK$14,650,000)
in relation to goodwill allocated to the groups of CGUs. There
were no material changes in the methodology and sources
of market data applied in the valuation for 2018 and 2017.
After reviewing the performance of Securities Brokerage
CGU, Asset Management CGU and Insurance Brokerage CGU
in 2018, the management of the Group revised downwards
on cash flow forecasts of Securities Brokerage CGU, Asset
Management CGU and Insurance Brokerage CGU.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017. Their major underlying assumptions on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are summarised
below:

Discount rate per annum - the discount rate used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the development
of the market.

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Insurance Brokerage CGU
was determined based on a value in use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 19.39% (2017: 20.24%). Cash flows after the
three-year period were extrapolated using 3% (2017: 3%)
growth rate in considering the economic condition of the
market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Insurance Brokerage CGU (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss
of HK$603,000 (2017: HK$191,000) has been provided
in relation to Insurance Brokerage CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$1,537,000 at the
end of the reporting period. The impairment loss arose
as a result of the less than satisfactory past and expected
performance of the Insurance Brokerage CGU.

Security Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Security Brokerage CGU was
determined based on a value in use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 14.33% (2017: 18.11%). Cash flows after the
three-year period were extrapolated using 3% (2017: 3%)
growth rate in considering the economic condition of the
market.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss of
HK$6,522,000 (2017: HK$7,978,000) has been provided
in relation to Securities Brokerage CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil at the end of the
reporting period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the
less than satisfactory past and expected performance of the
Securities Brokerage CGU.

Assets Management CGU

The recoverable amounts of the Assets Management CGU
were determined based on a value in use calculation with
the assistance of the independent professional qualified
valuers not connected with the Group. The calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a three-year period, and at a
discount rate of 16.66% (2017: 18.58%) and 16.16%
(2017: 18.72%). Cash flows after the three-year period
were extrapolated using 3% (2017: 3%) growth rate in
considering the economic condition of the market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

174

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Assets Management CGU (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss
of HK$18,000 (2017: HK$6,482,000) has been provided
in relation to Assets Management CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$7,990,000 at the
end of the reporting period. The impairment loss arose
as a result of the less than satisfactory past and expected
performance of the Assets Management CGU.

Financing Referral CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financing Referral CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 17.02% (2017: 18.13%).
Cash flows after the three-year period were extrapolated
using 3% (2017: 3%) growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.

The recoverable amount of the Financing Referral CGU
estimated from the cash flow forecast exceeds the carrying
amounts. Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill of
Financing Referral CGU has been recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Guarantee CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financial Guarantee CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 20.19% (2017: 17.68%).
Cash flows after the three-year period were extrapolated
using 3% (2017: 3%) growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.

The recoverable amount of the Financial Guarantee CGU
estimated form the cash flow forecast exceeds the carrying
amount. Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill of
Financial Guarantee CGU has been recognised in profit or
loss.
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BMEBNRETELEN

BMEENREEASMNATRESFE T
EAEBVEBENBEIRESERGHE
MBS TEE - BHEERERERKE
EEAERE-FHENYKEEFRIR
SREFAWHEA17.02% (ZE—+4F:
18.13% MM E - = FHMEMNIR SR
ENEEMBLEERI FH3% (ZF
—tF 3% )M REER -

BREREVAPAETIREENRS
EE B RE S FEEBAREE- A
BEENHeEASUNEERERBEYL
ﬁE/\\TFE\ﬁﬁEPEﬁW\

BEERASELEN

MEERREELEEMN T WESRETIE
RSBV EBENE I EXSERHE
MBS TEE - BHEFERERERKE
ﬁf‘%ﬁt/ﬁ/@***Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁpmfﬁ
S MmETERIWEKA20.19% —+F:
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ENEEMBREENRR FHA3% (ZF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & = —

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

e B RRME

E-N\F+-A=t+—HILFE

21. 708 & A Rl A HE 2

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Cost of investment in associates — unlisted ~ B & QA FIIREMKAR—FE LT 306,346 306,346
Accumulated share of post-acquisition loss /\uﬂ;fﬂﬁlﬁﬁ?@%ﬁ&

and other comprehensive expense Hih2EAX (38,936) (38,936)

Less: impairment loss B OREEE (267,410) (267,410)

The following list contains only the particulars of associates,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price is not available:

Place of
incorporation

TRIEFHYSABFLTRARERAY

EMEZBERANER:

Proportion of nominal
ownership interest

Name and operation attributable to the Company Principal activities
=L a1 B SL % B it B ERAREMEERRALY TEXEHR
2018 2017
ZB-N\F _T—+F
Intraday Financial Information British Virgin Islands 45% 45% Investment holding
Service Limited ("BVI")
("Intraday Financial”) (Note a)
EREMEERBERAF] EBELES REER
(Mg Xer)) (Mita) ([EBEZAES])
Note: B =T -

(@) The recoverable amount of the investment in Intraday Group
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. To
determine the recoverable amount of Intraday Financial, the
Group used pre-tax cash flow projection based on the financial
budget approved by management covering a five-year period.

In previous year, interest on Intraday Financial was fully
impaired and the Group has already shared the losses of the
Intraday Financial to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. The Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of
losses of Intraday Group for the current year and cumulatively
were HK$4,000 (2017: HK$151,000) and HK$155,000 (2017:
HK$151,000) respectively. Considering that there is no specific
plan to revamp the business of Intraday Financial, the directors
of the Company are of the view that no reversal of the
allowance for impairment should be made.

(@ EXREEREZARESEIIREERE
B EET - RETERCRZAKDOE
HOARBERARBEREEM AL TFH
VB EEETMBARSRERER -

RBEFE NREREMZEDEERE
RASESEERSMZEIRD ZENE
ERAINER AEEVERKEEAE
BR - AEERNFEREIANDEERSE
BEBRSER DA R4,0008 T (=F
—+£ % 151,000/ 7T ) 5 155,000/ 7T ( —
£ — % :151,000/8 7T ) ° & B2 I &
EAEIREBRRERMIER ARAES

RS TIE AR B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2EEEMEEINEIEAFYE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FIBRA 2 R E E
INCOME
2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix Tt
Listed investments: WA :
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LR AF S 14,492 20,579
— Equity securities listed in the PRC — B ET AR AR E S 1,380 4,942
15,872 25,521

The movement in the fair value of equity securities are as

BRAES 2 N EEEEHINMT

follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 31 December 2017 R_E—tF+-_A=1—H -
Effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERBENBRELENEITMEENTE 25,521
At 1 January 2018 as restated RNZT—N\F—HA—B8 (L&) 25,521
AddItIOﬂ //J\E 7,574
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses PO ELfth 2 [ B 2 HE R (17,108)
Exchange realignment [ AR (115)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F+-A=1t—H 15,872

It represents the Group’s investments in listed equity
securities. All the listed equity securities are stated at fair
values which have been determined by reference to closing
prices quoted in the active markets. The Group does not

HEAREBR EWRAZBS ZIRE A
FHRABFEGRAFEIEER MAFE
TS ERRRTISMR 2 W EMETE -
AEEEZREHALEZSTRE

intend to dispose of these investments in the near future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

IRAFEFABRNTRE
23

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ZT—+F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FE& T

Unlisted investment funds FETREES 77,695 22,410
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERMENDNA:

Current assets mENEE 40,143 -

Non-current assets IERBEE 37,552 22,410

77,695 22,410

The balance of HK$37,552,000 (2017:HK$22,410,000)
represents the unlisted investment fund which primary
objectives are to provide absolute returns through pursuing
different strategies, investing primarily in equity and equity
related instruments of companies listed in Hong Kong and
PRC. The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was made
with reference to the prices quoted by the fund administrator
which reflect the net assets value of the fund.

In December 2017, the deposit of HK$36,021,000 (equivalent
to RMB30,000,000) was paid by the Group to subscribe a
privately-offered fund.

% A5 84 837,552,000 0 (ZE—+F:
22,410,000 70) " IEEZE N AE BT
ETFRBIEHEERIMAIELMRER
S EFERERBEELFPRHETMATZK
AEBRAEBELRE ZEFHFLMTEES
ZAFEDNERERESEEABRBMET
WRMRESHEEFE-

R—_ZT—+EFE+ - H AEEFZH
436,021,000 (BE R A E%
30,000,0007C) ARE—ELEES
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

In January 2018, the privately-offered fund was established.
As at 31 December 2018, the balance of HK$40,143,000
(2017:HK$NIl) represents the unlisted investment fund which
is privately-offered to subscriber in PRC. The fair value of the
privately-offered unlisted investment fund was determined
by independent valuer. The fund is primarily an investment
in 20% equity interest in registered capital of an unlisted
company incorporated in PRC which is engaged in property
development project.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, unrealised gain
of HK$1,389,000 arising from fair value changes in unlisted
investment funds were recognised in profit or loss.

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  24.

The balance represents the contingent consideration
receivables in relation to the acquisition of Access China
Group Limited (“Access China”) and its subsidiaries (“Access
China Group”) and of Sino Wealth Investment Co., Limited
("Sino Wealth”) and its subsidiaries (“Sino Wealth Group”),
pursuant to the related sale and purchase agreements. The
amounts are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at fair value.

BRFEFABENEBE
JEE (48)

AEEER _Z—NFEF—ARY B =
E-NE+_A=+—"8 Z&8 A
40,143,0008 c (ZE—tF:TF L) -
FER B REAALEREL IR ED
ELTHREES - MBI LTTREES Y
NEFEHBYGEMEFT ZEEEE
RERNEWEMBBE NN R EMA
R IEET R R E AAI20% A% AE o

HE_Z—N\E+-_RA=+—HI=EE"
HAIFEMBREESATEEHMELEZ X
I8 751,389,000/8 L E R IB T N FERR

PRI SR (E
A 096 G BRI AE B B B 1 o 0K

Access China Group Limited ([ Access
China ] ) & H K8 2 7] ([Access China
£ 3 ]) B & Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited ([Sino Wealth J) & £ [ B A 7]
([Sino Wealth &£ & | ) 2 FE UK ARAEB < 3%
SHEPEAEATEFAEGNEREE
N ANFEFTE-

2018 2017

—E-N\FE —ZT—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHEIT

At 1 January Rn—A—H 9,879 15,102

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38(a)) Wb 8~ &) (B 7E38(a) ) - 5,765

Fair value change recognised in profit or loss 718 %5 fE s B A F{E & &) 3,807 (10,988)

At 31 December R+—A=+—8 13,686 9,879
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBNSONA:

Current assets MENE E 8,759 -

Non-current assets ERBEE 4,927 9,879

13,686 9,879
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
In relation to acquisition of Access China Group

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 14 December 2016 and supplemental agreement
dated 2 February 2017 (”Acquisition Agreements A"”), the
vendor guarantees to the Company that Beijing Xinnouwei,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Access China, and
its subsidiaries shall attain certain performance targets (the
“Guaranteed Profits”) for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
(i.e. 2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000 and 2018:
HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations payable
to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the compensation,
the Company shall have the right to sell all or part of the
Consideration Shares under escrow, the net proceeds from
which shall be equal to the shortfall of the compensation, to
the independent third parties, in the securities market.

For avoidance of doubt, should the Beijing Xinnouwei and its
subsidiaries record an actual consolidated loss for any of the
financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018,
the amount shall be deemed as Nil.

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$15,889,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made
by the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreements A. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cash flow of Access China Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate ranging from
14.44% to 16.48%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

24 JEUR S A RAB ()

A BB Access China £ 8

BEBHA-—ZTE—X"F+-_A+WNHEZE
BKHEEMEM;MBRHA-—ST—tF A=
Az@rxtwz (TWEHEA]D) BAHRA
N AR E 4 =15 7 1 (Access China 2 &
E2EMBRA)MEMBRA®BS RN
B —_Z—FRFE —E—+FRK=-_ZF—N
F+-_A=+—HIEFEERETEEH
Z(RMEREL) -

MARBEREREBRHMN  KNAQF)HEHKE
E-E-—RFE ZE—F+FR=ZZE—N
F+-_A=Z+—BLUBRFEENT
EFMEEReRE (I —XRF:
30,000,000/ 7T : —ZF —+ 4 : 20,000,000
Btk —Z — \4F 10,000,000/ 7T ) 0
BEEeE - WENTEANRERET
BUALHHESE AR BENRESDT
SRBYE = FHELTENE I LIS
RERG EMGERBEFHEERERNEE
SRR D EREE -

REERRE - Wit RIE R R E M E Q]
RBE-_Z—RE —_ET—+FR_F
—NFE+ZA=+—B AT ERFEES
BSERGZAEE AEHEERRAT -

RUE B BN ARE Z AT EK
#9415,889,0007% 7t © BN & 75 1R & Uk B& #
BABRRIER Z2MREB-EELAFEED
R 45 Access China S B TERBI B IS TE & 2 #T
RReRE(EARHENATEEL
AR MM T E  KAN T14.44% =
16.48% IR E LB B RAREER 2
TEEAREEFNZZBE) MBS
HEREAEEERBECBYAEREE
HERET - B2 E AN mEER
BNMEELER-

179



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  24.FE W sk AL (B (@)

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$2,683,000 (31 December 2017: HK$4,078,000),
representing Guaranteed Profits made by the vendor in
accordance with the terms of Acquisition Agreements A.
The fair value was arrived at based on discounted cashflow
of Access China Group's forecast financial budgets used
to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow into the group by applying
probability-weighted average of achieving the required
benchmark, using discount rates 21.34% (2017: ranging
from 13.11% to 13.27%). The valuation was performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. The management discussed with valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results.

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 28 July 2017 ("Acquisition Agreement S"), the
Vendor and Vendor Guarantor guarantee to the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that Beijing An Jia
Shi Hang Financing Guarantee Company Limited (“AJSH"),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino Wealth, shall
attain certain performance targets (the “Guaranteed Profits”)
for the years ended/ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and
2019 respectively.

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and
2019 (i.e. 2017: HK$30,000,000, 2018: HK$11,000,000
and 2019: HK$6,000,000). Should the cash considerations
payable to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the
compensation, the Vendor shall compensate the amount of
difference in cash.
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BE B EE Access China &£ B (&)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8" EREHA
REZAF BG4 52,683,000 7T (=
T—+tHF+=-A=4+—H:4,078,000/%
70) - BE A RBWEHRARRIEL 2%
FRE - B A FE IR Access China
EEBAMEBEZHBRBLRE (BB
FEREBREIRE A RE BT S
KA2134% (ZE2—tF N F13.11%
F13.27% ) 2R EBEFERALREEH
ZHEHARREENZ 2BE) Mt ERE -
HEREAEBEERE BUSAEREE
HEMET -EEE RGN wmAEER
BN AHEL

BB EE Sino Wealth &

BEBHA-_Z—+FLtA=-1+N\BHZ
BRHEERE ([WEHZES]) BEF L
EHERARAARDNGEEZEE2ENEARE
&> Sino Wealth 7 2 BB A Aldb R
TRIBTHMERRERAR ([ZRMTT])
BoRREE—_E—+tF —_FT—\FX
—TE-AE+-_A=t—BIFEEXRE
FEEBEZ(BEFREL) -

F+ A=t HILUWBEFEEERMNT
EFNEBERERE (T —t5F:
30,000,000/%& 7T : —Z — J\4F : 11,000,000
BTk —F — L4 6,000,000/ T ) F #1
BRaEcE - WENTEANRERET
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

24.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group
(Continued)

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,765,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made by
the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreement S. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cashflow of Sino Wealth Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
Group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate ranging from
12.65% to 13.23%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$11,003,000 (31 December 2017: HK$5,801,000),
representing Guaranteed Profits made by the vendor in
accordance with the terms of Acquisition Agreement S.
The fair value was arrived at based on discounted cashflow
of Sino Wealth Group’s forecast financial budgets used
to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow into the Group by applying
probability-weighted average of achieving the required
benchmark, using discount rates ranging from 20.55% to
20.60% (2017: 11.62% to 12.02%.). The valuation was
performed by an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group. The management discussed
with valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

24 JEUR S A RAB ()

B B B Sino Wealth &8 (&)

RUEE BB BIRSARE 2 A FEME
#9 /45,765,000 7T * BN = 77 1R 15 Uk B8 17 =%
SIEFRIEL 2B IREB-HEBERAFETIR
& Sino Wealth £ E TR RIBF 15 TR & 2 #1387
emE(ERERESREZRE Z M
IEFHE AN T12.65% £13.23%
IR E RS M ARNE B 2 FEEAR K
ENm2RE) M ES T o (hEmHE
AEBEBECBEYAEREEGEME
7B ERGFMAmEBEBRERREE
HERo

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8" ERHA
REZAFEEET#411,003,0008 7T (=
T—+tHF+=-HA=+—H:5,801,000/%
7T)  BIE A RIBWIEHES BRIER 2%
FRE - B A FE TR Sino Wealth £
BRANMFEECRBEERE (FARE
FREBREEE 2 AT RE M N K
FA N F20.55% £20.60% (— T —+F:
11.62% £12.02% ) Z I IR K LAEE 1 7
AREE ZFEHRRLEEm 2 RE)
EST-HEREAEEERE BT
BEREXGEMET - EEERGFTA
HmAERE M EES
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

25.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 25. B & 3k K K B

2018 2017

—E-N\NFE —ZT—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FAT

Entrusted loan (Note a) ZEEX (MiEa) 10,245 -
Mortgage loan (Note b) miEER (MsEb) 9,500 81,580

Factoring loan receivables with recourse BB RIE R IR IZEE

(Note ©) (BtsEc) 41,512 41,656
Other loans (Note d) HEaER (M3Ed) 57,968 129,075
119,225 252,311
Less: impairment allowance B ORE R (5.273) (62,420)
113,952 189,891

Notes:

(a)

For entrusted loan to customer, it represented loans from the
Group to customers through the bank in the PRC. The customer
will repay the loan to the bank and then the bank will return
the principal and accrued interest to the Group. While the
bank exercises supervision over and receives repayment from
the borrower, the bank does not assume any risk of default
in repayment by the borrower. The maturity date is within
12 months and the Group has a sole discretion to approve
the renewal of loan for another one year. As at 31 December
2018, entrusted loan bore interest at fixed rates at 12% per
annum and secured by the pledge of collaterals and personal
guarantee.

For mortgage loans, they represented the loans arise from the
money lending business in Hong Kong, which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, bear interest at rates from 16% to 18%
(2017: 16% to 18%) per annum and secured by the pledge of
collaterals and personal guarantee.

f s

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

25.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) For factoring loan with recourse, the Group granted factoring
loans receivables to an independent third party, which the
independent third parties have a portfolio of the receivables
from providing loan to the underlying customers. According to
the factoring agreements signed between the independent third
party and the Group, the legal title of the receivables of the
underlying customers were transferred to the Group and the
independent third party are responsible for the management of
the underlying customer receivables, including the collection of
receivables from the underlying customers. Also, such receivable
is guaranteed by the independent third party and repayable by
instalment based on the terms of the factoring agreement. In
the event of default of repayment by the underlying customers,
the Group has the right to request independent third party
to repurchase the outstanding receivables of the underlying
customers plus accrued interest. The independent third
party is obliged to repay to the Group upon their collection
of money from the underlying customers, and the Group
expects to realise such amounts by collecting the repayments
from the independent third party. The effective interest rates
of the factoring loans receivables at 6.6% per annum as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

(d) Other loans receivables to independent third parties, amounted
to HK$32,770,000 (2017: Nil), are secured, which are
dominated in RMB and bear interest rate ranging from 6% to
18% (2017: 7% to 18%) per annum. Other loans receivables to
independent third parties, amounted to HK$25,198,000 (2017:
HK$129,075,000), are unsecured, which are dominated in RMB
and bear interest rate ranging from 6% to 15% (2017: 7% to
18%) per annum.

Before granting loans, the Group uses internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential borrower’s credit
quality and defines its credit limits granted to the borrowers.
The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed by
the management regularly.

5. EE R A B ()

ffeE: (48)

(0 MEBERENEBURREERIEAEERB T
FoAEREZERREER MBILE=
FRRAABREFREERmEE EKGIE
ME-REBYFE = HHEANEEZF 2R
B BEREFP 2 EKFIBETEEE
BEHETAEEABYFE - HEEEER
BEFEWGE PEEEBEEPIEE
WRTE o BN IBER B L F =
HEERRTBIBERERZIER D BEE-
WEBREFPLTEEN NEBEEBERE
VE=ZFHBEERERERF 2 REEEKIE
ERBEEAEAFNE - BYE=—FBEMEIR
WEEBEFPREREETASE MK
EEERBEBREIE Y E =5 B MG Z
EREEH - R_ZE—NER_Z—tF
+ZA=+T—H EREREBERZEERSF
FIEB6.6% -

(d) A#32,770,0008 (=T —+tF:T)
ZEWBLE=F2EMERB AR
BOUARBHFETZFNEN F6%
E18% (ZZE—+tF 7% E18% ) &t
B B #25,198,0008 T (—F — &
129,075,0008 L) 2 EW BT E =75 2
HEmEREEEF UARBAELIEZF
FENF6% £15% (ZE—+HF: 7% &
18% )&t B °

R ERAT AR EERAREEFE
MIEAFEEEERAZEEERLETE
ERTRAAZEERE -EREEHE
R TERAZEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

25.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 5. BN E R A B ()
(Continued)

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on the
loan receivables on an individual basis. The assessment also
includes evaluation of collectability and on management’s
judgment, including the current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of each borrower.

In determining the recoverability of the loan receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the loan
receivables from the date of credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. This includes assessing the credit history
of the borrowers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. Besides, the
Group considers that the amounts are considered recoverable
given the fair values of the pledged collateral or guarantees
received are sufficient to cover the entire balance on
individual basis.

An ageing analysis of the loans and interests receivables that
are individually not considered to be impaired as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is

ZRER B AT A BUR IR () B 2ERY 14 FE U E R
Z BB o 5 1 IR B R A4l AT W R IR
BHE BRSERAZERNEM EHR
an K2 38 1 WK RO 8%

REERKERZJREER  AEES
ZEERBNEREELIZEVRARH{ERR
HEERSHPLAENETAED -G8
AHEERAZEEESL (R %R =
RS RERI TN L Hh - R IR
Ao B WIER 2 R E R AR (E B & 4
MEMBES BAKRERRBHENIER
Ye[a -

RS B RIZ A SR B 3 A 150R A 1 A
BER B E KR SR RE DT

as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Neither past due nor individually impaired 37 £ 10 B 75 4 {E 51| )i (B 103,390 181,461
Less than 1 month past due B E 21 E A 9,761 8,430
1 to 3 months past due BE =318 A - -
3 to 6 months past due #EA3=61E A 801 -
6 months to less than 1 year past due #HeE A =B 14F - -
113,952 189,891
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

25.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 25.EWME TR A E ()
(Continued)
Loans receivables that were neither past due nor individually I 4 180 B T AR E BB E M E M E SR %
impaired relate to a number of diversified borrowers for BT e R A sk H) N RIS KA B -
whom there was no recent history of default.
In respect of the loans which have been past due for less ERaHIN—EAZERTIEFEHNE
than one month, the amounts mainly represent occasional RMEEERFIEY WP ERTZEFERZ
delay in repayment and are not indication of significant SEEZBERL-

deterioration of credit quality of these loans.

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and EWERRMNEHREREBEZESNT
interests receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Balance at beginning of the year F s 62,420 62,420
Amounts recognised during the year FANCHRERE 5,273 -
Amount written off during the year F M EE &1 AT 4R Bl 2z kI8
as uncollectible (62,420) -
Balance at end of the year FRER 5,273 62,420
The amount written off during the year as uncollectible FAMBEATAIRE 2 RIBEENREEE
related to the borrower who was wound up in loan financing FREXEBTFRNERABR ALt
business in Hong Kong, thus, the loans and interests TREmIE I E B R E R R B -

receivables were not expected to be recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. J1& Wi Bk 0 B E A i WK TR

2018 2017
—E-NFE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Trade receivables from: T3 E4 2 YRR :
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BARHER: (MEa)

— Cash clients —-HeRP 11 483

— Margin clients —REBEEEP 5,519 5,900

— Clearing houses and brokers —EE PR 125 -
Loan referral and consultancy services EREN RFARS (M5EDb)

(Note b) 33,810 3,724
Financial guarantee services (Note ¢) & ERRE (Mskc) 1,376 35
Insurance brokerage business (Note d) Rbp s 5 (M15Ed) 131 471
Asset management business (Note e) BETEER (MiTe) 103 1,281

41,075 11,894
Less: Impairment allowance R E (2,007) (405)
39,068 11,489
Other receivables H & YRR 20,751 27,487
Less: Impairment allowance B ORE R AE (145) (4,099)
20,606 23,388
Total trade and other receivables JFE MR B R K L A P R TR 4B BB 59,674 34,877

Notes:

GEE

(@) For the trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two

days to settle after trade date of securities transactions. These
outstanding unsettled trades due from clients are reported as
trade receivables from clients.

Trade receivables from margin clients net of impairment
allowance amounting to HK$5,508,000 as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: HK$5,900,000) are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of HK$39,827,000
(31 December 2017: HK$9,196,000). Management has assessed
the market value of the pledged securities of each individual
customer who has margin shortfall as at the year end.

Trade receivables from margin clients arising from the securities
brokerage business are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.
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(a)

RREEPZEREERME  —RREH
RIRXHGBEMBABEE -ZERE MK
HEE ZRWE PR BREKE PR -

R-_ZE—N\F+_-_F=+—H" 5,508,000
BErn(ZE2—tF+=_HA=+—8:
5,900,000 7T ) 2 0 bR k(B 5 1 HE IR 3%
& BRI AR F{E /39,827,000 T
(ZZE—+&E+=-A=+—H:9,196,000
BL)Z2EPEEREAERF-EEER
FETERERFRESTREFPEMES
REFERZTIE

EFREEBEEZRERES TP ER
AREEAREEREER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from loan

(0)

referral and consultancy services are within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation is performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from financial
guarantee services are mainly within 60 to 90 days upon
contractual obligation is performed.

(d) The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product

issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution of
the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from product
issuers.

Credit terms with customers of asset management are within
30 days or a credit period mutually agreed between the
contracting parties.

No ageing analysis of margin loans is disclosed as in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade
receivables net of impairment loss as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the trade date, is as follows:

26. J1& Wi AR 0 B EL A R MR ()

FfeE - (48)

() BRERBN MAARBER —REE
HIR RETTAMNELRI0BEA-

(0 EWmEERRBEERZ —REEHRE
ZAETAEHEELEGOE0HMNA -

d) RERBRECRBELE 2 BWEMBETA
R —REEHRIEREIRER
KWBIERBETALZGEHERASECORA

(@ GFEETRRP 2R H30A MK
7B hE 2 B

HRARBEERA ENRESERE
Bz EE REDNLETREIMEE
PRl b I 4 3 FR EL RR e 0 AT ©

FE W AR TR R BR (FNRRIBUE B 18 ) I i & 2
RARBERXZBEMZREDTWAT

2018 2017

—E-NF —FT—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THETT

0 — 30 days 0£30H 14,238 3,277
31 - 60 days 31260H 5,481 797
61 - 90 days 61290H 6,017 958
Over 90 days 90H M E 7,824 557
33,560 5,589
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—

26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired is as follows:

26. Jf& Y BR SR K B b JiE W FRIE ()

I N8R A 18 Bl 35 2k B RUE A FE Wi 3k R
BERE D MTANT -

2018 2017

=E2-N\F —ZT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Neither past due nor impaired 7 #8360 B 7T ARORL (B 14,700 4,471
Less than 1 month past due BET 2 1E A 5,395 1,051
1 to 3 months past due #E E£31E A 7,353 1
3 to 6 months past due #HEA3=61E A 5,980 11
6 months to less than 1 year past due B H6fE A =1 B 14F 132 55
33,560 5,589

The Group has not fully provided for all trade receivables over

R E i A LR E90H E’Jﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬂ&ﬁﬁi

90 days because historical experience indicated that such HEtIREE WA AR Z“‘Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfa
receivables would be recovered. JEE U5 AR SR A T LA (] o
The movements in impairment loss on trade receivables are FEWERFOREBENEESHNT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NE Z—ZT—+tF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Balance at beginning of the year FEE 405 377
Amounts recognised during the year FABRN TR 2,007 -
Amounts written off during the year F MR 2 AT U [l 2 BB
as uncollectible (384) -
Exchange realignment PE 52 (21) 28
Balance at end of the year FRER 2,007 405
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26.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. & U BR % K E i fE W FRTE ()

The movements in impairment loss on other receivables are Hi RSB RESENESNT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FER 4,099 1,049
Amounts recognised during the year FABRN TR 14 2,971
Amounts written off during the year F MR 2T A U [l 2 BB
as uncollectible (3,756) -
Exchange realignment bE N (212) 79
Balance at end of the year FRER 145 4,099
27.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOQSITS 27. AN IE R ®
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Prepayments iCANE/ S 2,349 1,186
Rental and utilities deposits Hek rAREZES 4,143 4,252
Statutory deposits EERE 255 280
Other deposits (Note) Hihize (MizE) 62,472 44,495
69,219 50,213
Less: Impairment allowance R E R AE (229) -
Total prepayments and deposits FENFIERIECESE 68,990 50,213
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MIHEMSONWT -
Current assets mBEE 65,485 46,888
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,505 3,325
68,990 50,213
Note: B 5T
As at 31 December 2018, other deposits mainly consists of RZE-NF+_A=+—H Eftik&+
deposits paid to co-operators in relation to guarantee business EEFHEENTEREBBEHENEGIETZS
of HK$62,366,206 (31 December 2017: HK$7,770,972). As at 62,366,206 L (—_E—tF+_HA=+—H:
31 December 2017, cash deposit of HK$36,021,000 paid to an 77709728 7C) M- FE—tF+-_A=1+—
asset manager’'s account was included in the balance of other H HMiZeEReEX N TEEREBRPH
deposits. I8 €1 436,021,000/8 T °

RPESBMERABRIF | —T—\FFH 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

28.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS 28.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients” monies as
cash held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial position
and recognised the corresponding accounts payable to
respective clients on the grounds that one is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies as stipulated under
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO").
The Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle
its own obligations under the SFO.

29.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 29.

Restricted bank deposits represented the received guarantee
business pledged customer deposits with tripartite custodian
agreement among online lending platform, guarantee
customer and the Group. For the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits
with banks have been excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.

30.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from nil to 1.55% (31 December 2017: nil to 1.67%) per
annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

31.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 31 JE T RRER - Hoth JE 1~ TR TE K 8
ACCRUALS TEH
2018 2017
—E2-N\F ~—T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade payables from: THEEZEMFERR:
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BHERXZER: (MiFa)
— Cash clients - REeEP 712 467
— Margin clients —REFEEREF 654 1,589
— Clearing house —EEE PR - 1,777
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R 5% (M5Eb) 436 423
Total trade payables FERTRR 4B 58 1,802 4,256
Accrued expenses EFtE R 3,767 8,758
Deposits received (Note c) BWEZE (Mitc) 58,741 23,226
Receipts in advance TE IR - 3,175
Other payables H A & 5RIB 17,349 20,680
Total other payables and accruals HAth e~ I R BT B R4 79,857 55,839
Total trade payables, other payables and JE A~ BR K~ EL A B A5 RIE K2
accruals JEEtE B4 81,659 60,095
Notes: Bt & -

(@) Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the

monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients in the course of the conduct of regulated
activities. However, the Group does not currently have an
enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits
placed.

The majority of the trade payables balance are repayable on
demand except for certain balances relating to margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities under the
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The settlement terms of trade payables, except for margin
clients, arising from the securities brokerage business are two
days after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business.

(a) BNEFRLEEPEIERNETIRE
AEEETEREREPHEZERLE
VRTEBRERE L TP RENELER
BRI o AT - AN 5 (B 3R B 3 4 A) 0
TTRENAFEFREHEZ TR RR

REYENEREHRBARERER R
REBEGBREFRRZEHCREPH
RESHFREENE THERKRI-EBB
RERBEHERCEBARBRESR-

ERBCEBELEZERAER (REESE
FPBIN 2 EEHR /R ZBEMA -

mMANAAREERA EREBEE B
B 5 4 3 48 5 SRS - A0 9 B BB R
BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

31.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Trade payables to consultants arising from provision of
insurance brokerage service, are generally settled within 30 days

3R IR At B B R E
HE-3::0C )

ffeE: (%)

(b) AEE—RPUEIEMBEIT AN RIZ30H
EN20ANEERHABRELERBELEZ

to 120 days upon receipt of payments from product issuers by FET R BRI -
the Group.
An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage P & BRORAR B 48 A0 R TS B AN AR SR Y BR
business at the end of reporting period is as follows: ST :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 285 320
31 - 60 days 31260H 120 101
61— 90 days 61290H 17 2
Over 90 days 90H M E 14 -
436 423

(c) Included in deposit received, amounts of HK$36,540,000 (2017:
HK$7,995,000) were received from customers as collateral
security for the financial guarantees issued by the Group. These
deposits will be refunded to the customers upon expiry of the
corresponding guarantee contracts. According to the contract,
these deposits are expected to be settled within one year.

32.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

(0 BWiz& s 36,540,000 L (T —+
% :7,995,000/8 7T) i A & H | & F YL
EAREEZETHMEERNER 2%
RSB AEERENERERETER
BIEEY ZEHRSTEHRBER —FRLE-

REBEERAE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ZT—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Deferred income EERA 714 524
Provision for guarantee losses EIRE B E 49,156 51,229
49,870 51,753
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32.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

(Continued)

Movement analysis of provision for guarantee losses:

R.AEERAE (#)

R B 5 17

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 51,229 -

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WM B ARl EE - 50,325

Amount recognised during the year FABRZ TR 1,302 -

Written back for the year FARL (692) (2)

Exchange realignment X R (2,683) 906

At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—H 49,156 51,229

33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION 33.RIER(E

2018 2017

=E2E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

Balance at beginning of the year RF ) Z 45 ER 71,293 120,878

Acquisition of subsidiaries W e T /&8 1 7 - 42,404

De-recognition BB HE R - (67,901)

Settlement g& (50,000) (30,000)

Imputed interest HEFE 4,332 5,912

Balance at end of the year RERZ L8R 25,625 71,293
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MBEMS DWLT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,175 22,486

Current liabilities mEEE 20,450 48,807

25,625 71,293
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33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION (Continued) 3BIRERAE (&)

As at 31 December 2018, included in deferred consideration
is cash consideration in relation to the acquisition of
Access China Group and of Sino Wealth Group with
carrying amounts of HK$9,709,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$29,919,000) and HK$15,916,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$41,374,000) respectively.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino
Wealth Group

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Group (note 38(a)). During the
year, partial deferred cash consideration of HK$30,000,000
was settled by cash. Partial of consideration would be
satisfied in manner as to HK$11,000,000 and HK$6,000,000
respectively shall be settled in cash within five business days
after issue of audited financial statements for the year ended/
ending 31 December 2018 and 2019, subject to adjustment.

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 20 October 2017 was HK$42,404,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
ranging from 12.05% to 13.10%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rates ranging from 12.05% to 13.10%
per annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$2,482,000
(2017: HK$1,030,000) was debited to the profit or loss of
the Group for the year.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Access
China Group

On 22 December 2016, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Access China Group. During the year, partial
deferred cash consideration of HK$20,000,000 was settled
by cash. Remaining consideration will be satisfied in manner
as to HK$10,000,000 shall be settled in cash upon next
business day after issue of audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018, subject to adjustment.
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RZE—NF+_A=+—H st AEL
R B H X IE 6 A B W BB Access China &£ &
. Sino Wealth £ B % RIIBR EI{E 49,709,000
BLT(ZE—+F+=_A=+—8H":
29,919,000/ 7t ) 215,916,000/ 7t ( =&
—+F+ = A=+—H 41,374,000 7T )
ZEERE-

BB WEESino Wealth&EB 2 H &R E

R-ZE—+FE+A-+H AEEBERK
g B Sino Wealth £ & (Fff 3£38(a) ) e R4
FENRN - 15 iELEIR £ E30,000,000/%8
TERBREARNER - BHREZADF
REBEZE-_ZTE—N\EFE_ZF—NF+=A
“+—HILEFENLEZTBHHRE T
BRAEEXEARN (AT TFAB)URSEN
11,000,0003% 7T }2.6,000,000/% 7T &) 77 =X, %
F o

R-_FE—+E+A-t+HZEKBE EE
He B2 FEAEL2,404,0008 T %
NEETHBYGEMETE FEAFE
FTAZEBRRENT12.05% £13.10% °

BELERSREBECHENERAZ IEKA
ERFMEEAE BRAZEBRFNEX
NF12.05% £13.10%  HEF 28 X%
2,482,000/ 7T (=& —+4 : 1,030,000/
T B ARFEREE ZBEZAN -

BB WE Access ChinaEEB 2 H &R E

RZEBE—ARNFE+-_A=-+=-B XKKEEBEE
T2 Ak UL B Access China 28 « RANEE - 7K
% B AR & 7 = E1520,000,000/% 7T ik &
& & o KB 82 T E10,000,000% 7T
REBEZE-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLEFE
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33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION (Continued)

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Access
China Group (Continued)

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 22 December 2016 was HK$53,238,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
was ranging from 14.27% to 15.79%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rates ranging from 14.27% to 15.79%
per annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$1,850,000
(2017: HK$4,427,000) was debited to the profit or loss of
the Group for the year.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Oriental
Credit Group

On 21 January 2015, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Oriental Credit Group. Part of consideration
would be satisfied by the Company in the issuance of
convertible notes in three tranches. Part of deferred
consideration was settled by issuance of 2014 Convertible
Note and 2015 Convertible Note on 3 June 2015 and
15 March 2016 respectively.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred convertible notes
consideration are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying an effective interest of 10.14% per
annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$455,000 was
debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.

Due to the matters stated in note 7(b), the remaining
deferred convertible notes consideration at a carrying amount
of HK$67,901,000 was de-recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017.

3BIRERAE ()

BB UWE Access ChinaEB 2 HE &R E
(%)

REXKBHE-_ZE—XR"F+_HA=_+=-8"
UJE&P@FZ Y18 453,238, ooo;%
TR AFEITHBYEMET T E
:Fﬁﬁfrﬁﬁz,\ﬁ”ﬂﬁ-n?14.27%i
15.79% °

Liﬁiﬁ{ﬁmﬁ*"ﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁ
ERMNEEFE BRRAZCERFNX
u¥14.27%i15.79% %itﬂ,%ﬁéz
1,850,000/ 7T ( —ZF —+ 4 : 4,427,000/
T EFAREEREE 2 BmA -

FRAVBRSFESREZRENE

NZE—AE—-—A-+—HB KEEDE
MKERAFEESEE - ARAEEBD =
HEBETATRBREBRENBIRE -HDIE
MR EBRREEEBY N _E—H
FERNA=ZBE-_ZE—R"F=HAH+HARBET
CE-OFIBRREBRE T -RFAR
PREETIAER-

i SE ] $2 BR 2 ?FZTS*”%IJ%EﬂSEmmFH
ERAINEZEZAE BRAZERENERA
10.14% - @W’WJ 8.5 455,000/ 7t & &t
ARFEREBFB ZEBZA -

AN 7O it EE HE T — ti
T+ A=1+—HItFE BEUEERE
{8 /267,901,000 7T 2 & LTWSWTER
Eo

RPESBMERBRLIF | —T—\FFH 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZEZ—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILtFE

34.BORROWINGS 4.6 8
2018 2017
—E-N\NFE —ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank loans (Note a) RITER (F5Ea) 88,226 99,058
Other loans (Note b) ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂ (MfaEb) - 60,035
88,226 159,093
Secured BHEA 88,226 99,058
Unsecured KR - 60,035
88,226 159,093

Carrying amounts repayable: FER T3 BB E M BRE (B :

Within one year —F R 8,538 66,039
More than one year, but not —FLA L EMFUA
exceeding two years 11,384 9,005
More than two years, but not more than MEAELEBRFUR
five years 36,998 36,021
More than five years AFUNE 31,306 48,028
88,226 159,093
Less: Amounts shown under BoRREBEBEINR &5
current liabilities (8,538) (66,039)
79,688 93,054

Notes: Bt aE -

(a) Bank loans were secured by the pledge of Group's assets as set (a) RITEFHMTAME RSB EELHE
out in note 44. The loans carry effective interest at fixed rates e ZEEHIU637E (=T — £ F:6.37
of 6.37% (2017: 6.37%) per annum. E)NEBETFNEABERF RSB -

(b) As at 31 December 2017, the interest-bearing other loans bear by RAZE—+F+-_A=+—8 stEHAM
interests at fixed interest rates ranging from 8.8% to 10% and ,\TAEZS 8E E10E #) & jEF M E5H 2 - I
are unsecured, repayable within 12 months and are carried at BARAEEH A20 A NEE RIREH
amortised cost. PAN I B o
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35.CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement and
supplementary agreements for the acquisition of Oriental
Credit Group, 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note with principal amounts of HK$85,401,768 and
HK$42,000,000 at conversion price of HK$0.24 (after
adjustment of share subdivision on 23 December 2015)
were issued to the vendors of the Oriental Credit Group
on 3 June 2015 and 15 March 2016 respectively. It entitled
the noteholders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time after the date of issuance of 2015
Convertible Note and ending on the 21st business day before
the maturity date, which is on the fifth anniversary of the
respective dates of issuance of 2014 Convertible Note and
2015 Convertible Note. If the convertible notes have not
been converted, they will be redeemed on maturity date at
the entire principal amount.

The Convertible Notes contains two components, liability and
equity components. The equity component represents the
value of the conversion option, which is credited directly to
equity as convertible notes reserve of the Company and the
Group. The liability component of the convertible notes is
carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is ranging from 9.98%
to 12.89% per annum.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

35. A] AR R IR

BRERKERASAEESBEZEEHE LE
etk N4 %8 485,401,768 L2 — &
— VO A 8 i = AR K AN £ %8 A42,000,000
BLZ _E—HAFIBRBREBRESFIRZ
T-—HFAA=ZHEZZE—XRE=ZA+H
HETTRAGEEBE CER EHREAR
024 T (K-_FTE—HF+-_A=-+=H
MO IFHARE) EBTFTEBEFE AR
ARBET _E—RAFRREBREBZRT
HEAE21MEEER (- —MFEaH
MEEN T —RFABREREES BT
HEERABAFER) EEAREGHEER
BARNR LB WA BT RKRERTE
EEm HERI AR EREN A HER
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DoEDBMOEBRREZEE BEENE
BmARBARR R R ARE 2 A AR IR
B MR BERY IHHERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE
35.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 35. AR AR 245 ()
The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes PR E R ER 2 AR R 2 FRE
recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated BEFFELAT:
as follows:
2014 2015
Convertible  Convertible
Note Note Total
—E-NE Z—E-1F
TERREE TRREE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Equity component ERH
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZZT—+F—H—H"
and 1 January 2018 “E—tFF+ZA=T—HK
—E-\F—-H—H 6,072 3,703 9,775
Conversion during the year FREH (6,072) (3,703) (9,775)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+-A=1+—H - - -
Liability component BERS
At 1 January 2017 RN_E—+tF—H—H 3,604 1,466 5,070
Effective interest expenses ERFSMAX 385 199 584
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—tFE+-A=+—BRK
1 January 2018 —E-N\F—-H—H 3,989 1,665 5,654
Effective interest expenses ERFERAX 196 100 296
Conversion during the year FNEH (4,185) (1,765) (5,950)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+-A=1t—H - - -

Principal amount, at end of the year RERZAEH - - -
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36.DEFERRED TAXATION

36. R R IR

Provision

for financial

guarantees

MERRER

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H -

Credited to profit or loss for the year RENBRPEFA 12,456

Exchange realignment BE 5 B 233
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+F+TZA=T—BK

—Z-N\5—H—H 12,689

Charged to profit or loss for the year RENBR P MR (690)

Exchange realignment P 5 AR (631)

At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\F+-ZA=1t—H 11,368

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$415,925,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$386,446,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$122,823,000 (31 December 2017: HK$146,674,000) that
will expire in one to five years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries and associates established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

RBERR AEBERHHAMREEIE
415,925,0008 L (&2 —tF + = A
=+ —H :386,446,000/% 7T ) A] A VE K 5%
7 A5 ) o B A B LA T8 BRI R 215 A SRR -
W B ASARIEEERRRCEHIES
E-AERNRBEBEESESEN —ZRFNR
fE 2 B518122,823,000/8 7T (ZE—+ 4
+ZA=+—H 146,674,000/ 7T) - &
L IE n] R H S 82 o

BB BEPEREEE TP BEKZ 2N
EhERINHEEET IR 2B BREK
10% BHH - ZHEEBRB_ZTZENF—H
—HRBES BEBAR_ZTT+F+_H
= +—BHREZEN WP EEINEIEESE
MBELEEERAI ARG AIaTHAR
BeEMBEER-ASEME @AM E
#5% 3%10% ° E it - AEBEZAE AR R BEK
YHRBAREBERRR —_EENF—
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o
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36.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised
was HK$7,752,000 (2017: HK$3,164,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing
for reversal of the related temporary differences and it is
probable that such temporary differences will not be reversed

36. R ENIE ()

RZZE—NF+_A=+—08" s EHK
BRAASE N EENEREZE (M8
MGEREEENHAELERIBEEE) B
%67,752,0007% 7C ( —Z —+ 4 : 3,164,000
B MEMZEEEEREEHEA
& It Ty A AN 5 B 1B 15 41| 8 ) /5 B3 & s
ZEANREEZEEREZEETERA]
FAR R -

in the foreseeable future.

37.SHARE CAPITAL 37. 08 2N
Number of Nominal
shares amount
RHOEE H
‘000 HK$'000
T FETT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each TR MEE0.001 B TR T B A%
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZZT—tF—A—H"
1 January 2018 and —ET—tF+=H
31 December 2018 =+—R - N\F
—A—Bk=_Z—N\F
+—-_H=+—H 2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each FIMEIE0.0017E TR E L ix
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-_E—+tF—H—H"
1 January 2018 and —ZET—tF+=H
31 December 2018 =+t—-B8 - )N\#F
—A—Bk=_Z—N\F
+-A=+—H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE.00EB T E B
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 4,380,214 4,380
Exercise of share options (Note a) TR RERRAE (FisEa) 201,896 202
Issue of shares upon open offer (Note b) RARBEEREITRG
(Mt5EDb) 2,287,947 2,288
At 31 December 2017 and R_E—tF+_A=+—H
1 January 2018 R-—E—-N\E—A—H 6,870,057 6,870
Exercise of share options (Note c) TR IR (Mdskc) 13,170 13
Conversion of convertible notes (Note d) ®# [ ZE (MfsEd) 31,850 32
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+_A=+—H 6,915,077 6,915
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37.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@ On 9 February and 6 March 2017, upon the exercise of the
share options at an exercise price of HK$0.232 per share, the
Company allotted and issued 195,680,000 new shares of
HK$0.001 each.

On 14 November 2017, upon the exercise of the share options
at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share (after adjusted upon
open offer), the Company allotted and issued 6,215,753 new
shares of HK$0.001 each.

(b) On 21 June 2017, the Company allotted and issued
2,287,947,142 new shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.100 per share upon completion of the open
offer.

(0 On 17 May and 19 June 2018, upon the exercise of the
share options at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share,
the Company allotted and issued 11,670,000 new shares of
HK$0.001 each.

On 19 June 2018, upon the exercise of the share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.188 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 1,500,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each.

(d) On 15 June 2018, upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$7,644,106 at the
conversion price of HK$0.24 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 31,850,442 shares in aggregate to the noteholders.

38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group

On 20 October 2017, a direct wholly-own subsidiary
of the Company (the “Purchaser”) had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Investment Co., Limited (”Sino
Wealth") and its subsidiaries (“Sino Wealth Group”).
Sino Wealth Group is principally engaged in provision
of credit-based financial guarantees and related loan
arrangement and consultancy services in the PRC. It had
obtained a license issued from Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Financial Work to provide financial guarantee to
individuals and non-state-owned small to medium sized
enterprises.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement (as
supplemented by supplemental letters dated 24 August
2017 and 13 September 2017) dated 28 July 2017, the
assets to be acquired by the Purchaser are the entire
issued share capital of Sino Wealth and shareholder’s
loan owing by Sino Wealth Group to the vendor at the
date of acquisition.

37. 082N (&)
B
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THEEFR0232BTITHFEEMRER AR
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38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 WHEMT B~ A ()

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued)

The aggregate consideration is HK$300,000,000 (subject
to adjustment), which should be satisfied by Purchaser in
cash. HK$253,000,000 of cash consideration was paid.
The remaining cash considerations of HK$30,000,000,
HK$11,000,000 (the "Second Instalment”) and
HK$6,000,000 (the “Third Instalment”) are paid and
payable within five business days after the issue of
audited consolidated financial statements of the Sino
Wealth Group for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018, year ending 31 December 2019 respectively.

In addition, as part of the acquisition, if the actual
audited net profit after tax of Beijing An Jia Shi Hang
Financing Guarantee Company Limited (“AJSH") for
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, year ending
31 December 2019 (the “Actual Profit”), is less than
RMB 10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000
respectively (the “Target Profit”), the vendor will
compensate the Purchaser for the shortfall for an amount
equivalent to the difference between the Target Profit
and the Actual Profit multiplied by 1.2 times.

In such event, the Company shall have the right to deduct
the shortfall from the respective cash considerations
payable to the vendor for years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018, year ending 31 December 2019 (i.e.
2017: HK$30,000,000, 2018: HK$11,000,000 and 2019:
HK$6,000,000).

If the Second Instalment and the Third Instalment are
not sufficient to offset the 2018 Shortfall and the 2019
Shortfall respectively, the vendor shall compensate the
amount of difference in cash, in HK$ equivalent to the
amount of RMB or the Purchaser has the right to deduct
the amount of difference from the assets pledged to
the Purchaser under the guarantee letter signed by the
vendor guarantor.

Further details are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 28 July 2017, 24 August 2017,
13 September 2017 and 20 October 2017 and circular
dated 15 September 2017.
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38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid/
payable for the acquisition of Sino Wealth Group, and
the fair value of identified assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

38 W HE P B A A ()

(a) Wi Sino Wealth &£ 8 (4&)

T R MLt U B Sino Wealth 28 2 &
N/ RMREB UERRKEBRSHD I

Br A EEMDAERENRFE:

HK$'000
FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 776
Deferred tax asset BRETIRE E 12,456
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JE W BR 5K 1,661
Loan and interest receivables JEWE TR K A B 96,221
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment H bW SRIE - e RTEN KB 32,955
Amount due from related parties JFE Ui [ 32 75 SR IE 1,591
Restricted bank deposits ZBRHIRITFER 8,866
Bank and cash balances IRIT RIS EH 175,287
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FE=HE M & B h JE 1~ 518 (21,521
Amount due to the shareholders A AR R FRIA (238,610
Liabilities from financial guarantees BMEEZREE (50,432
Tax payables &R T8 (2,391
Net identifiable assets acquired at fair value U AFEFE2CWEB TR EEFHE 16,859
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group EETAEEZREER 238,610
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WHEBEEE 2 mE 34,170
Total fair value consideration NEFERERRE 289,639
Consideration satisfied by: REXFFR:
Cash paid EfRE 220,000
Cash payable ERTER & 33,000
Deferred consideration EIERE 42,404
Less: Contingent consideration receivables B UL SR E (5,765)
289,639
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEESEEENWRERL TR
Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 220,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B WERNIR e RIREEEY (175,287)
44,713

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH
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38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 WHEMT B~ A ()

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued)

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
net tangible assets and intangible assets of Sino Wealth
Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be paid/
payable by the Group over the fair value of net asset
acquired.

(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 7 March 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Ulmus Creek Holdings
Limited ("Ulmus”) for a total cash consideration of the
sum of HK$8,000,000.

A direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Ulmus is a
corporation licensed and approved by the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") to carry on Type 4 (advising
on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO") in Hong Kong.
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38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 WHEMT B~ A ()
(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation (Continued) (b) WEBREEE (8)

WEEBEER _ZE—tF+tA=-+H
TR TRBAMWEEEZENRE
NREB E-_ZT—+F+tA=-+HH
NFEFENE WEE BN EE R

The acquisition was completed on 20 July 2017. The
following table summarises the consideration paid and
payable for the acquisition, and the identified assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, at fair value on 20 July

2017: EERE:
HK$'000
FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E R L 42
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JE Wt BR 3R 93
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment Hh B WRIE - 1R R IBEN FRIE 95
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE AR 249
Current liabilities nEEE
Accruals and other payables FEEHE M N E A & TR E (452)
Amount due to a director JENt —REERIE (17)
Amount due to the shareholders JE < B 3R 50IE (1,492)
Net identifiable liabilities assumed at fair value L A FEFE 2 FrAE A B S & FHE (1,482)
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group HETASEE ZRRER 1,492
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEHELAZEHE 7,990
Total fair value consideration N ERELERE 8,000
Consideration satisfied by: REXFFR:
Cash paid ENEE 6,000
Cash payable ENIRE 2,000
8,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEESEEENWRERL TR
Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 6,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B WEEMIRE RREEEY (249)
5,751
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38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation (Continued)

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
net tangible assets and intangible assets of Ulmus and its
subsidiary, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be paid/
payable by the Group over the fair value of net liabilities
assumed.

39.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 28 December 2017, the Company disposed of its
entired issued shares of the Everstate Investment Limited
and its subsidiary which in turn has 25% shareholding
interest in Shanghai Rongyu to an independent third
party at cash consideration of HK$50,000.

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of
disposal are as follows:

38 BT B A | (&)
(b) YRS esEm ()

ARAEFRCZBB I GEMZRE
78 B 75 ¥ 5 4 A £135% 8 5 Ulmus &
HEHMBRRIZCENEERENEER

M2 AT

WEEEELAZBEREAEEEN/
BNZRENAFESREAEZARE

FEH R EZHBD

39. L EKTE A A

@ RZZE—tF+-_A=-+N B XA
AR IR £ K {850,000 T A — & BT
% = 7 H & H 7 Everstate Investment
Limited X Hf B A2 32 &7
7+ M Everstate Investment Limited ¥

B EEREE 2 25% Bk -

REERHNEEREBEINOT

HK$'000

FHET

Other payable HAth & 7 5B (2)

Net liability disposal of HENBEFE ()
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR 2!

HK$'000

FHETT

Cash consideration received ERHEEKE 50

Net liability disposal of HEMNBEFE 2

Gain on disposal g 52
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39.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

e B RRME

E-N\F+-A=t+—HILFE

39. L EKTE AT (#)

(Continued) ) (#&)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HENBAREENRERAFEHE:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received EWEERE 50
Less: Bank balance and cash disposal of B MEMIRTEBR KRS -
50

On 29 October 2017, the Group completed the disposal b) RZFTE—tF+A=Z+ILA KTEHE

of 60% interest in an indirectly-owned subsidiary,
Liaoning Nuoli Investments Limited, for a consideration of

HK$246,372 (equivalent to RMB210,000).

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of
disposal are as follows:

TERRIE R (E246,37278 7 (HER AR
#£210,00070) HER —EREERB AR
RIEEFRIREARR AT 260% i o

REERMNEEREBES MM

HK$'000
FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment E R Y& 41
Other receivables and prepayment H b fE U SRIA LA K TE S 5 IE 253
Bank balances and cash RITERLRE 19
Other payables and accruals HAth fE N RRIE KR 5T B (138)
Tax payable JEH IR (28)
Net assets disposal of HERFEE 147
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEME QR R W
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration received EWEERE 246
Net assets disposed of HERFEE (147)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE 2 883
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of Bl 5k 2 B 8 2 ) 42 o 4 1 %
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity B AR FEEREREN
to profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiary DEEBHRZAELER 9)
Gain on disposal & W 973
RPESRMERERAR | ZT—\FFW
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39.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39.HENB LA (@)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHELENRERAFE:
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash consideration received EWEERE 246
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HEMIRITER KRR S (19)
227
(c) On 4 September 2017, the Group completed the disposal O RZE—EtFHALAMNB KEERT
of 60% interest in an indirectly-owned subsidiary, Xian RIZRE14,3898 T (IHER AR
Nuoli Asset Management Limited, for a consideration of 12,0007t ) &R —EEZH B A 7
HK$14,389 (equivalent to RMB12,000). ALZHYEEBREBRAAZ60% 1
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of REERHNEERAEBEINWOT:
disposal are as follows:
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment Y% WE KA 5
Bank balances and cash RITHB KRS 12
Net assets disposed of HERNFEE 17
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HENBARMNEE:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received ERHEEKE 14
Net assets disposed of HERFEE (17)
Non-controlling interests AR A (82)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of BR] 2k 25 BT 8 2 B 4% ) 48 i %
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity MEARIHFEERERERN
to profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiary DREERZ RFTEREZH 5
Loss on disposal HEEE (80)
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39.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

()

39. L EKTE AT (#)

(Continued) (© (£&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHELENRERAFE:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received EWEERE 14
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HEMIRITER IR S (12)
2

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

In 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(2011 Share Option Scheme”), which will expire on 19 June
2021, for the purpose of providing incentives or reward
to eligible participants for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any invested entity. Under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees (including any executive directors),
non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services and
customers of the Group; and any persons or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment
from the participant of HK$1.00. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

40.18 A #E 5T 2

RRRN T ——F A —AEBHERT S
(=T ——FBREE]) & aH/Rn
—E--FXATARER BHERM
RBIRETAERSEAL UEBK
SHASREELNER N REAEET
BELBRBESEE RRSIHANEE T
MEREEEBEENANER RE-F
—— FEBEFE ARRES A REM
BE (BREEMATES) FRATES
ERnAMBEEHLEAEEES AR5
AREBERHEMT FEHIEMBMED
ERALTHERR L BRE-

B =

SEATAREEBRERZLN A HE28
B A% 52 151,008 7T M 12 4% 18 S B = 5 K
BRAAREZTSETE BN B AT
S IR — T — — F B B a5
FRAT LB A - MEE B Tz A A 0
BRER L BB ER T F 2R

I BZASEARATAS L IRSCPATARIR o

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B8 AN M2 (@)

The subscription price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the particular option; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the particular option; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue for the time being.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 451,080,000 (2017: 184,791,862),
representing 6.52% (2017: 2.69%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme is 1,135,271,917 (2017: 641,262,454),
representing approximately 16.40% (2017: 9.33%) of the
issued shares of the Company.
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mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. BB X HEET &l (1)

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees and consultants during the year ended

BE-_Z—\F+ZRA=+—HIEEE"

BENMBEREMAFEARBBRIENZ S

31 December 2018 are set out below: N
Number of share options
BREZA
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January 31 December  Exercise price
participants 2018 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2018 period HK$
RZB-N\%¥
RZZE-N\f t=h 6E
SRALER —-R—-H ERH 217 EAX =t-B 1FH B
Category I: Employees
BRI EB
20.11.2015 37,294,520 - - (37,294,520 - Note(a) 0.740
“E-nft+—-A=TH M)
28.12.2016 106,712,054 - (18,670,000)  (88,042,054) - 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
ZE-RETZRZTNA “E-~F+-A-+N\HZ
ZE-N\E+ZAZttH
Note (b)
3 (b)
20.3.2018 - 121,500,000 (1,500,000) (5,000,000) 115,000,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 0.188
“Z-\¥=zA=+H “Z-\§=zA=+AZ
ZTZ-%=fAtNH
Note (c)
Mzt
Category Il Consultants
BRI R
28.12.2016 40,785,288 - (2,000,000)  (38,785,288) - 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
ZE-RETZAZTNR “E-AFE+-FZt+N\RE
ZE-NE+ZAZt+tH
Note (b)
Wi (b)
20.3.2018 - 336,080,000 - - 336,080,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 0.188
“Z-\¥=A=+AH “E-N\EzZfA=1+HZ
ZEZ-§=ATNA
Note (¢)
Mk ()
Total 184,791,862 457,580,000  (22,170,000) (169,121,862) 451,080,000
@5t
Weighted average 0.299 0.188 0.187 0.309 0.188
exercise price
MEFHTRE

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees and consultants during the year ended

40. BB X HEET &l (1)

HE-T—+F+-A=+—BILFE.
8 REMAEEAD A RRENE B H

31 December 2017 are set out below: N
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
As at for open offer As at Exercise
Category of 1 January at 21 June 31 December  Exercise price
participants 2017 Granted 2017 Lapsed Exercised 2017  period HKS
R-B-t%
AAZt-H
RoB-t% EFNH RoB-t% %R
SEALER -A-H BRH BERE GRS B +tZA=t-B 1R BT
Category I Employees
ahll-EE
20.11.2015 30,000,000 - 7,294,520 - - 37,294,520 Note (a) 0.740
“Z-n¥t-AZTH M)
28.12.2016 91,580,000 (1,640,000) 21,868,972 (5,096,918) - 106,712,054 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
“E-RETZACTNE ZE-RETCA
ZtN\REZE-N\%
TZAZtHtA
Note (b)
iz (b)
Category Il: Consultants
B B
28.12.2016 231,848,000 (194,040,000) 9,193,041 - (6,215,753) 40,785,288 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
ZE-RETZAZTAR —TRE
TZAZ+NBE
B0\
TZAZ+tA
Note (b)
iz (b)
Total 353,428,000  (195,680,000) 38,356,533 (5,096,918) (6,215753) 184,791,862
@it
Weighted average 0.290 0232 029 0.187 0.187 0.299
exercise price
MEFHRE
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40. BB X HEET &l (1)

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 20 November 2015, the Company granted a total of
18,000,000 share options under the Scheme to employees
of the Group. The validity period of the options is 30 months
from the date of grant of the options, i.e. from 20 November
2015 to 19 May 2018. The options will entitle the grantees to
subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of HK$0.005
each at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per share.

The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from
(i) the expiry date of the Put Option period as stated in the
second supplemental agreement dated 8 January 2016, (ii)
20 November 2016, and (iii) 20 May 2017 respectively to 19
May 2018.

As a result of the share subdivision which was effective on
28 December 2015, the exercise price per share and number of
outstanding share options granted on 20 November 2015 were
adjusted from HK$4.59 to HK$0.92 and from 18,000,000 to
90,000,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of options were adjusted from
HK$0.92 to HK$0.74 and from 30,000,000 to 37,294,520 for
the effects of the open offer of the Company completed on
21 June 2017.

On 28 December 2016, the Company granted a total of
323,428,000 share options under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 24 months from the date of grant of
the options, i.e. from 28 December 2016 to 27 December 2018.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
323,428,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.232 per share.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of options were adjusted from
HK$0.232 to HK$0.187 and from 127,748,000 to 158,810,013
for the effects of the open offer of the Company completed on
21 June 2017.

9,000,000 share options were exercise in December 2018 but
such shares were allotted in January 2019.

fi s

(a)

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

W-ZZE—HFE+—A=-+8 AQARE
rElmAEEREE B H A ££18,000,000
HigE-BRECENSAREBERER
HEEEA30@EA (I —E—HF+—A
—tTHRE-E-/N\FRATILHE) - ER
R B T RO AR LATT (8 (B B iR4.597%
TR A ££18,000,0000% & A% E {E0.005/%
TC 2 FTRRAD ©

BhE>A=-#H# RTIHBHEE_-ZF
—NFEA+ABIHEA FTE: ()8
HE_ZTE—R"F-—ANBRNE_OERxH
EAPYREEIEARER B () =F
—A~F+—AZ+E Ri)“T—tFR
A=+H8-

BOFAR-—_F-—AF+-A=-1+ /A
ERgo RN _F-AF+t-AZ+HHRERH
) B AR 1T {50 B B O B B 1T (R 1B I8 e
#E 7 Bl F14.5978 7T 58 B /0.9278 7T K i
18,000,00017 #3 % /390,000,00017 °

AR IR P8 P R I A IR AR BB IR 1T (2
BERFZEFGHEECDRIRARARZ
F-tEtFANAZFT " BERZARES
MR EH0.928 T HER0.74E T KA
30,000,00017 # % /37,294,52017 °

R-E—RNF+-_A=-+/\B XAQARAE
BT ——FEREAENEAEEEER
BRI A $£323,428,00017 B A #E B IR
BN AABRER D A R4
A Z—Z—XRE+-_A=-+/\BE_Z
—N\NF+ZA=++tRH) EREZET
AR AR ATTEESR0.232B LRE
& $£323,428,000/% & X E {E0.001/8 7T 2
HRRAD ©

IRIEE R R S ME BRENITEE
LA RFHGBEEEDRREARAR T
—+tFERNAt+—HBHERRZARBEEN
FEMR0.232B LA A0.187F T A
127,748,00017 F8 % 4158,810,01317 °

9,000,000fD EERIER T —NF+ A&
TEEBEROR -_E—NE— AESE -
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B8 AN M2 (@)

Notes: (Continued)

(0 On 20 March 2018, the Company granted a total of
457,580,000 share options under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 36 months from the date of grant of
the options, i.e. from 20 March 2018 to 19 March 2021. The
options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
457,580,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.188 per share.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
20 March 2018, the date of grant was HK$0.187.

The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$0.240 on 17 May 2018 and HK$0.213 on
19 June 2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted and the following the inputs to the

B
(0)

i ()

RZZE-NF=ZA=-+80 A2FRE_
T-——FHEREFERNEAEEEES MEM
A $£457,580,00017 B8 A% 4 - BE AR 4 2
BN A B B T B HRET36ME A (B
- N\F=ZA-+BE-_ZE-_—F=H
+N8) - BRI T AR AR LARTT
{5 (B & f%0.1887% JL 3R B & £457,580,000
R% 5 B 1 {E0.001 8 7T 2 # A7 »

ARRBRORERE-_T—NF=A=+H
(BN B ED) B (B /01878 7T °

RAE IR B AR EETT(E B BB ATAY N
BIEHRFBANR-_ZE—N\ERA++HB
0240 T RN - E—NEXATNEB
#0.21378 7T °

RO ARBEENBREZ 2 TFETIR
B AR AR E EEL A

W B &t Ko 3% o B RS P AHR  1RA3R S fER A o

TREHIR Y P ER A B A BUR

model used:
20 March 28 December 20 November
Grant date A 2018 2016 2015
—E—-RF —ZT-—HF
—E-N\F +=A +—A
=A=1H —+\H —+H
Fair value (HK$) ~FE (GBTT) 0.09 0.11 1.89
Exercise price (HK$) 7B (BT) 0.188 0.232 459
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) REL BERRE (BT) 0.187 0.232 4.59
Dividend yield (%) % B 2 3R (%) - - -
Expected volatility (%) 8 HA R 18 (%) 78.10 91.79 70.58
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ 7 ke 7 & (%) 1.627 1.244 0.626
Expected life of options (years) TEHERE S (F) 3.000 2.000 2.497
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the contractual
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$40,313,000. The
fair value per option granted was HK$0.09. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$40,313,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

40. BB X HEET &l (1)

BRERHFHIOREAOFHETE K
MR EBE R M TTEBR S IER - FHHIK 18
REREESL N B AARRELHEENREK &

RWEZE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HULEFE"
B H R BB R F {E 540,313,000
T BHERTDBRENQFERGE
T-REBEZ-_Z—N\F+_A=+—H1
FE AN B R IR R 240,313,000

BT 0
41.0PERATING LEASES 4188 ETHLY
The Group as lessee EEBEREBEA
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Minimum lease payments paid under FRARBEEHOMPHAETYE
operating leases in respect of office SR RIEEE KA
properties during the year 14,175 11,918

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments

POUR MR - SR R SRR A M AE R

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR TR H B A R R EEBER
operating leases which fall due as follows: B EEWT

2018 2017
—E-NF —ZZFT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Within one year —F R 13,118 6,367
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF (BIEEEMT) 15,919 19
29,037 6,386

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
three years.

REMERREAREREER B LT
METHAENERNNES BHOEE
FHRH—E=%F-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE=-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLFE

41.0OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with customers for the following future minimum payments
for storage facilities.

418824 (&)
AEEESHBAA

RBEHR AREC R EFHREDN
NIRREARFKERE RIS AH

2018 2017

—B-NF —ZT—tF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Within one year firﬁ 11,455 3,311
In the second to fifth year inclusive “EEFLF (BEEEME) 3,849 -
15,304 3,311

Warehouse storage income earned during the year was
HK$13,342,000 (2017: HK$6,518,000).

42.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

43.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2017: HK$18,000) per annum.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$1,489,000 (2017: HK$1,121,000).
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42.
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FABREA A EFRBA A13,342,000%8
T (ZF—+%F:6,518,000/ 1) °

B AR IE

RCE—+FR T N\F+_A=1+—
B A& B kAR R I EE A B KE AR

= o

B4R FIET S

AEBEAERBRERESHTHEMENTE
BloafE £ stal- BB EMEEHEAE
ENEEPHAITRAITEAZFINES
%ﬁ AEBEEEREEYEREBEHIK
RH5% MBS EIELHR - TR E
ERmEARBREATF18,000E T (==
—+%:18,00087T) °

FEIME R RMES BB SE BT

LR TRERTENKE - BB

NEIEBAREEEAFENETES L

M 5% F a8l i 3o AN & B 3L A B R K43 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
44.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44. 8 EBH
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been ERASEER 2 —RIBITEEMELE
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Wz EERABENT:
Group:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment M- B MR E 92,416 102,527
Prepaid lease payments A E A 23,021 25,040
115,437 127,567
45.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SRAREERERE
The Group had no significant contingent assets or liabilities RZE-NFR_F—tF+_A=+—
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. A AEEVTESESAXAEENAR
46.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 46.FAEANLTR S
During the year, the Group had certain transactions with FRN AEEHRBEATETETRS -
related parties. Details of these transactions for the year BHE-_ZT-N\FEZE—-—+tF+=A
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: =T BHIEFEZERSZFBUOT:
Transactions with related parties HEEATZRS
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Brokerage commission income (Note a) KMl A (Fista) - 383
Consultancy fee income (Note b) BREWA (H5b) - 4,849
Interest income (Note ¢) FEWA (FzEc) - 559
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

46.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 46.FBB AN TR 5 (5#)

Notes:

(@) The Group received commission income from a former director
of a subsidiary for providing securities brokerage services.

(b) The Group received consultancy fee income from a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group for
providing consultancy services.

(0 The Group received interest income from a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group for the
loan granted.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is approximately HK$9,997,000
(2017: approximately HK$8,237,000) as disclosed in notes 13

fi s

(a) AERERREHRBIFLLRB A —HHEL
Al —BAEESRRAS WA -

(b) AEERIZHAEARBRASEE—FH B
N Z — R A IR BR AR B YA

(O AKEEREREERAAKE—FEHELQTF
2% A E AR B A SR MR A B

TEEEASHEM

AN FE I3 VART R  EE N EMEE
EIEERK 8 R F AR E B4 59,997,000
BT (T —+ 4 498,237,000/ 7T) °

and 14.
47.SUBSIDIARIES 4701 /B8 A 7]
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
TR LK ERTRHR AARFRERTRAEE
L E3E EERAEMER HEMEXEELH TEXR
2018 2017
ZE-N\E “B—tF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE A& B Ak
Delight Link Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of
Limited administrative
services to group
companies
MECEFERAF B LRRA2ET MEERARETH
R
Spring Chance Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
REBRAA EEREUHE TRRINIET REER
AREEIERBRARA  PRC Registered capital = 100% - 100%  Industrial property
(transliterated as Taicang RIMB80,000,000 development
Keycharm Storage
Company Limited®)
AEEBARERRAR o dMERARY I4RMEER
80,000,0007T
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47.MT B A E] ()

Proportion of nominal

47.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EME LK ERTRAR KARAFMBHERTRAER
1 B E EERAEMER EMEREEL S5 TEXK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# Gk EE:: A%
AREMESERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Trading of goods
(transliterated as Taicang RMB5,000,000
Haopu Trading Company
Limited®)
AEENEZBERRA  HE AMERARE EmBH
5,000,0007T
Greater China Financing ~ HK Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
Limited money lending
APERERRATA £ LRRAVET RHEE
Greater China Wealth & HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of insurance
Risk Management HK$2,000,000 brokerage services
Limited
AHPEERERFRAR FE gl RERRE LRSS
2,000,000/ 7T
Greater China Securities ~ HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities
Limited (Formerly known HK$18,000,000 brokerage services
as Prominence Financials
Limited)
APEZLFERLA BB g allen REZFLLRSE
(ABRRERMARAR) 18,000,000 7
Greater China Asset HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of assets
Management (HK) HK$1,000,000 management
Limited (Formerly known services
as Prominence Asset
Management Limited)
APEZEER (FE) BF ERiliEN RUEBEEERE
BRAE (AHERR 1,000,000 7
BEEEBERAF)
TREHMEEER PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of loan

AR A RMB100,000,000 referral and
(transliterated as Beijing consulting services
Xin Nuo Wei Assets
Management Limited")

IREHHEEER H AMERARE REEFENRFH
BRRA 100,000,0007T R %
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47.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

220

—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFE

Issued and fully

47. M1 B~ &) ()

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL R ERTRHR AARFBERTRAEE
1 B E EERAEMER HEMEXEELH IERR
2018 2017
—B-N\E St F
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE & B Ak
Spruce Light Asset HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of assets
Management HK$5,000,000 management
Company Limited services
EMEEERBRRA FA EFiliEN RUBEEERE
5,000,000/ 7T
EREREITRE PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of financial
BRERAA RMB220,000,000 guarantees and
(transliterated as Beijing consulting services
An Jia Shi Hang Financing
Guarantee Company
Limited")
ERZREITRE e AMERARE RARE ER RS
ERBRRA 220,000,0007C R
FERHR AR PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Provision of consulting
BB AT (transliterated RMB 10,000,000 services
as Shanghai Jia Nuo
Investment Company
Limited )
/i%%&éiﬁfﬁ H dMERARY B 3 S AR
BRA 10,000,0007T
R EHENELERE PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of
BRAF (transliterated RMB50,000,000 commercial
as Shenzhen Xin Nuo Wei factoring services
Commercial Factoring
Company Limited #)
RINEH A FRE h AMERARE REBERERSE
BRAF 50,000,0007T
ERRIEVEEAR PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Provision of consulting

%8R 2 7 (transliterated
as Khorgas Nuo Li
Enterprises Consultation
Service Company

Limited ¥)

Eﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁézmiﬁé’é@ HE
RBEERR

RMB1,000,000

AERARE
1,000,0007C
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47.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4771 B 2~ A ()
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EME LK ERTRAR KARAFMBHERTRAER
£ EEHY LERE /EMER EMEREEL S5 TEXK
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—tF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE Gk B Ak
ERRIARFHITEE  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Provision of consulting
HHRBAERAR RMB1,000,000 services
(transliterated as
Khorgas An Jia

Shi Hang Enterprises
Consultation service

Company Limited #)

ERRNZRMI0E  FE AMERARE R AR
HARBEER A 1,000,0007C

AENFHEBRLR  PRC Registered capital - 100% - - Provision of consulting
(transliterated as RMB100,000 services

Shenzhen Yi Li
Consultation Company

Limited #)

RIENFABRRE  PE AMERARE REF ARG

100,0007C

LaMEEERE PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of consulting
BB AT (transliterated HK$120,000,000 services
as Shanghai Wei Lian
Commercial Factoring
Company Limited #)

EMERERE R E AMEARET T 5 R
BRAT 120,000,007

*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in this RN EBNRNTFTEEABEL2EMIHAR

report for reference only and should not be regarded as its WE TESEAEEAEXEF-

official English name.
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47.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

47. M1 B~ &) ()

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

FRIHEZRSTIERE

AEBEEREL

BENARANBAB -EFRA JH
HipfEARMFHEEEREBN TR

RMBREER BENE AR D HITEM

end of the financial year. BT
48.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  48.FAKT B A Rtz el e
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES LN S|
The Company AT
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+tF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ TR - A AR 376,602 376,602
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBEEE (279,739) (279,739)
96,863 96,863
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NETE ] 1,097,669 1,070,985
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRI AR R (622,482) (608,580)
475,187 462,405
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A1 Bf /B A B K38 1,715 1,715

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and are repayable on demand.
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49.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 49.78 X A B BF 15 &
COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+tF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NGIE: O - F 96,863 96,863
Interests in associates JrAY RN R OF = - -
Contingent consideration receivable JE W S AR AE - 4,078
96,863 100,941
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE L Bf /BB R B 5K IA 475,187 462,405
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits £ /1 & Ug 51 18 « 78 1 5118 N % & 983 474
Contingent consideration receivable JEW S A RAE 2,683 -
Bank balances and cash IRITERNMIR S 2,993 69,605
481,846 532,484
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals H At eI RIB R BT E A 3,488 1,544
Deferred consideration RIERA(E 9,709 19,475
Amounts due to subsidiaries &~ B B~ B I8 1,715 1,715
14,912 22,734
Net current assets REBEERE 466,934 509,750
Total assets less current liabilities HWEEBRRBESE 563,797 610,691
Non-current liabilities knRBERE
Convertible notes Al R R - 5,654
Deferred consideration RERE - 8,385
- 14,039
Net assets EEFE 563,797 596,652
Capital and reserve BEXR#E
Share capital & < 6,915 6,870
Share premium & 17 5 B 1,966,768 1,947,494
Contributed surplus ERAR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve e eSS Tad- 1 - 9,775
Share option reserve B EHE 40,509 23,945
Accumulated losses Z5tEE (1,514,774)  (1,455,811)
Total equity Rt 563,797 596,652
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBBRERIBCESFENR_FT-—NLF=H
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and are ZHRBHEREERNE  YHUATAL
signed on its behalf by: REEFEEF-
Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong
ZRR BARE
Director Director
o BEH
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50.RESERVES 50. 1% &

(a) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value. The
application of the share premium accounts is governed
by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the New
Bye-Laws of the Company.

(b) Share option reserve

Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant
date fair value of the unexercised share options of the
Company.

(c) Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued
by the Company. Items included in convertible notes
equity reserve will not reclassified to profit or loss.

(d) Translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the foreign operations.

(e) Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative net change
in the fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income. Prior
to 1 January 2018, this reserve included the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of reporting period in according
with HKAS 39. The amounts have been reclassified
to accumulated losses when those financial assets are
disposed of.
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50.RESERVES (Continued)

(f) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in the PRC comprising the
Group, it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits of the PRC the subsidiaries and
associates, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing the
net profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares
currently held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of share capital.
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51.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

51.

BMEEPHELZABEHAR

T%*HIJZ!SE lrﬂé&%@)?izfgﬂi’“@
F‘iﬂﬁ/ﬁ@)
FiZEﬁﬁfﬁ/fﬁEEYﬂi?}ifﬁib‘E
H—JE/\KEIZ i//lbgi'%ﬁiat_’rﬂé/ﬁ
BT15 %ﬁ%ﬁ”}fﬁltao

Convertible
Borrowings notes Total
B8 FABRREE et
(Note 34) (Note 35)
(FMt=E34) (FffaE35)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FA&T
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+F—H—H 113,066 5,070 118,136
Financing cash flows MEHERE 36,041 - 36,041
Foreign exchange translation INE R E 9,986 - 9,986
Amortisation of discount on Al IR R IR A IR 2 HE 5
convertible notes - 584 584
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZE—+4F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HK
zZ—N\E—H—H 159,093 5,654 164,747
Financing cash flows BmEREME (65,280) - (65,280)
Foreign exchange translation INEBRE (5,587) - (5,587)
Conversion iR - (5,950) (5,950)
Amortisation of discount on Al IR AR R Bh 3R 2 5
convertible notes - 296 296
At 31 December 2018 RZZT—)\F
+=-—A=+—H 88,226 - 88,226
52.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 52 EANERET

226

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues or bank
borrowings. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years.
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52.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“ICO") which are subject to the relevant minimum
capital requirement; and (ii) three subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant
minimum paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.

Particularly for the financial guarantee operation, the Group
monitors regularly the residual balance of outstanding
guarantees for single customers and multiples of the total
outstanding guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group engaging in guarantee
business, so as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable
limit. The decision to manage the net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group to meet the needs of
developing guarantee business rests with the directors.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
other than described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year
ended date is as follows:

BARERER (@)

AREBAETIATIMNBIEINEARETE (i)
RIEFRARER 2 BED] (TR 2 BMEGI])
At —EH B AR AETHEARKEER
RE MiBEZNMPEKRIIBETZRE
ERN=-FNBLARAETER NS (B
BER) R ([FEFEHE (FBRER) R
A THRBERESERARKERD
BT - EREGRABYERZTER
MEZKFE UERTEESFRHE (M
BER) R A MR D FHED T RIEE
THIE °

LERBEEREGME  AKEEHE
RE-FPHMARIMERKBELEFELE
EREEREBONBLARNEERERD
BREANARERERAENEE KM
B N i S ) FE A R R E A o B IR
AEEHNBRRNFEERCHBRERIN
MmREREREBOBROREDRNE
o

B £ XX Pt SN - AN E I A A A R A
SEMIMNBEIME AR R ENERRR

BHE-_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BLFE"
AEENREABEE - NEBRFEERN
BELEREEER R EREERLR
FRIARRRIEA AEIGERE -

EEERANFEANERABLENT

2018 2017

—E-NFE —T—+F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Total borrowings BEBE 88,226 159,093
Equity attributable to owners of RNARHER ANELER

the Company 664,625 714,829

Gearing ratio ERBELE 13% 22%
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

3.2/ T A

() ERMTASE

2018 —E-NfE
Financial assets THEE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
BATE
BAFE R A H A
FFABEZ B 5 BR 6 2EKEZ
SRMEE SRMEE SREE F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTERx TEx FRET
Equity investments designated EBEREATEFALM
at FvoCl PE WG RERE - - 15,872 15,872
Contingent consideration ML ARE
receivables 13,686 - - 13,686
Unlisted investment funds FLEMREES 77,695 - - 77,695
Loans and interests receivables W E T RF B - 113,952 = 113,952
Trade and other receivables R M B 0 I Lt O RRIR - 59,674 - 59,674
Deposits bk - 66,641 - 66,641
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENER: - 1,263 = 1,263
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIBITTR - 2,136 = 2,136
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS - 269,578 - 269,578
91,381 513,244 15,872 620,497
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R
A5 ER#Y
eWmas
HK$'000
FET
— Trade and other payables — AN R R % B A JE A< SR 1B 77,902
— Borrowings —BE 88,226
— Deferred consideration —BEERE 25,625
191,753
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53.% @ T A (#)
() eMIAESE(B)

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

2017 S
Financial assets THEE
Financial Available-for-
assets Loans and sale financial
at FVTPL receivables assets Total
b /NS |
FFABZZ Exk AN E
TREE JE W R SREE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
Available-for-sale equity AHHERERE
investments - - 25,521 25,521
Contingent consideration fEH S ARAE
receivables 9,879 - - 9,879
Unlisted investment funds FEMREES 22,410 - - 22,410
Loans and interests receivables JEUE T B - 189,891 - 189,891
Trade and other receivables JRE U BR SR K EL b JRE W 5k 0B - 34,877 - 34,877
Deposits e - 49,027 - 49,027
Cash held on behalf of clients REFHANRE - 2,066 - 2,066
Restricted bank deposits R EIRITE - 9,064 - 9,064
Bank balances and cash RITHEHERE - 410,117 - 410,117
32,289 695,042 25,521 752,852
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
17 5
AR 1) BR #Y
TRAE
HK$'000
FAET
— Trade and other payables — JE A BR R % B A JE A< SR 1B 45,443
— Borrowings —BE 159,093
— Deferred consideration —RERE 71,293
— Convertible notes — AR ER 5,654
281,483
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTOCI, contingent consideration receivables,
unlisted investment funds, loans and interests receivables,
contingent consideration receivables, trade and other
receivables, deposits, cash held on behalf of clients,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other payables, borrowings, deferred
considerations and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the lenders the repayment of
loans entered into by customers of the Group. The Group
has the obligation to compensate lenders for the losses
they would suffer if customers fail to repay.
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from financial guarantees issued. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage along the approval
process, including pre-transaction, in-transaction and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts due diligence and evaluates customers by
internal credit assessment system during the pre-approval
process. Financial guarantees issuance is subject to
approval of the management.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.

When a certain number of customers undertake the
same business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the
Group mainly operates its financial guarantee businesses
in the PRC, there exists a certain level of geographical
concentration risk for its guarantee portfolios in that
it might be affected by changes in the PRC economic
conditions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial guarantees issued and outstanding amounted
to HK$560,434,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$419,175,000).
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has a credit policy in place for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts on an ongoing basis. The Group
only extends credit to customers based on careful
evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and
credit history. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS
9 (2017: incurred loss model) at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments and current abilities to
pay and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as to the economic environment.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 55%
(31 December 2017: 48%) and 99% (31 December
2017: 96%) of trade receivables were due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the insurance brokerage business.
These five largest customers of respective business
segments have good historical repayment records and
low default rates. Management performs periodic
evaluations to ensure the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 35% and
71% (31 December 2017: 39% from largest customer
and 100% from five largest customers) of loans and
interests receivables from loan financing business was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers as at 31 December 2018. The Group
has concentration of credit risk to the largest securities
margin client’s exposure representing 73% of total
loans to margin clients as at 31 December 2018. The
management is of the view that the allowance made is
adequate taking into account the historical experience in
the collection of loans and interest receivables from these
largest customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The credit risk on trade receivables from clearing houses
and brokers is considered as insignificant taking into
account the good market reputations and high credit
ratings of the counterparties.

The credit risk on cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the management is
responsible in developing and maintaining the processes
for measuring ECL, the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9. The Group applies simplified approach to
measure ECL on trade receivables (except for secured
margin loans); and general approach to measure ECL on
secured margin loans and other financial assets classified
at amortised cost. Under the simplified approach, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial
assets migrate through the following three stages based
on the change in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage
1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2,
the management assesses loss allowances using the
risk parameter modelling approach that incorporates
key parameters, including PD, LGD and EAD. For credit-
impaired financial assets classified as Stage 3, the
management assesses the credit loss allowances by
estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from
the financial assets.

Financial guarantees carry similar credit risk to loans
and the Company takes a similar approach on risk
management.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

5.2 T A ()
(b) tREREEEERKE (&)

1= B /mE R p EFF G (4)

ZEIHFIRENMHBERRE
B SEM R LN B RO
EERBRERB/MTFEM-

REFPRBZHS ZRHIBTER
RETEBZEERRER BAY
FHRUAES RS BEBRATYR
L

LB AT B

AREBOBRBKRRFEERBERET
5 AR TE B 2R B M Bl R (B I& FROR

REMB BV HRELEREIRR &
EEREHTEMERRERT VKR
EERIFIRIA T HRE B ETTIEY
FEBREAENEF -AEEEMH
e EHEREER (FERRES
EFRINMEMEERER: RER—
AL EERMRESER L HAM
DEREBHEAARIENSREEDN
BHREEER -RRELTE A&H
EHEEREHNBREEBBREN S B
EFERBE-RBR—RILX eREE
TERVRER RN EERRZE S
o NHI =R SEREEC 121E A
BHEEER F2EER 2 HEHE
EEBE-ARELEFERERFEER:
cHEREEBRE-CELEEERE".

ROBSBIEERLFEEENERE
EMs EEEEARRSEERT
EHERBEE ZTEARAZAR
RS2 BREOHNXR BOEBREXR
ERNERMO - BRREENE
BAEEHEEMEENS BEE
BBRGFEREERRRELNRE
RanE R EEERREE-

MERERESRAGRUNEERR
RADAIREREE S EKIEMNUR
Ve

233



(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) EREAREEBEREE (&)

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according
to forward-looking information and used complex
models and assumptions in its expected measurement
of credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to
the future macroeconomic conditions and customer's
creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default by
customers and the corresponding losses). The Group
adopts judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to the
requirements of accounting standards such as:

(i) Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each
reporting date. While determining whether the credit
risk has significantly increased since initial recognition
or not, our Group takes into account the reasonable
and substantiated information that is accessible
without exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including
gualitative and quantitative analysis based on the
historical data of the Group, credit rating grade, and
forward-looking information. Based on the single
financial instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of default of financial
instruments on the reporting date with that on the
initial recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of
financial instruments.
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5.2 T A ()

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following quantitative, qualitative
or backstop criteria have been met:

e Quantitative criteria: At the reporting date, the
increase in remaining lifetime probability of
default is considered significant comparing with
the one at initial recognition.

e Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse change in
debtor’s operation or financial status.

For loans to margin clients and loans receivables,
the number of days past due and loan-to-collateral
value were used to estimate significant increase in
credit risk. Other financial assets at amortised cost
use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk.

Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

The standard adopted by the Group to determine
whether a credit impairment occurs under HKFRS 9 is
consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives of the relevant financial instrument,
taking into account quantitative and qualitative
criteria. When the Group assesses whether the credit
impairment of debtor occurred, the following factors
are mainly considered:

e Internal rating of the debtor indicating default or
near-default;

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
customer;
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Definition of credit-impaired financial asset
(Continued)

e The debtor leaves any of the receivables of the
Group overdue for more than 90 days;

e |t is becoming probable that the customer will
enter bankruptcy or other financial restructuring;

e The credit impairment on a financial asset may be
caused by the combined effect of multiple events
and may not be necessarily due to a single event.

(iii) Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant increase
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in credit risk and whether there is an impairment of
assets, the Group measures the impairment loss for
different assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire
lifetime respectively. The key measuring parameters of
ECL include probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default (“"LGD") and exposure at default ("EAD"). The
Group takes into account the quantitative analysis
of historical statistics (such as internal rating grade,
manners of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in
order to establish the model of PD, LGD and EAD.

e PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will
not be able to fulfil its obligations of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughout the entire
remaining lifetime. For loans to margin clients
and loans receivable, the Group estimates PD
by the internal credit ratings. For other financial
assets at amortised cost the PD is adjusted based
on the credit rating of comparable companies
operating in similar businesses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEBEERBE (&)

(Continued)
1EERE R R EF S (&)
ATEEEBEEEE (B)

(i) FAEEHEEBEENZ2H (B)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the
extent of the loss resulting from the default
exposure. Depending on the type of counterparty,
the method and priority of the recourse,
past default experience and the realisation
of collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is the
percentage of loss of risk exposure at the time of
default, calculated over the next 12 months or
over the entire remaining lifetime;

EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed at the time of the default in the next
12 months or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

(iv) Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of
historical data, the Group identifies the key economic
indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL.
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEEERBE (&)

(Continued)
Market risk 5 & fg
(i) Currency risk () BEEER

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most of its monetary assets
and monetary liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the individual group entity.
The management is of the opinion that the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.
Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk sensitivity
analysis is presented. The significant balance carried
in the translation reserve account is occasioned by
the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group at
each reporting date.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate borrowings and loans
receivables. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to receivables from
variable-rate cash and margin clients, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEBEERBE (&)

(Continued)
R (&)

(i) MERER (E)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
that the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible changes in interest rates. If
interest rates had been 100 basis points (2017: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the net effect of Group's post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 would
decrease/increase by HK$2,326,000 (post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017: increase/
decrease by HK$3,569,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities which are
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. The fair value
of these financial instruments will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the closing market prices of the relevant
listed equity securities. The Group's listed investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and in PRC. Listed investments held in the portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations. The management
manages this risk exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return profiles
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

(b) EREAREEBEREE (&)

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/
lower, and held other variables constant, the other
component of equity of the Group would increase/
decrease by HK$1,587,000 (2017: HK$2,552,000),
as a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity
securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the price change had occurred at the
reporting date and has been applied to the Group's
investments at that date. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent price risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
and to ensure compliance with FRR. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents and credit facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitors the current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient
working capital are maintained and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions meet
its liquidity requirement.
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(b) cREKEEBEERBE (&)

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liquidity table

As at 31 December 2018

nBEzmEE ()

TRERBESAHAOINHBEOR &
RS ASENTESRMABERR
RIEEI AR ETON TREE
MEERBORTRASRE -

REREEX
R=F-N\F+=-A=+—H

Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 13 3 months than undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 1 month months to 1year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2018
R=B-N\F
METLS KRERE tZB=t-A
1 il HSR—BR -2=fif =ZfRE-% -FNE REAR ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERL TERL TERL TERL
Non-derivative financial liabilities #T?i%n‘i’ﬁﬁ
Trade and other payables ERRFREMER T - 20,692 48,253 8,957 - 77,902 77,902
Borrowings - fixed rate 1“ T 6.37% 468 937 12,662 104,344 118,411 88,226
Deferred consideration BERE
— non-interest bearing -AiE - - - 20,450 5,175 25,625 25,625
21,160 49,190 42,069 109,519 21,938 191,753
Guarantees issued BEHNER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ HRERBE - 51,253 139,871 369,310 - 560,434 560,434
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=—A=+—H
Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 1-3 3 months than  undiscounted amounts at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31122017
RZZ—t+%
METS RE +ZA=+-A
ERME  OR-EA  -E=ER ZEAE-%# —EE RERELE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FER
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JE4T4£ £ B & E
Trade and other payables ERESRE R FE - 24,396 8,098 12,949 - 45443 45443
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-E8 7.38% 12,533 1,052 62,460 128,429 204,474 159,093
Convertible notes THRRER
- non-interest bearing L - - - - 5,654 5,654 5,654
Deferred consideration BERE
- non-interest bearing O - - - 48,807 22,486 71,293 71,293
36,929 9,150 124,216 156,569 326,364 281,483
Guarantees issued BIELMER
Maximum amount guaranteed R ERBE - 146,912 229,100 43,163 - 419,175 419,175
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 54~ F{EETE

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018

() UEEMEERAFEHAENESRE

EHATE

FEESH S BEER SRS HFE
AFEHE FREHNAEEZE
SHEAERSMEEL ATENER
(EEREANEERNTREALE) -

R-ZZBE-NE+-HA=+—HWA¥F
BHER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® E=R H=R #@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER THER TERT THERT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BB E M2 @WKz
other comprehensive income: BAFESR REE:
— Listed equity securities (Note a) — EWRAFES (Mita) 15,872 = = 15,872
Financial assets at fair value through R AF(EFTABZE 2
profit or loss: SREE:
- Contingent consideration — Y ARE (M5Tb)
receivables (Note b) - - 13,686 13,686
- Unlisted investment fund (Note )~ —JF R EES (M5kc) - 37,552 40,143 77,695
Total T 15,872 37,552 53,829 107,253

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as the available-for-sale financial
assets at FVTOCI, for Level 1 fair value measurement are
guoted bid prices in an active market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ-FT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables
are based on the valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which
are reviewed by and approved by the directors of the
Company.

As the Guaranteed Profits relating to the acquisition of
Access China Group and Sino Wealth Group covers a
period of more than one year, there are more interactions
to be assessed for the results. Monte Carlo simulation is
therefore adopted as the simulation produces distribution
of possible outcome values. By assuming probability
distributions, variables can have different probabilities of
different outcomes occurring. Probability distributions are
a much more realistic way of describing uncertainty in
variables of the result.

A decrease in the probability of fulfillment of Guaranteed
Profits would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement of contingent consideration receivables and
a decrease in discount rate would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of contingent consideration
receivables, and vice versa.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the contingent consideration receivables are based
on the management’s best estimates. The value of the
contingent consideration receivables varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The key inputs used of contingent consideration receivables
in relation to acquisition of Access China Group for the
Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant
unobservable inputs 2018 Range 2017 Range

Volatility N/A 36.91%
Discount rate 21.34% 13.11%-13.27%
Time to settlement

date (in year) 0.19 0.19-1.19

54 N FEEETE (#®)

() UEEMEERAFEAENESHE
ENQFE(E)

BisE: (8)

(b) BRHAREBONRAFEDREBLE
EAEMRBRE REEILETH
HEME THARRESEREZ
fE °

A A B U BE Access China 52 @ % Sino
Wealth £ B 27 & FIR &% 2 6 — F 5
B HAFEEZRIUNERER -5
BREEBREAMTREITESHEE
ZoMmERA - B BBEBES M
BHUHBEELETRASLER 2R %
EOMIBRRER HAHBERE
2 THETE °

% BUS M AR 78 1 A] BE ME PR (K 1S S U
W AREBH A FEFTERD LR
KEESEHBBKRIARENRFE
FTEIEM RZ TR

S BB M A A 2 T PR B
B3R T B IR B 2 e 1 - B
HARE RERS T EMBRZT
B -

RBEHR RE=ZFATFEFEM
= A B U BE Access China 5 [E Y & I
HAREBHAETBGABIBELT :

TEFRT
LS DN ¢ —E-\FEE —2-tFEE

it T 36.91%
BiipR:S 21.34% 13.11%-13.27%
B BEEREE

(&%) 0.19 0.19-1.19
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54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The key inputs of contingent consideration receivable in
relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group for the Level 3
fair value measurement at the end of reporting period are
as follows:

Significant
unobservable inputs 2018 Range 2017 Range
Volatility 43.52% 35.64%

Discount rate 20.55%-20.60% 11.62%-12.02%
Time to settlement
date (in year)

0.18-1.18 0.18-2.18

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in
profit forecast, it is not practicable to provide any
meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions
concerning future profitability of acquired business and the
potential impact on the fair value changes on contingent
consideration receivables at the end of reporting period.

The fair value of unlisted investment fund of
HK$37,552,000 is determined based on the net asset
value with reference to the prices of underlying investment
portfolio quoted by fund administrator.

The fair value of unlisted investment fund of
HK$40,143,000 is based on the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer, using a Discounted Cash
Flow method, which are reviewed by and approved by the
directors of the Company.

An increase in discount rate would result in a decrease in
fair value measurement of unlisted investment fund, and
vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to the
privately offered fund in PRC for the level 3 fair value
measurement at the end of reporting period are discount
rate at 14.67%.

54 N FEEETE (#®)

() UEEMEERAFEAENESHE
ENQFE(E)

BisE: (8)

(b)
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(&)

RBEHRR RLE=RAFEFEM
= B B Sino Wealth & [E &9 FE U 3k
AREFRAIEZRABENT

FEFRT
BEERAYE “EZ-\FEE —FT-t5EE
it 43.52% 35.64%
A% 20.55%-20.60% 11.62%-12.02%
RS

(&%) 0.18-1.18 0.18-2.18

MBS EANEEEREE T
Rl - @ AAKAIERRERARINERD
Wi 15 2 RIRBFIRE h e U= A
REAFEEHZ2EEZENEAR
RMELEMAEZHOGRE ST -

ELEMEERES A FE37,552,000
BILNE2EESEE ARKTH IR
KWEHAREBRBIBEEEFEETE -

JEEMIREE S /A F1E40,143,000
B IR BE B S EAEMERITR
BEREFETULARAEEER
ML EREEETE -

FRELEABEBEGELETREESH
NFEAERRRD  R2TA-

RBMEHR RE=ZRLAFESEM
SABPRLEESNEARTAER
B ABIBE BRI E14.67% °
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s4. N EEE ()

54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(i) BE=RAFEFEZHIR

Available-for-
Financial assets through sale financial
profit or loss: assets:
EBBRHRIIEZ AHEE
tREE: tREE:
- Unlisted - Wealth
investment - Contingent  management
fund considerations products Total
-kL
REES -HAKE -HEEEEM Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAET TET
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+F—A—8 - 15,102 16,751 31,853
Arising in acquisition of EBHEAREE
subsidiaries (Note 38(a)) (PHH3E38(a)) - 5,765 - 5,765
Disposal & - - (17,001) (17,001)
Change in fair value recognised ~ FRRBHERNAFEE
in profit or loss during the year - (10,988) - (10,988)
Exchange realignment B X, 55 B - - 250 250
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZA=1T—H
1 January 2018 FZE-NF—-H—H - 9,879 - 9,879
Addition nNE 35,607 - - 35,607
Change in fair value recognised ~ FRRBRERHAFEE
in profit or loss during the year 6,247 3,807 - 10,054
Exchange realignment [ % (1,711) - - (1,711)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NFT+ZA=1T—H 40,143 13,686 - 53,829

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are not material different from
their fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

RAESBMERBRIF | —T— \FFH

(i) EFEUADAFEIIENEHEERAE

ZATE

ARAEERB HEEXNAINEREZ
cREEMcHBENRABEHEE
RZE-NEFERZE—+ttF+=H
=t+—HNAFEITEERER-
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55.POTENTIAL LITIGATION 55/ B EsF 7A

The financing guarantee subsidiary of the Group has
commenced a litigation as the plaintiff against a P2P platform
in Beijing, PRC. The matter is related to the guarantee
deposit paid to and withheld by a P2P platform in the course
of business of financial guarantee business. The hearing
commenced in March 2019 and no judicial decision has
been promulgated up to the date of this report, the Board of
Directors believes that there is no significant financial impact
for the Group.

56.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 56.

There is no significant event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
gz e HE BHE BHE
ZE-N\E “EtF “E-RF “T-hF “E-QmF
+=ZA=t+-B +ZA=t—-A tZA=t—-H +ZA=+-B +TZA=1+-H
LEE ILFE JIR:3E] [IR:353 I35
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL FET TAT FEL
RESULTS E3 |
Continuing operations FELEEK
Revenue WA 152,595 130,652 75,175 115,956 55,133
Cost of sales HERR (56,703) (62,969) (35,636) - (42,090)
Gross profit E7 95,892 67,683 39,539 115,956 13,043
Other income, gains and EtA - Wz &
losses Bi (18,215) 89,103 (218,969) 121,549 4,098
Administrative and other TRREEHEERS
operating expenses (115,836) (99,797) (82,187) (83,304) (31,391)
Finance costs BT (11,560) (16,340) (15,200) (29,398) (13,365)
Share of (loss) profit of (R E DA
associates (B8) a7 - - (98,410) 9,324 -
Impairment loss on goodwill  FEZREBE (7,143) (14,650) - - -
Impairment loss on interests  FABE & A BB 2
in associates BEEE - - (267,410) - -
Net loss on de-consolidation Hﬂxﬁ”/\)\/ﬁEW%
of subsidiaries RAZEEFE - - (324,478) - -
(Loss) profit before tax BRBiAT (B8 & A (56,862) 25,999 (967,115) 134,127 (27,615)
Income tax (expenses) credit ~ FT/E% (X )% (1,741) 43 (3,435) (17,997) 8,221
(Loss) profit for the year ER(EE)&H (58,603) 26,042 (970,550) 116,130 (19,394)
Attributable to: ATALRER:
Owners of the Company RAREEA (58,603) 26,020 (970,550) 116,130 (19,575)
Non-controlling interests FERER - 2 - - 181
(58,603) 26,042 (970,550) 116,130 (19,394)
RPESRMERERAR | ZT—\FFW
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e
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-N\E —E—+F “E-RF —T-hF “T-QmF
+ZA=t-B +-A=+—-B +ZA=+-HBH +ZR=+-H +ZA=+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AL AT TEL TEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  BEHER
Total assets BEE 910,656 1,065,243 706,346 1,670,266 309,660
Total liabilities waE (246,031) (350,414) (284,343) (508,521) (200,195)
Non-controlling interests R ER - - (776) - -
Fquity attributable to KAREBA
owners of the Company EfE#E R 664,625 714,829 421,227 1,161,745 109,465
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